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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2023 2022 Changein %
—E-=% —-—ZT-— 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Revenue W 25 89,548 30,645 192.2%
From asset management KEEEEIE 42,746 28,274 51.2%
From investment and financial R B8R & M B 5% 3
advisory services Rz 7 435 531 (18.1%)
From underwriting and placing KRB ZF 5B #H LES
of securities - 1,560 (100.0%)
Sales of goods HEE M 36,636 29,341 24.9%
From securities trading and KEEFFEER
investments ®E 9,731 (29,061) (133.5%)
Net loss from operations KEEKFHIE (10,561) (73,229) (85.6%)
Net loss for the year RNEFFEE (13,238) (78,211) (83.1%)
EBITDA BRAME -BE -TER
35 AT & 7 (EBITDA) (1,185) (65,859) (98.2%)
Loss per share BREE
— basic (HK cents) —EARGEAM) (0.87) (5.05) (82.8%)
Total Asset BERE 323,578 417,562 (22.5%)
Net Asset BEFE 279,983 293,640 (4.7%)

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year
Under Review"”) increased by 192.2% to HK$89.55 million
(2022: HK$30.65 million). The increase in revenue was
mainly due to the increase in income from asset management
services, trading of wines and beverage, and the recognition
of net income from securities trading and investments
business of HK$9.73 million (2022: net loss of HK$29.06
million).

After cost of sales and services rendered, general and
administrative expenses, and net reversal of or impairment
loss on financial assets, loss from operations for the Year
Under Review amounted to HK$10.56 million (2022:
HK$73.23 million).

For the same token, loss for the Year Under Review decreased
from HK$78.21 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to HK$13.24 million. EBITDA was a loss of HK$1.19 million
for the Year Under Review (2022: loss of HK$65.86 million).

Loss per share (basic) attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company decreased from HK5.05 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to HK0.87 cents for the Year Under
Review.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to our Shareholders the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the “Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverages.

The Group commenced its asset management business in May
2018 and generated revenue by providing asset management
services and advisory services through the expertise of the
Group’s investment team with Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (asset management) licenses granted by the
Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong. The licensed
activities were conducted by the asset management subsidiary
of the Group, namely OCI Asset Management Company
Limited ("OCIAM"). The total assets under management
("AUM") and subscription amounts from investors managed
by OCIAM as at 31 December 2023 amounted to US$149
million and US$406 million, respectively, from 10 funds
(31 December 2022: US$270 million and US$557 million,
respectively, from 11 funds). The decrease in AUM and
subscription amounts managed by OCIAM was mainly due
to redemption of investment by investors, termination of
fund and termination of investment management agreement
between a fund and OCIAM. Asset management income for
the Year Under Review was HK$42.75 million (year ended 31
December 2022: HK$28.27 million).

Dividend income, income from debt investments, and the
change in fair value of the financial assets recognised under
securities trading and investments segment for the Year
Under Review, in total, amounted to a gain of HK$9.73
million (year ended 31 December 2022: a loss of HK$29.06
million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREHRSE

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of
young consumer. Attributed to the gradual recovery of
general economic situation in Hong Kong after the COVID-19
pandemic, revenue from trading of wines and beverages
increased to HK$36.64 million for the Year Under Review as
compared to HK$29.34 million for last year.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$89.55 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022:
HK$30.65 million). The increase in revenue was mainly due
to the increase in income from asset management services,
trading of wines and beverages, and the recognition of net
income from securities trading and investments business of
HK$9.73 million (year ended 31 December 2022: net loss of
HK$29.06 million).

The consolidated net loss of HK$13.24 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2022: HK$78.21 million). The significant decrease
in consolidated net loss was mainly due to (i) the increase
in total revenue discussed above; and (ii) the recognition
of net reversal of impairment loss on financial assets of
HK$3.63 million for the Year Under Review as compared to
an impairment loss of HK$25.11 million for last year, which
was then offset by the increase in general and administrative
expenses mainly as a result of the increase in legal and
professional fees, staff costs and various other operating
expenses.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the year 2023, global economy has been gradually
recovering from the COVID-19, but it was still affected by
various uncertainties, including but not limited to, the high
interest rate and monetary tightening by major central
banks; worries about global economic outlook; the health
of Mainland China’s property sector; and geopolitical risks
related to certain overseas countries, etc. Looking ahead,
with the expectation of decline in interest rate in the year
2024, and the support from various policies of the Hong
Kong government (such as actively introducing talents and
foreign business and investments, relaxation of stamp duty
requirements on residential properties), the economy and
investment sentiments of the market will be improving.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimize its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realizing
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. Resources will also
be allocated to asset management in relation to debt
investments with high credit rating to suit different investors’
risk appetite. During the year 2022, an investment fund
was set up with a targeted capital commitment to be raised
ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion, and is expected
to invest in the healthcare industry. The fund raising was in
progress.

Crypto-assets have becoming increasingly popular.
Crypto-assets are not only acquired by individuals for
investment or speculative purpose. Certain corporates,
financial institutions and even government bodies have
started exploring the use of blockchain technology, and
central bank digital currencies may just be around the corner.
The Group will explore potential development opportunities
related to asset management of crypto-assets in order to
expand the Group’s asset management business.

REZEFEZERABRAE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREHRSE

On the other hand, in addition to the acquisition of 60%
equity interestin L REM R AR EETEE R A 7
(Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd.), a company incorporated in the PRC and principally
engaged in the provision of asset management and advisory
services in the PRC, on 23 May 2022, the Group will continue
to explore other potential business in the PRC, such as
establishing Qualified Domestic Limited Partnership in the
PRC, to enhance the Group’s performance.

For trading of wines and beverages, the Group will keep
on with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories,
and to conduct marketing and promotion activities, such as
wine tasting campaigns, to boost sales.

In addition to the existing and afore-said businesses, the
Board will cautiously and diligently explore new potential
expansion opportunities in order to diversify income sources,
bring in profits and sustainable growth to the Group.
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Finally, | would like to extend my greatest gratitude to all
the Shareholders for their continuous support and to our
clients, banks and investors for their trust, encouragement
and recognition. Meanwhile, | would also like to thank all
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2023 Annual Report

E—FE BR-_E-_—_FfRA=-+=0K
BLULRERRMEFIBREEEARQ2F(—HER
PEEMACIHORA EERFREKYEERE
EEEEREMRB)IN60%IREN  AEH
BEENTPTEEREMBEEYS RS
B L EERBRNERAELE a4tk
BMELE-

REEEMRRESMNE AKRES AR
ERE SEMMEAHEEEERERER
BrHE REEMBERMR LRAREH

NEBES(WMmBEE)  REHE -
BREBEMELAEBI EFeRBELRDD

WHRRFNWBEBRREE LS THERAKXK
R RAREGIOEHN KA FEER -

&

RE AAZBHHEE2BBRR -—BEURNOIHE
BMREH TERHMBEMANTPL, RITERKE
EHRMANGERE ZBERAT-FAE - KA
NELBHEETTL2BREMELERRX
F-URBEME2BEIREREKMNE H M
B REEEREN —FRHETHREN
=% -

HITEFE(LRE)
X

—E-_WNMFEF=A=-++H



2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverages.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year Under
Review"), the Group continued to focus on the development
of asset management and investment and financial advisory
businesses. Apart from Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licenses issued by the Securities
and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC") which
were granted to the Group in May 2018, the Group had
obtained Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted by
SFC on 28 July 2021. The Group’s asset management and
financial advisory businesses target high-net-worth individuals
and institutional investors such as financial institutions,
asset management companies and other investment
companies. The licensed activities were conducted by the
asset management subsidiary of the Group, namely OCI
Asset Management Company Limited (“OCIAM”). The total
assets under management ("AUM") and subscription amounts
from investors managed by OCIAM as at 31 December
2023 amounted to US$149 million and US$406 million,
respectively, from 10 funds (31 December 2022: US$270
million and US$557 million, respectively, from 11 funds).
The decrease in AUM and subscription amounts managed
by OCIAM was mainly due to redemption of investment by
investors, termination of fund and termination of investment
management agreement between a fund and OCIAM.

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of
young consumer. Attributed to the gradual recovery of
general economic situation in Hong Kong after the COVID-19
pandemic, revenue from trading of wines and beverages
increased to HK$36.64 million for the Year Under Review as
compared to HK$29.34 million for last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIR 5 R i

Facilitated by the creation of a listing regime by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for
special purpose acquisition companies (“SPACs") taking effect
on 1 January 2022, the Group has submitted an application
to the Stock Exchange for listing of a SPAC, named Pisces
Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March 2022. Pisces Acquisition
Corporation is a Cayman Islands exempted company and is
incorporated for the purpose of effecting an initial business
combination with one or more businesses. After considering
the market conditions, the management of the Group
decided to cancel the listing project. Legal and professional
fees amounted to HK$9.55 million, which were originally
recognised as prepayment, had been written off as expenses
during the Year Under Review.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$89.55 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022:
HK$30.65 million). The increase in revenue was mainly due
to the increase in income from asset management services,
trading of wines and beverages, and the recognition of net
income from securities trading and investments business of
HK$9.73 million (year ended 31 December 2022: net loss of
HK$29.06 million).

The consolidated net loss of HK$13.24 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended
31 December 2022: HK$78.21 million). The significant
decrease in consolidated net loss was mainly due to (i)
the increase in total revenue discussed above; and (ii) the
recognition of net reversal of impairment loss on financial
assets of HK$3.63 million for the Year Under Review as
compared to an impairment loss of HK$25.11 million for last
year, which was then offset by the increase in general and
administrative expenses mainly as a result of the increase
in legal and professional fees, staff costs and various other
operating expenses.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Management Services

Since May 2018, the Group carries on its asset management
business through providing a range of asset management
services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate and financial institutional professional investors
under Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities by the SFC.

As at 31 December 2023, OCIAM was engaged in the
management of 10 funds (31 December 2022: 11 funds)
including the self-invested US Dollar Debt Fund, serving 16
individuals and 21 corporate investors (31 December 2022:
13 individuals and 24 corporate investors). The total AUM
and subscription amounts from investors managed by OCIAM
as at 31 December 2023 amounted to US$149 million and
US$406 million respectively (31 December 2022: US$270
million and US$557 million respectively). Asset management
income for the Year Under Review was HK$42.75 million (year
ended 31 December 2022: HK$28.27 million).

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid up capital of
IR REMEAEKEEEAFR QA (Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.) (“Shandong
Civil Aviation Dongsheng”) from a third party at a cash
consideration of RMB3.15 million. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is a company incorporated in the PRC and
principally engaged in the provision of asset management
and advisory services in the PRC. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is classified as a joint venture company of the
Group and for the Year Under Review, the Group recorded
share of profits of the joint venture of HK$1.74 million (year
ended 31 December 2022: HK$1.01 million).

During the year 2022, an investment fund was set up with
a targeted capital commitment to be raised by the limited
partners ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion (the
“Healthcare Investment Fund”) where YZ Healthcare GP
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is the
general partner. The Healthcare Investment Fund targets
to invest in the healthcare industry. Up to the date of this
report, the fund raising was in progress.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIR 5 R i

Investment and Financial Advisory Services

As at 31 December 2023, OCIAM was engaged in advising 1
fund with fund size of HK$1.05 billion (31 December 2022:
nil). Investment advisory services fee income amounting to
HK$0.44 million was recorded by the Group for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022: HK$0.53
million).

Underwriting and Placing Services

After obtaining Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted
by SFC on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing of securities
services. The Group had participated in total of 2, 5 and
nil bond issuance transactions during the years ended
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
provided opportunities for the Group to build up relationship
with leaders in underwriting business and acquaint with
the market practice in underwriting business. During the
Year Under Review, the Group did not record any income
from underwriting and placing of securities (year ended
31 December 2022: HK$1.56 million).

respectively. These

Trading of wines and beverages

Attributed to the gradual recovery of general economic
situation in Hong Kong after the COVID-19 pandemic,
revenue from trading of wines and beverages increased to
HK$36.64 million for the Year Under Review as compared
to HK$29.34 million for last year. Loss attributable to this
business segment amounted to HK$6.99 million for the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022: loss of
HK$1.12 million). The increase in loss was mainly due to
the increase in operating expenses for the expansion and
promotion of the Group’s wine and beverages business.

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of young
consumer. The Group is conducting its sales through three
channels: (i) direct sales; (ii) online sales; and (iii) wholesale.
The Group will also maintain business relationship with
reputable distributors for sale of premium wine.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Investment
The Group had the following investment in funds:

(i)

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC, in respect of its segregated portfolio, ICBC
US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”) managed by
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited,
pursuant to which the Company subscribed for the
Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount
of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156
million). The fund size was US$60 million including
both Class A Shares of US$40 million and Class B
Shares of US$20 million. Both Class A and Class B
Shares are entitled to a fixed return accruing on each
anniversary of 3 June 2019 (“Distribution Date”) at 4%
per annum on its subscription amount. Provided that
the portfolio has sufficient distributable assets after
payment of the Class A fixed return and deduction of
all fees, expenses and other liabilities of the Sub-Fund
(including but not limited to management fees),
each Class B Share carries the right to a fixed return
accruing on each Distribution Date calculated at the
rate of 4% per annum on the subscription amount.
On redemption, Class A Shares will not be entitled to
any amount in excess of the subscription price and any
accrued and unpaid fixed return. Class B Shares are
entitled to the remaining portion of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund will generate income through
investing in US dollar-denominated bonds (including,
but not limited to, investment-grade bonds, high-yield
bonds, and convertible bonds), notes and other fixed
income products and money market instruments issued
by companies based in or with their headquarters in
the PRC (each an “Issuer”). Target Issuers are stated
to include qualified real estate bond issuers; financial
institutions with high incomes and other corporate
bonds and local government financing vehicles.
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On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor and
Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Orient
Finance"”) as the Purchaser entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s
entire right, title and interest in certain amount of
Class B Shares (“Sale Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC
at the consideration of no more than US$8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) with a
post-completion guarantee clause that in the event
that the SPC redeems the participating shares held
by the Purchaser at the expiry of the investment
term of the Sub-Fund (i.e. 2 June 2022), the sum of
entitlement of the Purchaser as the holder of the Sale
Shares comprising the aggregate of all the returns,
distributions, income, and other payments received or
accrued on the Sale Shares since completion plus the
redemption proceeds paid or payable to the Purchaser
is less than the consideration paid by the Purchaser, the
Vendor shall pay to the Purchaser such shortfall within
five (5) business days upon receipt of written notice
from the Purchaser. At 27 August 2021, 7,900 shares
was sold to Orient Finance at the consideration of
US$7.51 million.

The Fund’s fair value dropped substantially in the last
quarter of 2021 due to the market value of those bonds
issued by PRC properties developers in the Fund’'s
portfolio decreased sharply upon the PRC government'’s
tightened control policies over credit. Hence, the
fair value of the fund investment was reduced to
approximately HK$28.83 million as at 31 December
2021.
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(i)

REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The NAV of Class B shares of the Fund continued to
decrease further as the prices of those bonds and notes
in the Fund’s portfolio dropped further in early 2022.
The value of Class B shares turned to zero by 31 January
2022 and further cut loss actions were taken by the Fund
Manager. The NAV of the Fund decreased further. The
NAV of Class B shares as at 28 February 2022 is zero.
The chance of regaining value to acquisition value by
the expiry of the Fund is remote, hence a full provision
for the post-completion guarantee on the 7,900 Class B
shares sold to Orient Finance on their acquisition value
of US$7.51 million, equivalent to HK$58.57 million was
made in the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Fund Manager decided not to extend the Fund in
May 2022 and the maturity date fell on 2 June 2022. As
Class B shares value was zero by that time, the Company
and the Purchaser get nil return from the Fund. The
Company recorded a loss from this fund investment
of approximately HK$28.83 million for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The provision of the post-completion guarantee of
US$7.51 million payable to Orient Finance had been
settled by end of the year 2023.

The Group launched a US dollar debt fund (the “US
Dollar Debt Fund”) in February 2020 through injection
of two investment bonds valued at approximately
US$15.42 million at the date of injection. The aim of
the US Dollar Debt Fund is to invest in medium to long
term notes to obtain steadily interest income as well as
capital appreciation. The US Dollar Debt Fund is open
to external professional investors and is managed by
OCIAM. The fund manager closely monitors the market
value of the investment notes within the portfolio of
the fund and try to capture any opportunities to acquire
investment notes at low value and to dispose those
investment notes at a higher price to obtain capital gain
in addition to obtain interest return. Further details of
the investment portfolio of the US Dollar Debt Fund is
set out under “Securities Trading and Investments — US
Dollar Debt Fund” below.

(ii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR B 51

(iii)

Ed 53 iify

On 2 March 2021, the Group subscribed for 100 Class
A Shares of OCI Equities Fund SP (“the Sub-Fund”)
at a consideration of HK$95,000,000 (representing
approximately 19% of the investment funds raised).
Class B shareholder and Class C shareholder
will contribute HK$80,000,000 (representing
approximately 16% of the investment funds raised) and
HK$325,000,000 (representing approximately 65% of
the investment funds raised) to subscribe for Class B
Shares and Class C Shares, respectively. Provided that
the Sub-Fund has sufficient distributable assets, each
Class A Share is entitled in priority (over Class B Shares)
to a simple fixed return of 5% per annum on its initial
offer price or its subscription price as at the closing day
or the relevant subscription day (“Class A Expected Fixed
Return”). The Class A Expected Fixed Return will be
payable annually. Investment objective of the Sub-Fund
is to achieve medium to long-term capital appreciation
through direct or indirect acquisition, holding, and
distribution or other disposition of a properties
development project in Foshan, the PRC through the
three years term.

The original term of the Sub-Fund was ended on
4 March 2024, and had been extended for further three
years on 24 March 2024. Details of the extension was
set out in the Company announcement date 24 March
2024.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the fund
investment was HK$102.40 million (31 December
2022: HK$92.01 million), representing 31.6% of the
total assets of the Group (31 December 2022: 22.0%).
The fair value was determined by the present value of
expected cash flows with the appropriate discount rate
of each cash flow and adjusted for fund specific credit
risk.

(iii)
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REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities Trading and Investments

Dividend income, income from debt investments, and the
change in fair value of the financial assets recognised under
this segment for the Year Under Review, in total, amounted
to a gain of HK$9.73 million (year ended 31 December
2022: a loss of HK$29.06 million). Loss attributed to this
business segment for the Year Under Review decreased
to HK$3.24 million from HK$58.30 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was mainly due to (i) the
recognition of fair value gain on investments of HK$9.39
million for the Year Under Review as compared to a fair value
loss of HK$30.16 million for the year ended 31 December
2022; and (ii) the recognition of net reversal of impairment
losses on fixed income investment notes of HK$3.63 million
for the Year Under Review as compared to an impairment loss
of HK$24.33 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Fixed Income Products

The key factors considered by the Group when making the
investment decisions included, but not limited to, (i) the credit
rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial position and financial
performance of the underlying assets; (iii) the returns offered
by and the relevant costs in association with the fixed income
products; (iv) the terms of the fixed income products; (v) any
guarantor or collaterals in association with the fixed income
products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in the fixed
income products; (vii) the economic environment; and (viii)
government policies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group held interests in the
following investments which were recognised as debt
investments at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group:

(i)

US$15 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes
("RD Note”) issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) matured on 15 April 2019.

The RD Note was secured by a charge over 78,000,000
shares of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (China
Rundong Charged Shares), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1365). The Group issued
an EOD Notice to the RD Note Issuer and demanded for
payment from RD Note Issuer on 16 April 2019. Then
the Group sold 2,019,000 China Rundong Charged
Shares and subsequently also contracted with LanHai
International Trading Limited (& /& SES5EBR
7~ |]) and Ms. Ding Yi (T 18) (“RD Charged Share
Purchasers”), to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China
Rundong Charged Shares (“Remaining RD Shares”) for
HK$80 million. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to RD Charged Share Purchasers was filed to the high
court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
details of which was set out in the Group’s annual
report 2019. Up to the date of this report, 8,310,000
China Rundong Charged Shares was disposed in open
market for cash return of HK$8.76 million. The total
exposure as at 31 December 2023 was HK$108.38
million (31 December 2022: HK$108.33 million) after
amounts recovered from the sale of part of collateral
and exchange difference arising from translation of US$
to HKS.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
attended the mediation but no agreement was reached
with the RD Charged Share Purchasers. Further Witness
Statement was exchanged and our case management
conference hearing was held on 29 November 2021.
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(i)

REZEFEZERABRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The case trial was conducted in October 2023. The
judgment has been handed down by the Court on
17 November 2023. The Court has dismissed the
Group’s claims and has ordered the Group to pay the
RD Charged Share Purchasers’ costs occasioned by the
proceedings, to be taxed if not agreed. A provision
of legal fees amounted to HK$5.36 million was made
during the Year Under Review in relation to such costs.
After consulting the Group’s legal counsel, the Group
has decided not to appeal.

As the trading of the China Rundong Charged Shares
was suspended since 1 April 2021 and subsequently
delisted on 31 October 2022, full impairment provision
was made against the Group’s investment in RD Note as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

US$13 million of 8% senior secured guaranteed notes
("SP Note”) issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) matured on 30 July 2019.

In October 2018, the Group issued an EOD Notice to
the SP Note Issuer and demanded for payment from
the Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Yuan Yafei as
guarantors, in respect of all outstanding sums owing
by the SP Note Issuer under the SP Note. The SP Note
is secured also by charges over a total of 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited
("C.banner Shares”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1028). On 9 January 2019, the
Group submitted an application to the Intermediate
People's Court for the enforcement of amounts
due under the Mediation Order and the Settlement
Agreement, details of which were set out in the Group's
annual report 2018 and 2019. The Company received
notice from the Sanpower Group on 8 December 2021
that the Restructuring Plan of Sanpower Group was
passed. The Restructuring Plan scheduled to resolve the
defaulted debts and part of the related interest due
through business restructuring and improving fund pool
through disposal of certain assets or investments. The
Restructuring Plan will last through 2021 to 2028. The
Company is registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors
and will be notified by Sanpower Group for their
updates on the Restructuring Plan.

(ii)
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The total exposure of the SP Note as at 31 December
2023 was HK$101.57 million (31 December 2022:
HK$101.53 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
SP Note was HK$20.31 million (31 December 2022:
HK$15.04 million), after a provision for impairment
loss as at 31 December 2023 of HK$81.26 million
(31 December 2022: HK$86.49 million), representing
6.3% of the consolidated total asset of the Group
(31 December 2022: 3.6%).

Subsequent to the year end of 2023, all the charged
C.banner Shares were disposed of by accepting a
voluntary conditional cash offer (the “Offer”) made by
First Shanghai Securities Limited, for and on behalf of
Orchid Valley Holdings Limited in respect of the charged
C.banner Shares at the offer price of HK$0.16 per share.
Total gross proceeds from the disposal were amounted
to HK$20.96 million.

Valuation of the carrying amount of the SP Note was
based on the closing price as at 31 December 2023
of 131,000,000 C.banner Shares (31 December 2022:
131,000,000) that secured the SP Note of HK$0.155
per share (31 December 2022: HK$0.164) and a lack of
marketability discount of nil (31 December 2022: 30%
discount) was applied. As a result of the Offer discussed
above, no lack of marketability discount was applied for
the valuation as at 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

US Dollar Debt Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was the only investor
of this fund and all the debt investments in this fund were
regarded as proprietary trade in the Group’s financial
statements. The details of the debt investment in the US
Dollar Debt Fund were as follows:

US$2.69 million (face value) of 9% guaranteed bond was
issued by CFLD Cayman Investment Ltd. maturing on 31 July
2021 ("CFLD Note”). On 9 March 2021, the Group received a
notification from our fund administrator that the CFLD Note
was defaulted due to a cross default terms of the CFLD Note.
On 24 January 2023, a restructuring scheme was approved
by the court, under which the creditors were offered with
different new bonds for selection by 9 January 2024 to
exchange for the CFLD Note.

During the Year Under Review, the Group had submitted
an application for the selection of new bonds under the
restructuring scheme, and in January 2024, the Group has
received the new bonds. Independent valuer was engaged
to assess the expected credit loss of the CFLD Note with
reference to the new bonds received by the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the CFLD
Note was HK$0.72 million (31 December 2022: HK$2.31
million), after a provision for impairment loss from expected
credit loss assessment as at 31 December 2023 of HK$20.29
million (31 December 2022: HK$18.68 million), representing
0.2% of the consolidated total assets of the Group
(31 December 2022: 0.6%).
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HK Dollar fund linked note

On 26 June 2021, the Group through its subsidiary, OCI
Capital Limited (“the Noteholder”), invested HKD20,000,000
in Total Return OCI Investment Fund SPC — OCI Real
Estate Fund I SP (Class B) Linked Notes issued by Essence
International Products & Solutions Limited (“the Issuer”)
due 2022 (subject to extension) comprising, for designation
purpose only, 20,000,000 units of the Notes with a principal
amount of HKD20,000,000, each linked to the Class B
participating shares in a segregated portfolio entitled “OCI
Real Estate Fund | SP” (“the Fund”) of OCI Investment Fund
SPC, an exempted segregated portfolio company established
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Cash dividend is
expected to be 8% per annum to be received semi-annually
pursuant to the applicable PPM Supplement of the Fund at
that time. The Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the relevant
dividend amount (if any) on each dividend payment date.
Furthermore, the Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the
relevant extension fee balance (if any) within five (5) business
days following the actual receipt of the extension fee balance
by the Issuer pursuant to the PPM Supplement of the Fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
redeemed all investment in the said Notes either by cash or in
exchange of corresponding linked Class B participating shares
of the Fund. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the
Group's investment in the Fund was HK$4.62 million. During
the Year Under Review, all the investment in the Fund was
redeemed.

Income from the HK Dollar Fund Linked Note amounted
to HK$0.95 million was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2022, and income from the Fund amounted to
HK$0.34 million was recognised for the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equity Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
invested HK$14.80 million in the listed shares and warrants
of three listed Special Purpose Acquisition Companies
("SPACs") in the Stock Exchange with the prospect of
making capital gain when the SPACs go for De-SPACs within
a pre-defined time period after listing. As at 31 December
2023, the carrying amount of the investments in SPACs was
HK$12.63 million (31 December 2022: HK$13.63 million). A
net fair value loss on the investments in SPACs amounting to
HK$1.00 million was recorded for the Year Under Review (year
ended 31 December 2022: HK$1.17 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has one fixed-rate,
unsecured revolving facilities of US$100 million from Cheer
Hope Holdings Limited, one of the Group’s substantial
shareholders. The facilities have expired during the Year
Under Review. The outstanding principal amount of the loan
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 amounted to Nil and US$6
million respectively.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
3.3% (31 December 2022: 37.5%), calculated based on
total amount of borrowings, amount due to a related party,
and lease liabilities of HK$9.14 million (31 December 2022:
HK$110.02 million) divided by total equity of HK$279.98
million (31 December 2022: HK$293.64 million) as at that
date.

The Group’s bank balances and cash (including time deposits)
as at 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$104.79 million
(31 December 2022: HK$230.57 million). Its total assets as at
the same date were HK$323.58 million (31 December 2022:
HK$417.56 million).
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The Group recorded net current assets of HK$263.35 million
(31 December 2022: HK$274.23 million) and inventories
increased from HK$6.26 million as at 31 December 2022 to
HK$6.72 million as at 31 December 2023. The current ratio of
8.0 times (31 December 2022: 3.4 times) is calculated based
on the current assets of HK$300.99 million (31 December
2022: HK$389.02 million) over the current liabilities of
HK$37.63 million (31 December 2022: HK$114.79 million).

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the issued
capital of the Company was HK$15.00 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
event after the reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Saved as disclosed in Fund Investment above and elsewhere
in this report, there is no other significant investment held at
31 December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the Year Under Review.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2024 AND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

In the year 2023, global economy has been gradually
recovering from the COVID-19, but it was still affected by
various uncertainties, including but not limited to, the high
interest rate and monetary tightening by major central
banks; worries about global economic outlook; the health
of Mainland China’s property sector; and geopolitical risks
related to certain overseas countries, etc. Looking ahead,
with the expectation of decline in interest rate in the year
2024, and the support from various policies of the Hong
Kong government (such as actively introducing talents and
foreign business and investments, relaxation of stamp duty
requirements on residential properties), the economy and
investment sentiments of the market will be improving.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimize its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realizing
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. Resources will also be
allocated to asset management in relation to debt investments
with high credit rating to suit different investors’ risk
appetite. During the year 2022, the Healthcare Investment
Fund was set up with a targeted capital commitment to be
raised ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion, and is
expected to invest in the healthcare industry. The fund raising
was in progress.

Crypto-assets have becoming increasingly popular.
Crypto-assets are not only acquired by individuals for
investment or speculative purpose. Certain corporates,
financial institutions and even government bodies have
started exploring the use of blockchain technology, and
central bank digital currencies may just be around the corner.
The Group will explore potential development opportunities
related to asset management of crypto-assets in order to
expand the Group’s asset management business.

On the other hand, in addition to the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng on 23
May 2022, the Group will continue to explore other potential
business in the PRC, such as establishing Qualified Domestic
Limited Partnership in the PRC, to enhance the Group’s
performance.

For trading of wines and beverages, the Group will keep
on with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories,
and to conduct marketing and promotion activities, such as
wine tasting campaigns, to boost sales.

In addition to the existing and afore-said businesses, the
Board will cautiously and diligently explore new potential
expansion opportunities in order to diversify income sources,
bring in profits and sustainable growth to the Group.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted (and its borrowings are
denominated) in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars while wine
trading billings are mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars, Euro
and Sterling Pound. However, the operations of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries are conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a
certain extent. Currently, the Group has no formal hedging
policies in place. The Group has not entered into any foreign
currency exchange contracts or derivatives to hedge against
the Group’s currency risks. However, the Group will continue
to closely monitor and manage its exposure to foreign
exchange and will consider engaging hedging instruments as
and when appropriate.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil). The
Board did not recommend any dividend payment for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no secured borrowings
were outstanding.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had an
outstanding commitment of RMB3,000,000 for the capital
injection to Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Directors are not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 1 employee
in the PRC and 25 employees in Hong Kong. The Group
has maintained good relationship with its staff and has not
experienced any major disruptions of its operations due to
labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical
benefits programme for its employees in Hong Kong. It
also contributed to the retirement insurance, medicare,
unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC for its employees
in the PRC.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with
their work performance and experience. The Board has
designated the duties of determining Directors’ service
contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses to the
remuneration committee of the Company.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of OCI
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard
of corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for
enhancing a high degree of accountability and transparency,
maintaining sound and effective internal control, improving
the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“Year"), the Company has complied with the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provisions as explained
below.

Under the code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing. During the
Year, Mr. Jiao Shuge was the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and the CEO from 18 May 2023 to 14 December
2023. This constituted a deviation from the code provision
C.2.1.
who was also appointed as the executive Director on 18 May
2023, led the Board and ensured that the Board worked
together as a whole and the decisions of the Board were
implemented. All important issues were discussed in a timely
manner on a fully informed basis and in the best interests
of the Company. Mr. Jiao Shuge also managed the strategic
development of business and operation of the Group while
the Group developed its business with his leadership in the
Board.

However, the Chairman and CEO, Mr. Jiao Shuge,

Following the appointment of Mr. Tang Nanjun as the CEO
with effect from 14 December 2023, the Company has
re-complied with this requirement.
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Code provision F.2.2 stipulates, among other things, that the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting, and
invite the chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. Due to other business
commitments, Mr. Jiao Shuge, who was the Chairman and
chairman of the Investment Committee of the Company (the
“Investment Committee”), and Dr. Lo Wing Yan William, who
was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), did not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 June
2023. Nevertheless, with the consent of the other Directors
present, Mr. Wu Guangze, who was the non-executive
Director and was familiar with the business operation of the
Group, chaired the annual general meeting and all other
members of the Investment Committee and the Remuneration
Committee attended the annual general meeting to answer
questions.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(2), 3.21 AND 3.25 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 December 2022 in relation to, among other
things, the non-compliance with Rules 3.10(2), 3.21 and
3.25 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer
must include at least one of the independent non-executive
directors with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. In
addition, Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, every
listed issuer must establish an audit committee comprising
non-executive directors only and the audit committee must
comprise a minimum of three members, at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. The audit committee must be chaired by an
independent non-executive director. Pursuant to Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules, an issuer must establish a remuneration
committee chaired by an independent non-executive director
and comprising a majority of independent non-executive
directors.

REZEFEZERABRAE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FPREBWRS

TFAMENF22RE(EP BB ETRELRER
REFAE UTHBFEZXZEST FHEZE
T REZEghkOEMNEMNZES(WER)
MEFELR BHARAEMEBAE X278
BZEBg([REZESDEITREHBEER
ymZzeag((FMZag ) ETREKCHELT
YEREARANR T -_=ZFA=-+=H
BITHNRRBFAEG - BEON EEMH
FEENRET ABAEBEEBKEENIE
HITESREEAATHRIBAFARAE M
KREZESRFNEZESNMBEMKEY
BERRAFASOEME-

B EFHiRBIES.10(2) ~ 3.21 K 3.25 1%

VIR AATN B A-_ZE-_—_F+ A=+
—HMRAE AR EBEESYBRB)REEST
R AIFE3.1002) 3.21 K325 - Bk £
BMAFEIIOQKE B2 EWMBTANESS
WEBRBRBREL—BBIYERTEST MEH
BYFPTESEREENEEER G
B EEERER I BIE LETRE
F321 S EMBEITAMEKILERIEH
TESHAKNEZZEE MEXRZES K
EREL=ZBKBAKR EdhEL—FEA
HLEMABEIIBRAMBENEENFE
ERASTHEETEEEERENBIIER
TEE - BRZECHERBIYIENTESE
FEF-RBELETHRNEI2MEK: BITAL
BN EMNEE S BBUERTEETER
FFE OKEBEANBIIRATESEHERZTH

29



30

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBHRS

Following the appointment of Mr. Chong Ka Yee as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee on 23 March 2023; and the
appointment of Dr. Lo Wing Yan William as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee on 23 March 2023,

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the Company has included at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

the Audit Committee has comprised the non-executive
Directors only and a minimum of three members, at
least one of whom is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and

the Remuneration Committee has been chaired by an
independent non-executive Director and has comprised
a majority of the independent non-executive Directors,
which meets the requirement under Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2023, the Board was comprised of Mr.
Jiao Shuge (Chairman) and Mr. Tang Nanjun (CEO) as the
executive Directors; Mr. Wu Guangze and Mr. Feng Hai as
the non-executive Directors; and Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr.
Li Xindan, Dr. Lo Wing Yan William and Mr Chong Ka Yee as
the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zheng Xiaosu
resigned as the non-executive Director on 31 March 2023
and Mr. Wei Bin resigned as the non-executive Director on 29
September 2023.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a
term of 3 years and are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Pursuant to code provision C.1.5 of the CG Code, the
Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of
their appointments and from time to time thereafter the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations, other significant commitments, and the identity
of the public companies or organisations involved.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, in particular,
(i) independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to
actively participate in the Board meetings; (ii) the number
of independent non-executive Directors must comply with
the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the
independent non-executive Directors shall devote sufficient
time to discharge their duties as a Director. Furthermore,
the Directors may access external independent professional
advice to assist their performance of duties at the expense of
the Company. The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanism on an annual basis.
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The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and is also responsible for the financial performance,
risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group
are delegated to the Group’s management. All Directors are
provided with updated information relating to corporate
governance and regulatory matters. During the Year, all
Directors were provided with monthly management updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Directors to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
functions with written terms of reference. The primary duties
are:

1. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

2.  To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

3. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

4.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and the Directors.

5. To review the Company’s compliance with code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and performed the
above-mentioned corporate governance functions.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this
annual report.
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Attendance record of meetings: &L F:
The attendance records of each Director at the various RAFE ZEEHFARATREHZR
meetings of the Company during the Year are set out as & & 5| T :
below:
Directors' attendance record of the board meetings,
committees meetings, and annual general meeting in 2023
CECCFEZEEE ZECCBRRRAFAGZESLRER
Annual Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment
general Committee Board Committee Committee Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
LT3 R#%8¢ HMzEe REZE%
REBEEAE g% Ezegd g3 g g3
Number of meetings LETR | 1 4 4 2 2 2
Executive Directors HnEs
Mr. Jizo Shuge EHELE o NIAZ & R 304 NIAT & B NAZ E 20
M. Tang Nanjun EHELL NATER  NATER  NATER  NARER  NATER  NATER
(appointed on 14 December 2023) (R=FzZ=%+ZA
THREZF)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Guangze REELE " N/AZ i PR 44 /A i PR NATE R 0N
Mr. Feng Hai RELE /1 NIAT i B I NATER NAT & B NIAT i B
Mr. Wei Bin Rint /1 NAT i B 34 NIAT i B NAT & R n
(resigned on 29 September 2023) (RZEZZENA
ZThARER)
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu g)Ext NAT B R N/AZ 8 F 24 N/AZ 8 F NARE R NAT B R
(resigned on 31 March 2023) (W-Bz-=%=AH
St-BEf)
Independent non-executive Directors  BUEHTEES
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EEmit " 44 414 20 0 NATER
Mr. Li Xindan I 17 414 44 22 22 NATE A
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William Ex{EL o 4/4 44 0N 0n NIAT i B
Mr. Chong Ka Yee ERALE /1 34 304 0 n NIAT & B
(appointed on 23 March 2023) (R-FT-=#=R
ZTZHEZf)

The Chairman also held a meeting with all independent

non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors during the Year.

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a

dedicated, diligent and proactive manner with reasonable

prudence. They have executed their duties in accordance with

statutory requirements, the Articles of Association and the

Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring

corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient time
and attention to all significant issues of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss
the ordinary business of the Company. Board meetings are
held to discuss the overall development, operation, financial
performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the
Board. Reasonable notice has been given to Board members
to give them an opportunity to attend. All Board members are
provided relevant documentation covering the subject matter
of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided
with sufficient information in a timely manner to review
and consider matters to be discussed at Board meetings and
also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to
attend in person. The Board held four Board meetings during
the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”), are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
Investment Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. Clear written terms of reference of
all the Board Committees are given to the respective members
of these Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set
out below:

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 2001. The
Company adopted a set of revised written terms of
reference for the Audit Committee in December 2022.
During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee is comprised of the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chong Ka Yee (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 March 2023)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, review and supervision of the
financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control policies and procedures of the Company.
The Audit Committee also acts as the communication
bridge between the Board and the external auditors in
relation to the planning and scope of audit work. The
appointment of members to the Audit Committee was
based on members’ breadth of experience in various
commercial sectors and professional knowledge of
financial reporting and general management.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held four
meetings to, among other things, discuss the pre-audit
planning, review interim results and annual results of
the Group, internal control and risk management issues,
the change of auditor of the Company and review the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee. The risk
management policies and procedures was adopted
in the year 2016 and the enterprise risk management
advising service and internal control review report were
prepared by an external advisor and were reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Details of non-compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules during the Year are set out in the paragraph headed
“Compliance with Rules 3.10(2), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules” above.

2. Remuneration Committee
The Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee which included changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in December
2022. During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee is comprised of the
following independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 March 2023)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan
Mr. Li Xindan
Mr. Chong Ka Yee
(appointed on 23 March 2023)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, determining the policy for
the remuneration of Directors, assessing performance
of Directors approving the terms of Directors’ service
contracts and reviewing and approving matters relating
to the share schemes as stipulated in Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
approves the remuneration packages with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During the Year, since there were no shares granted
under the share option schemes of the Company, no
material matters relating to them under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or
approved by the Remuneration Committee.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to, among other things, review and
recommend remunerations of the Directors and senior
management to the Board and review the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

3. Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
March 2012 and the Company adopted a set of revised
written terms of reference which included changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in December
2022. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee is comprised of the
following independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xindan
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William
Mr. Chong Ka Yee
(appointed on 23 March 2023)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
(i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (ii) to establish nomination policy to identify potential
directors by developing a list of desirable skills, perspectives
and experience; (iii) selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iv) to assess the independence of Independent
non-executive Directors; (v) make recommendations to
the Board; (vi) to review the nomination policy and board
diversity policy on regular basis; and (vii) to monitor the
implementation of the nomination policy and board diversity
policy and report in the corporate government report
annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following
procedures and processes in respect of the nomination of
Directors:

1. The Nomination Committee may select potential
candidates for nomination by: (i) inviting the Board to
nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its consideration;
or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by
the Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment
agencies to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;
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2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background
search on each potential candidates;

3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then
make recommendations of the suitable candidates for the
Board’'s consideration and approval. For the election of
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation to
Shareholders; and

4. Shareholders may also nominate candidates for election
as a Director in accordance with the procedures posted
on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service of the retiring
Director(s) to the Company and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, including but not limited
to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings;

2.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director(s)
continue(s) to satisfy the criteria of the Company; and

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to, among other things, consider the
re-appointment of the retired Directors, the appointment of
the Directors and review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.
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4.

Investment Committee

The Company established the Investment Committee
in February 2022 and the Company adopted a set of
written terms of reference in February 2022. During the
Year and up to the date of this report, the Investment
Committee is comprised of the following Directors:

Mr. Jiao Shuge (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guangze
Mr. Wei Bin
(resigned on 29 September 2023)

The primary duties of the Investment Committee include
(i) to advise from time to time on the Company’s
investment policies; (ii) to monitor the investment
activities and report the same to the Board; (iii) to
approve, review and assess the risks and returns
of investment projects; (iv) to review and evaluate
investment results and to take corrective actions when
necessary; (v) to consider such other projects and
matters relating to the Company’s investments; (vi) to
conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that contained in the constitutional documents of the
Company or imposed by laws, rules or regulations; and
(vii) to review the investment policy and to monitor the
implementation of the investment policy on regular
basis.

During the Year, the Investment Committee held two
meetings to consider the investment activities of the
Company and review the terms of reference of the
Investment Committee .

Following the cessation of Mr. Wei Bin as the
non-executive Director and the member of the
Investment Committee on 29 September 2023, the
membership of the Investment Committee has remained
vacant. The Company is in the process of identifying
suitable candidate(s) to fill the vacancy.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution
of its profits as dividends to the Shareholders.
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In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group’s
business and rewarding the Shareholders.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things,
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group

e the capital and debt level of the Group
e the general market conditions

e any working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future development plans of the Group

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group

e the liquidity position of the Group

e any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the
Group's lenders

e the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is
subject to from time to time

e any other relevant factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration
and payment of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong
Kong and the Articles of Association and any other applicable
laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding to duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials would also be provided to
newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. There
is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and report on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by the following means to develop
and refresh their knowledge during the Year. Mr. Chong Ka
Yee who was appointed as the independent non-executive
Director on 23 March 2023 and Mr. Tang Nanjun who was
appointed as the executive Director on 14 December 2023
confirm that they (i) have obtained the legal advice referred
to under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 30 March 2023
and 22 December 2023 respectively, and (ii) understand their
obligations as the Directors under the Listing Rules.
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Training received
B X a5

PHEBEOWRS

Directors

Bz

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Jiao Shuge EEEEE

Mr. Tang Nanjun

(appointed on 14 December 2023) +-A+WBEZT)

Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Guangze REERAE
Mr. Feng Hai BBEE
Mr. Wei Bin

(resigned on 29 September 2023) A=+ N A& )

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu

(resigned on 31 March 2023) “A=+—-HET)
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EERATE
Mr. Li Xindan ELEAE
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William EXkICEL

G o A

Mr. Chong Ka Yee

(appointed on 23 March 2023) “A-+=HEZH)
The topics on training mainly covered the Listing Rules update,
corporate governance, finance and industry specific regulations.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Following
enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or
she has complied with the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code for the Year.

Reading materials/attending training course
B8 E L4 (R =T = = F Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
B % & (R = F = = F /. Reading materials/attending training course

/N E 7+ (R =% = = F Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
H 3% 4E (W =T = = F Reading materials/attending training course
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SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

In compliance with Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG code, the
roles of the Chairman and the CEO positions are separated
and performed by different individuals, namely Mr. Jiao
Shuge and Mr. Tang Nanjun, respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the management of the
Board and the strategic developments of the Group. The CEO
is responsible for the Group’s day-to-day management of the
Group’s business and corporate administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors bring independent
judgement to the Board. Each independent non-executive
Director sent a written confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors have met the
qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications
and experience to ensure they are capable to perform their
duties and protect the interests of the stakeholders. Every
appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal
introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of
the Group’s business and operation, his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM"). In addition, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Furthermore, each Director, including those
appointed for a specific term or holding office as Chairman
and/or the CEO, are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of
individuals nominated as Director and senior management.
The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy
which is contained in the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee that sets out the selection criteria and
process in relation to nomination of Directors and aims to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional
qualifications and relevant work experience are provided at
the Board meeting to approve the proposed appointment
of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors are
mainly based on the candidate’s qualifications, experience,
professional knowledge, ethics and integrity.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In December 2022, the Board has adopted a set of revised
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) pursuant to which the Board considers a number of
aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, diversity of perspectives and length of
services in designing the Board’s composition. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. By adopting such
aspectes, it facilitates the Company to develop a pipeline
at candidates to the Board to achieve gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and to monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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As at 31 December 2023, Board diversification in terms of: NR—ZE-_=F+-A=+—RH EF€ %t
LR TIDEE D -
Gender % 5l
100%

Male B4

Age Group F i 4 5l

50% 38% 12%
50-59 60-69
Capacity & 17
25% 25% 50%

Executive Directors

BTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Length of Service inthe Board REEZ S R % &£
25% 63% 12%

7-9 years

0-3 years 0-3%F e

Nationality Bl &
100%

Chinese H

Educational Background # & 2 E
38% 38% 24%

Bachelor's degree 2+ RE Doctor’s degree

BrEE
Professional Experience B ¥ &£ &
25% 49% 13% 13%
Accounting Academic Biology
et 247 £
Market/Industry Experience 1 5 /1T ¥ & &
36% 25% 13% 13% 13%

Real Estate Educational | Technology, Mediaand

Investment &¥& Telecommunications
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During the Year, the Board, via the Nomination Committee,
conducted an annual review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that
the Board Diversity Policy has been properly implemented and

is effective.

Measurable Objectives
In terms of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, there are
the following measurable objectives:

(a)

to comply with the requirements as specified under the
Listing Rules from time to time in relation to composition
of the Board;

the number of independent non-executive Directors
appointed must not be less than three and must
represents at least one-third of the Board;

at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise;
and

must appoint a Director of a different gender on or
before 31 December 2024 to avoid single gender board.

As at 31 December 2023, with the exception of (d), all the
measurable objectives under the Board Diversity Policy have
been fulfilled.
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Gender Diversity
At Board level:

The proportion of female Board representation is a
measurable objective of the Company in assessing the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The Board
recognises the importance of the Board gender diversity for
enhancing the corporate governance system and strategic
decisions in the boardroom.

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, all
Board members are males. The Board will take opportunity to
increase the proportion of female members over time when
selecting and making recommendation on suitable candidates
for Board appointments to ensure that appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best
practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to
gender parity.

In order to achieve gender diversity on the Board level, the
Board will appoint at least one female Board member no later
than 31 December 2024.

At workforce level:

In striving to maintain gender diversity, similar considerations
are used when recruiting and selecting senior management
and general staff. As of 31 December 2023, a 58:42 male to
female gender ratio, being a measurable objective for gender
diversity, has been achieved in the workforce (including senior
management). Further information about the composition of
the Group’s workforce can be found in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board reviews the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy on a
regular basis and will review the progress on achieving these
objectives, developing successors to the Board, and the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Company took into account of (i) the
prevailing market conditions; (ii) the time commitment
requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the
experience, to ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract
and retain high calibre personnel without paying excessively.

Details of emoluments of Directors and the Five highest paid
Individuals as set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the Year in this and report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices of the Company
Secretary, Mr. Mak Kai Fung. Mr. Mak Kai Fung has
confirmed that he received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has adopted a new Articles of Association
by way of a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 23 June 2023. As up-to-date version of the
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no charge in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Company general meetings are valuable platform to allow
the Board to communicate with Shareholders and answer
questions regarding proposed resolutions. Individual
resolutions stipulated at general meetings for each substantial
issue and Board members are available to answer questions
raised by Shareholders.

The Board adopted a revised Shareholder’s communication
policy on 30 December 2022 aiming to provide Shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to
balanced and understandable information of the Company.
Information of the Group was disseminated to Shareholders
and investors as follows:

o Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all
Shareholders and other interested parties;

] Announce interim results and annual results on both
the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company; and
issue and publication of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

REZEFEZERABRAE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FPREBWRS

REBMENKRBRE
ARAIBERAGREZTTHERRBBLEE
EAFMRERBZREIHENEEFTARA KRR
ReERBEEAHBHEB/MARZR MEF
EXREHNGIFARGLERRER -

EEER T FTA=+THERMAKLE
FIMERRERABRR BEAEEREREER
EEARLERESHEBERINERNAEAR
AER - AEBMZEHSUTRAAEHRT
BREREES:

R N B b 25 BE R 7 X A

s EBMXMWULRARRBUMAMPRE
BLFERXEE MRETBRAMKEZ
FERBEAZRMNBEMLIERK
RABEK &

49



a0

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBHRS

e Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of
announcement as required by the Listing Rules and
pursuant to Inside Information Provisions under Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Procedures for directing Shareholders” enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary
by mail to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at
Level 23, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting following the
procedures set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
for an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director, for election as a new Director, the Shareholder must
deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 23, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact
information of the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to
be proposed). The Notice must also be accompanied by a
letter of consent (the “Consent Letter”) signed by the person
proposed to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Consent
Letter will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will forward the
relevant documents to the Nomination Committee and the
Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a
Director.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and believe these statements give a true and fair view
of the Group’s affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements
of the Group and to ensure they are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The Directors are also committed
to make appropriate announcements in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules, and to disclose all
information necessary for Shareholders to assess the financial
performance and other aspects of the Company.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited was appointed as
the external auditor of the Company for the Year and will
continue as such until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The annual consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year have been audited by Prism Hong Kong
and Shanghai Limited. The auditors’ responsibilities for the
Group'’s financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including
but not limited to, their independence and objectivity of the
external auditor of the Company. During the Year, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and approve the engagement of the external auditor
to perform statutory audit and approved their fees and
re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

The fees of the external auditor of the Company for audit and
non-audit services for the Year amounted to HK$0.7 million
and nil respectively.

These was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of Prism Hong
Kong and Shanghai Limited as the external auditor during the
Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and to review
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal
control systems are designed to meet the Group's particular
needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to
eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives.
Practicable and effective control systems and procedures
have been implemented by the Group to enhance internal
control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and
the adequacy of such systems at least annually.
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During the Year, the executive Directors are responsible for
the overall risk management functions. During the Year,
given the current operation of the Group, no internal audit
department has been set up within the Group. In order
to comply with Code Provision D.2.5 of the CG Code,
the Board has retained an external advisor with a view
to facilitating adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs, financial reporting
functions, ESG performance and reporting, Listing Rules
compliance and quality of internal control review to satisfy
the Group’'s internal audit function as required by Stock
Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the Year. The
Audit Committee members, together with the management,
have reviewed, considered and discussed all the findings and
recommendations of the review, and the Audit Committee is
satisfied that the risk management system and the internal
control system of the Group was effective and adequate
during the Year. Pursuant to the system improvement
recommendations made by the external advisor, the Group
will continue to improve its internal management and control
systems.

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and the “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” section
contained in the Report of the Directors in this annual report.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the annual internal
control review conducted by external advisor to assist the
Group, and reviews of the internal audit function performed
by executive management, respective Board Committees and
the Board, the Audit Committee and the Board are of the
view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the Year.
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The management and various departments conducted periodic
self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control
policies and procedures. During the Year, management of the
Company had conducted an internal control review on the
systems of internal control which is in compliance with the
CG Code for the mechanisms of the Group’s human resource
management and information technology and follow up the
highlighted areas in the previous years to ensure compliance
with procedures laid down by the Company and the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management are effective and there are no
irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that
suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management system.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirements. It also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information.

Key procedures in place include:

] define the requirements of periodic financial and
operational reporting to the Board and Company
Secretary to enable them to assess inside information
and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

o controls the access to inside information by employees
on a need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the
confidentiality of the inside information before it is
properly disclosed to public;

J procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, analysts,
etc. in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which
applies to all the directors, employees and those who deal
with the Company p (including but not limited to investors,
customers and suppliers etc.). The policy is designed
to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group
the actual or possible improprieties in operation, corporate
financial reporting, internal control or other areas.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received
under the whistleblowing policy are reported to the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The identity of the whistle-blower
and all the concerns or irregularities raised will be treated
with confidence and every effort will be made to ensure that
confidentiality is maintained throughout the process. The
Company is also committed to ensuring the protection of the
whistle-blower against detrimental or unfair treatment.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company is committed to achieving the highest
standards of integrity and ethical behavior in conducting
its business. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral
part of the Company’s corporate governance framework.
The anti-corruption policy sets out the specific behavioral
guidelines that the Group’s personnel and business partners
must follow to combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy
is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to align with
the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practices. In line with this commitment and to ensure
transparency in the Group’'s practices, the Anti-corruption
Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group employees
and third parties dealing with the Group.

On behalf of the Board
OCl International Holdings Limited

Jiao Shuge
Executive Director (Chairman)

27 March 2024
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Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Shuge, alias Jiao Zhen, aged 58, is the executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”).
He is the chairman of the Investment Committee of the
Company (“Investment Committee”). He was also the
non-executive Director from 8 March 2021 to 18 May 2023
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ")
from 18 May 2023 to 14 December 2023. Mr. Jiao received
a Master degree in Engineering from the No. 2 Research
Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics (f7
Z= i R T % & % — # %€ Bt) and a Bachelor degree in
Mathematics from Shandong University (Ll 3 X £2).

Mr. Jiao is currently a director and chief executive officer
of CDH China Management Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has
a broad range of experience serving as director of various
listed companies. Mr. Jiao was a non-executive director
from February 2004 to April 2012 and as an independent
non-executive director from April 2012 to December 2021 of
China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (stock code: 2319.
HK), a non-executive director from April 2006 and as the
deputy chairman from November 2016 to August 2018 of
WH Group Limited (stock code: 0288.HK), the chairman and
a non-executive director of Mabpharm Limited (stock code:
2181.HK) since July 2018, and an independent non-executive
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (stock code:
1055.HK) from June 2015 to April 2021, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Jiao also served as
a director of Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. GO EEK E#EE IR 1D AR A 7)) (stock code:
000895.57) from August 2012 to August 2021, a director of
Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd. (8 & I &l 25 & 15 B R A &)
(stock code: 300630.5Z) since June 2015 and was a director
of Joyoung Company Limited (/1. % 8% 3 B BR 2 7)) (stock
code: 002242.57) from September 2007 to April 2020, all
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Jiao is also the chairman and an executive director of Ningbo
Akin Electronic Technology Co, Ltd (EF R LT F R &
f& 15 B R A 7)) since March 2016, a company listed on the
National Equmes Exchange and Quotations. He served as the
vice general manager of the direct investment department of
China International Capital Corporation Ltd. (7 Bl Bl B8 & R
B R A 7)) from December 1995 to August 2002.
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Mr. Tang Nanjun, aged 58, is the executive Director and the
CEO.

He graduated from the Department of Mechanical
Engineering at Beijing Institute of Technology in 1988,
obtaining a Bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Currently, Mr. Tang is the chairman of the board of directors
of Newsky Technology (Holdings) Limited, which is mainly
a software service provider in People’s Republic of China
("PRC™), providing software development services, technical
services, information technology consulting and planning
services and maintenance-related services to domestic banks
and financial institutions in PRC.

Mr. Tang has over 27 years' of extensive experience as
senior management in various companies. He served various
positions, including the chairman of the board of directors
and the director of Newsky Investment (Holdings) Limited,
from 1996 to 2009 and from 2009 to 2017 respectively;
the general manager and the chairman of the board of
directors of Xiamen Newsky Software Co., Ltd., the shares
of which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600687), from 2000 to 2001 and from 2000 to 2002
respectively; the chairman and secretary of the board of
directors of Powerise Information Technology Co., Ltd., the
shares of which were listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000787), from 2006 to 2007 and in 2006
respectively; the director of Xinzhi Technology Co., Ltd.* (37
B R D AR A7) (currently known as Deluxe Family
Co., Ltd.), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600503) from 2005 to 2006;
and the chairman of the board of directors, executive
director, general manager and manager of Beijing Newsky
Hechuang Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (it = #1 F & &l
= B ir A R A A]) from 2011 to 2018.

*  For identification purpose only
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guangze, aged 46, is the non-executive Director
and a member of the Investment Committee. He was also the
executive Director from 8 March 2021 to 18 May 2023 and
the CEO from 11 December 2020 to 18 May 2023. He is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wu obtained a Master of Science degree from the
University of Reading in 2001 and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Hertfordshire in 2000. Mr.
Wu is the managing partner of China Consumer Capital
Partners Limited (“CCC") since 2010. He has over 14 years
of experience in international investment banking and
private equity investment. He is familiar with regulations in
China and international capital market and well-versed in
the consumer and retail sectors in China with strong fund
operating experience. As the managing partner of CCC,
Mr. Wu is experienced in formulation of funds, merger and
acquisition, and follow by the execution of his strategic plans,
the corporate value are enhanced. Projects led by Mr. Wu
include Wumart Stores, Dmall, B&Q China, NP Entertainment,
YL Entertainment & Sports, Linekong Interactive, Womai
COFOC, C.banner, Benlai, Mixblu, Etonkids, etc. Prior to
joining CCC, he was a vice president of Deutsche Bank
Hong Kong's Investment Banking Department from 2006 to
2009 when he was a key member of the consumer industry
group and led IPOs of several well-known consumer goods
companies.

Mr. Wu was a non-executive director of C.banner International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Feng Hai, aged 46, is the non-executive Director. He was
also appointed as an executive Director and the Chairman
from 11 November 2016 to 24 April 2019 and appointed
as the executive Director from 31 October 2020 to 18 May
2023.

Mr. Feng holds a Master degree in Management Science from
Fudan University and was awarded both Bachelor degree
of Law and Bachelor of management degree from Nankai
University in China. Mr. Feng has over 15 years of experience
in private equity and investment banking in China.

Mr. Feng currently serves as deputy general manager of
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd.
("Orient Securities Capital”). Mr. Feng started his career
in Shanghai office of Sinochem Corporation, and has
subsequently served at Orient Securities Capital, Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities Co., Ltd. and Citi Orient Securities
Co., Ltd. as an investment banker. Mr. Feng is a sponsor
representative registered under China Securities Regulatory
Commission and Securities Association of China.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. He is a
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and the Renumeration Committee of the Company (the
“Renumeration Committee”).
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Mr. Tso graduated from University of Cambridge with a
Bachelor and a Master degree in Land Economy, majoring
in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the
founder of the China Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior
to establishing CMS, based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked as
an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China
Real Estate Fund, a joint venture real estate private equity
platform sponsored by China Everbright Limited (stock code:
0165), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and Ashmore Group PLC (LSE stock code: ASHM).
Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also worked at
Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial Real Estate team where
he was principally involved in the firm’s principal investing
activities in Asian real estate. He also worked at the HSBC's
Global Capital Markets — ABS & Structured Bonds Team
where he was principally involved in the bank’s securitisation
business. As for community services, Mr. Tso has been invited
to become the 11th session member of the China People’s
Political Consultative Conference Beijing Haidian District, the
10th, 11th and 12th session member of the Beijing Youth
Federation, the 3rd and 4th session member of the Beijing
Overseas Friendship Association Youth Committee, the
8th session council member of the Beijing Haidian District
Overseas Friendship Association, the Innovation Committee
Vice Chairman and a council member of the HK Professionals
(Beijing) Association, an executive member of the Hong
Kong Internet Professional Association (iProA) and the board
member of the Self-Storage Association.

Mr. Tso was an independent non-executive director of the
following companies, Da Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock
code: 1580), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, Shi Shi Services Limited (Formerly known as
Hang Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Grand
Peace Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8108), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Xindan, aged 58, is appointed an independent
non-executive Director in December 2020. He is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Li holds a PhD in Finance, Professor, Doctoral Supervisor,
and Special Allowance Expert of the State Council. He was
a professor of School of Economics and Management of
Southeast University and Dean of the School of Engineering
and Management of Nanjing University. He is currently
the Dean of the New Finance Research Institute of Nanjing
University, the Deputy Director of the Humanities and
Social Sciences Academic Committee of Nanjing University,
the Director of the Academic Committee of the School of
Engineering Management and the Director of the Financial
Engineering Research Centre of Nanjing University. Mr. Li is
also the Director of the Expert Committee of Evaluation of
Science and Technology Innovation Board System, a member
of SSE Index Committee, Standing Director of the China
Finance Academy, the chairman of Jiangsu Capital Market
Research Association, and the vice chairman of Jiangsu
Association of Science and Technology Innovation.

Mr. Li is currently served as an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd (stock code: 600919. SH),
Soochow Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601555.SH) and
Nanjing Securities Co. Ltd. (stock code: 601990.5H), These
three companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of
C.banner International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
an independent non-executive director of Yoozoo Games
Co., Ltd (stock code: 002174.5Z) a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3678) a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Lo Wing Yan William, aged 63, is appointed an
independent non-executive Director in July 2021. He is also
a chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Dr. Lo
is an experienced executive in the TMT (technology, media
and telecommunications) and the consumer sectors. He has
held senior positions in the past in China Unicom, Hongkong
Telecom, Citibank HK, I.T Limited and South China Media
Group. Dr. Lo graduated from Cambridge University with
a M.Phil. Degree in Pharmacology and a Ph.D. degree in
Molecular Neuroscience in the 80’s. He started his career in
McKinsey & Company Inc. as a management consultant.

Dr. Lo currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of a number of public companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, including Dr. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Television Broadcasts
Ltd (Stock code: 511), CSI Properties Limited (Stock code:
497), Jingrui Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1862). Dr. Lo is
also an independent director of Regencell Bioscience Holdings
Limited (Stock code: RGC) which is listed on the NASDAQ.

Dr. Lo also served as an independent non-executive director
for following companies, including SITC Int’'l Holding
Company Limited (Stock code: 1308) from September 2010
to October 2020, Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 0933) from June 2019 to December 2020, Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Ltd (Stock code: 0404) from June
2018 to September 2019, Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3301) from January 2016 to June 2019, South
Shore Holdings Limited (Stock code: 577) from June 2019 to
November 2022 and Oshidori International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 622) from June 2021 to July 2023. Dr. Lo was
the chairman in SMI Holdings Group Limited (Stock code:
0198) from January 2019 to April 2019. Dr. Lo was also an
independent non-executive director of Nam Tai Property
Inc. (Stock code: BTP) from July 2003 to November 2021,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Dr. Lo is
also the founding governor of the Charles K. Kao Foundation
for Alzheimer's disease and the ISF Academy as well as the
present chairman of Junior Achievement HK.
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Mr. Chong Ka Yee, aged 40,was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023. He is also
a chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chong is graduated from The University of Melbourne in
Australia with a Bachelor degree in Commerce in 2004 and
he is currently a member of CPA Australia and a CFA Charter
Holder. He has been in the investment banking industry for
more than 15 years. Mr. Chong has extensive experience in
the area in financial management, capital markets, corporate
finance and corporate management through working in listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chong was the chief executive officer of CSFG
International Securities Limited, a subsidiary of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412)) and he was
the group executive vice president of Mason Group Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 273)) and the chief executive officer of Mason
Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mason
Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Chong was also the senior vice
president of leveraged and acquisition finance department
of Haitong International Securities Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 665)).

Mr. Chong was a non-executive director of companies listed
on Stock Exchange including Million Stars Holding Limited
(Stock code: 8093) and Pak Tak International Limited (Stock
code: 2668).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu is the chief operating officer of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Zheng holds a Bachelor degree in Mathematics,
Accounting and Financial Management from Loughborough
University in the United Kingdom. Ms. Zheng is well
experienced in merger and acquisition, direct investment,
investment banking and asset management in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zheng served as the non-executive Director from February
2017 to March 2023. She was also the managing director and
the director of CCBI Investment Limited from February 2021
to March 2023 and CCB International Asset Management
Limited from November 2008 to January 2021, both of
which are ultimately controlled by China Construction Bank
Corporation, which is listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lui Kwok Wai has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company since November 2020. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and the Managing
Director and Responsible Officers of OCIl Asset Management
Company Limited, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. He manages SFC Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9
regulated activities and also acts as the overall management
oversight and the manager-in-charge of key business line
functions. Mr. Lui is focusing on company management, fund
investment & capital market area, and business development.

Mr. Lui obtained a bachelor’'s degree of Science in
Engineering (Environmental Engineering) from the University
of California, San Diego in 2013.
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Mr. Lui has extensive experience in capital market and
corporate finance. He served as the Senior Vice President
of the leverage & acquisition finance division of Mason
Securities Limited from October 2016 to July 2020. Mr. Lui
was responsible for margin finance, general offer finance,
merge & acquisition projects, asset management, advising on
securities trading and funds investment, as well as issuance of
investment research report.

Mr. Lui has served as a non-executive director of Wan Kei
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1718) since January
2024 and also served as a non-executive director of China
International Development Corporation Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
264), from February 2017 to March 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mak Kai Fung was appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the Process Agent in
November 2023. Mr. Mak is an associate member of both
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Mak holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws from Manchester
Metropolitan University and a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from Open University of Hong Kong (currently
known as Hong Kong Metropolitan University) and he has
over seven years of experience in corporate secretarial field.
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OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
“We"” and “Our”, and together with its subsidiaries,
hereinafter referred to as our “Group”) hereby presents this
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report (the
“ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year
2023", the “Reporting Period”). The ESG Report summarizes
our initiatives, strategies and objectives relating to ESG issues,
describes our vision and commitment to the fulfilment of our
corporate social responsibilities, and provides an overview on
our Group's performance, management policies, mechanisms,
and measures in relation to the environmental and social
related matters.

OBJECTIVES

To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix C2
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Main Board Listing Rules
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"HKEx"), we have made relevant disclosures relating to the
material ESG issues identified in this ESG Report pursuant
to the Mandatory Disclosure Requirements and “Comply or
explain” Provisions, include General Disclosure requirements
and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of the ESG Reporting
Guide. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers that our Group has complied with the requirements
and provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
We applied the following reporting principles in the
preparation of this ESG Report:

Materiality

We engage with our stakeholders to identify and assess ESG
issues that matter most from their perspectives. We assess the
materiality of these ESG issues based on the corresponding
risks posed on the sustainability on our business. For further
details, please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools, and
source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective
sections in this ESG Report.
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Balance

We avoided intentional selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that might inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment to provide an unbiased picture of our performance.

Consistency

We applied consistent methodologies as those adopted
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year 2022") for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

REPORTING SCOPE

During Year 2023, our Group was principally engaged in
asset management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, securities trading and investments, trading
of wines and other beverages. The ESG Report discloses our
Group's performance on environmental and social aspects of
the entire of our Group’s businesses.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
to society and the importance of ESG to the corporate
sustainable development. Consequently, we integrate ESG
concepts into our corporate culture and daily operations
where practicable whilst balancing the cost of such
integration against tangible returns. The Board oversees
ESG and review the materiality of ESG issues, practices and
assume the overall responsibilities. Meetings will be held at
least annually and constant review will be conducted at least
annually in coming years to monitor and oversee the progress
against goals and targets for addressing climate-related
issues. ESG issues are identified and evaluated for material
risks posed to our Group. Once identified, the Board will set
up the ESG management measures and approach to react
and mitigate the risks from these material ESG-related issues.
Our management would review the ESG performance of our
Group as well as gathering feedback from the employees
regarding our Group's ESG visions and strategies then report
the results to the Board. As for our Group’s environmental
performance, including its impact to the surroundings will
be reported to the Board at least annually and performance
at social aspects will be reported at least annually in regular
meetings with the Board.
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Undoubtedly, there will be challenges in the ever-changing
business landscape, yet we are determined to do our part in
the ESG journey to bring a positive impact to the community.
We are committed to maintaining and upholding a high
standard of governance over our ESG journey, with a view to
safeguarding the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees and other stakeholders.

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ESG forms a crucial part of the risk management and internal
control systems of our Group, the Board is responsible for
overseeing our ESG strategy and reporting, and overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems to address the ESG-related issues. The ESG related
responsibilities have been further delegated from the Board
to the management and the functional department. Through
the adoption of the top-down management approach,
our Group will be committed to promoting ecological and
environmental protection, thus proving the effectiveness of
our ESG management approach.

We established following teams led by the Board to determine
and manage ESG issues, their responsibilities are shown as
follows:

The Board
o Has overall responsibility for overseeing and approving
our ESG policies, strategies and reporting;

J Adopts top-down management approach in managing
ESG issues;

] Delegates the ESG-related responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and Senior Management;

o Sets up ESG management approach and strategy;

J Ensures appropriate ESG-related goals and targets has
been set up;

J Conducts continuous review of ESG performance and
the progress on achievement of ESG-related goals and
targets; and

o Reviews and approves ESG report.
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Audit Committee

Identifies, evaluates and determines ESG related risks
through risk-assessment;

Ensures appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems related to ESG matters; and

Reports to the Board on ESG related matters and issues
identified.

Senior Management

Designs, implements and monitors the risk management
and internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Ensures compliance with legal requirements related to
ESG matters;

Develops and supervises the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

Sets up and reviews the achievement of ESG-related
goals and targets as well as objectives;

Monitors the progress and performance of ESG
initiatives;
Identifies key stakeholders and prioritizes their ESG

Concerns;

Reports to the Board on ESG work (including the
progress of ESG-related goals and targets); and

Prepares and submits the ESG Report to the Board for
approval.

Departments and Business Units

Implement the ESG objectives, policies and measures;

Report to the management on ESG work and assists
them for preparing ESG report; and

Collect feedback and ESG concerns from stakeholders.
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In order to implement our Group’s sustainable development
philosophy, our strategy is to comply with all relevant laws
and regulations applicable to our scope of business and to
continuously improve our environmental management of
every aspect towards the industry best practice. We also pay
close attention to stakeholders’ demands and established a
diversified communication channel to collect and response
to their concerns. Through the well-defined governance
structure and communication channels, we could identify and
prioritize key ESG related-issues that are closely related to
our business during the materiality assessment process and
to ensure that the ESG strategy is closely aligned with our
overall business strategy.

CONTACT US

Our Group respects your view on this ESG Report. Should you
have any opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to share
your opinion by mail to our Group's principal office at Level
23, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong, China.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Our Group recognises the expectation and feedback from our
stakeholders, which are vital for sustainable development of
our Group. During Year 2023, our Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our Group’s business. Key
stakeholders include shareholders and investors, government
and regulatory authorities, customers, suppliers, employees
and communities. Our Group continued to understand
the key ESG concerns of our key stakeholders through
various communication channels and platforms, such as
communication meetings and corporate website etc., to
promote and adjust the strategy of sustainable development.
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The following table shows the communication channels and
management response to the stakeholders’ expectation and

concerns:

Stakeholders
HHE

Expectations and Concerns

HMERBEIER

2023 Annual Report

TREJNEFHNERERBEIETENBEAER
BNMEEREMEE:

Communication Channels and
Management Responses
BERENEEERE

Internal key stakeholders
ABETEFHE

Employees

7l
0

External key stakeholders
HNBEEFHDE
Government and regulatory
Authorities

BEMEE®E
g

e labour rights

e Career development

e Remunerations and benefits

e Occupational health and safety

e Respecting all employees and
ensuring fair treatment

s LT HRER

s BXUE

o FBMEM

s BERERRE

c BEMARE HRAFHE

e Compliance with laws and
regulations

e Support local economic growth

e Fulfill tax obligation

o BFIERNMER
s XFMTKRBEIER
s BTIMBEME

e Regular management
communications and performance
review

e Employee communication meetings

e Employee activity, trainings and
voluntary activities

e Email

e Supporting career growth and
providing internal training

e Pay attention to occupational health
and safety

e Establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration scheme

e FHIHEEIRERBREXRTM

s RERREHE

s EEIES B REREEE

o FIE

s XHEEBERR RHAIME
Ell

e TERERELL R

e BYRNF ABNMAEBRFHOFH
B 58 %

e Regulate compliance with local laws
and regulations

e Regular information reporting

e Pay tax on time, and in return
contributing to society

s EEEBTEMEARLEARNBMR

s THEM®SE

e RIFHBIALBBEHE
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Shareholders and investors

BRRREEE

Customers

Suppliers

HER

Communities

At &
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Return on investment
Corporate governance
Compliant operation
Information transparency
&ﬁ@ﬁ

j = L\
BREE
BREBEHE

Outstanding products and services
Identifying clients’ needs and
improving product and service
quality

Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests

BEEmERE

THREFFZE FHENZEMNK
RBEE=
EEXFALE - REEFPMA

Stable demand

Good relationship with the
Company

Corporate reputation

Fair competition/equal rivalry
FRIBE

BN AR R 0T R R
TrRES

REBFE FEBRF

Environmental protection
Community contribution
Economic development

RERE
HEm R

1w

BRI -HEKEBHRS

Annual general meeting and other
general meetings

Annual and interim report
Announcements and circulars
BRERBERGRAEMKRRAE
FRERPHERS

N E KR K

Customer satisfaction surveys and
feedback form

Customer service hotline and email
Company website

Phone

Mailbox

Social media platforms
EFmEERAEMBERR
BEF RS 2R & B

NS E R

B

A8

R A

Supplier meeting and events
Establish and maintain strong and
long-term relationship with suppliers
Engagement and cooperation

Select suppliers with due care
HEBSZENED
HEEREYRRERBE AR
B 8 1%

2HEREE

BRAEEENER

ESG reports

Announcements

Company website

Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy,
nurturing virtue and values

RE - HgkER/RE

e

NIRRT
REREERREDAES &Y
EHEESR
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Materiality assessment was conducted in accordance with
the expectation and feedback from our key stakeholders.
Based on our assessment, the management of our Group
prioritises compliance with laws and regulations, economic
performance, product responsibility, employee right, and
energy consumption and efficiency as material aspects of our
long-term sustainability. Effective internal control systems
on these aspects are reinforced with the aim of enhancing
efficiency of operations and generating the environmental
and social benefits to our stakeholders.

We adopted the following process to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues:

Step 1: identify the ESG-related issues

o The issues are identified based on the disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
C2 to the Listing Rules, the business characteristics of
our Group and the ESG reports of the industry peers

Step 2: prioritise the ESG-related issues

e The management collects feedback from stakeholders in
daily operation

e  The management takes into account the materiality to
stakeholders and materiality to business in prioritising
the issues

Step 3: determine material ESG-related issues

e The issues with higher priority were identified as
material issues

S2MHTG
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Materiality matrix

ERMER

High
=
Qualifications and Compliance with laws
d regulati
Customers privacy protection professional conduct ga% :;?; g?;;i
1RFEE S AL EERELERT =
Anti-corruption and anti-fraud \
pras s
RESREER Customers satisfaction ECO”O”“( performan(e
EERBE
Product responswblhty
EmE
L clissuics Energy consumption and efficienc
Remunerations and benefits Community contribution BRER ers managemem | o A«b:@:ﬁpﬁgﬁix i
g HRRIER) AL AR 8 e
e}
S
El:
© W -
“ g
o R
g [ Attention to community
B e
SHk BEME Impact of climate change
g-;a SR e
S
g Occupational health and workplace safety
= BRRFERTESMLS
Prevention of child and forced labour
ByiEE 2iaL
PEETRBEST Environmental awareness of employees
8 TIRREH
Waste management \.
BENER Employee training and development
BT EE
Low Importance to the Group High
& HEMNERY =

The top five material ESG-related issues are shown as follows:

ARERE HEREAMBNERNEET

2N
ESG issues Reasons of why they are material
RE HERERZE HEEMNWEREREAE
1. Compliance with laws Compliance to ensures that businesses operate in an environmentally responsible

and regulations

1. FERENKER

2. Economic performance

2. BRI

manner and demonstrates our commitment to responsible business practices, fair
treatment to our employees, and the well-being of customers and communities.

BRPENERBEAENIAEGREE TRAKXRMEIEXENNEL -
HEINMRAFHFBUREREP ML B A -

Economic performance is closely correlated to value creation for shareholders and
stakeholders. Sustainable returns on investment can attract and retain investors.
KERBEABRRALFHEANEEBELEEEABA AIFENKER R R
SIRBBREE -
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ESG issues
B - HEREREE

Reasons of why they are material

HEEMNER

S Product responsibility

3. EmEMT

4. Employee rights

4. 8 T #H

5. Energy consumption
and efficiency

Product responsibility ensures our Group prioritize the safety and well-being of
our customers.
EmBERARTIEEREFNLZERBAREBAL -

Employee rights encompass equal opportunities, non-discrimination, and free
from harassment or abuse to create respectful work environment that values the
well-being and dignity of all employees.

BERNBERETEHRE REALEXBEIET NI EERMEREE
BANEEXEENITIFRIE-

Energy consumption is a significant contributor to greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions and climate change. Climate change will increase the chance of

extreme weather which will affect our Group’s operations.

5. BERIBEFE R REE
gFKE

Our Group confirmed during the Reporting Period that it
had set up suitable and efficient internal control systems
and management policies for ESG matters, and that the
information included in this ESG Report complies with the
guidelines set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide.

OUR GOAL

While developing its business, we are committed to
improving its business operation management. We also set
environmental and social goals for the sustainability of our
business and our goals are shown as follows:

J While promoting the steady growth of our business, our
Group regards social and environmental responsibility as
one of the core values in its business operations;

J Key environmental concern of our Group is energy
consumption and corresponding GHG emissions during
the provision of securities trading and investments, asset
management, investment and financial advisory services
and wine trading businesses;

RERERE T EHURE R E(
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. The goal/target of our Group related to environmental
issues is to maintain stable energy efficiency;

J Key social concern of our Group is safety and well-being
of employees as they are the foundation of business
growth;

e  The goal/target of our Group related to social issues
is to maintain safe working environment and maintain
close relationship with employees:

Our management teams regularly update the Board on the
achievement of KPI target which include the environmental
and the social goals. The management evaluates the ESG
performance through regular reports provided by each
department or business units and reports the evaluated
results to the Board. The Board reviews the achievement of
objectives and reviews the progress and effectiveness of the
related governance matters. Meanwhile, the Board continues
to monitor the risks posed to our Group from these material
ESG related-issues. As the business continues to develop,
the Board has been paying attention to new ESG-related
issues and will continue to oversee ESG-related work to keep
abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements of HKEx.

We are committed to undertake ESG responsibilities and
improving our ESG performance by upholding good corporate
governance standards, implementing environmentally friendly
measures, responding to stakeholders’ expectation with
practical actions and promoting the sustainable development
of our Group.

REZEFEZERABRAE

BRI -HEKEBHRS

s AEEERBEEHBENEREEER
RIFREMNERBE

s AEEMNIZHEHIRSEENZEM
B ARREFREMHBROER

s AEFHEHESZEHEBENEREER
MERZEMNTERRILERBRITE Y
H) R R ¢

BN ERERESHMEES R MBARAN
EEEENERBRL ETERBRRENLESE
B - EEEEESHMIEBEMEHRD
THBRETERE HLEREBRKE LM
EFeREFIEER -EFTeRITBEENE
IEM - S ARFT B E R FEEHER R
R EFQHBEEERFEARE &
REREBEEHAKESFTRNER- BEZE
XXM ER EF@ —HEBRITHERE.
HehEnHBENTHEE UIHEEEESR
RE HERBEAMEBENITHFE UEKEFR
RBMHRMRR HLEREARERE -

BMENERES HEREARE L
B EEOLETARE EEBRRIEN
KEBTTOTHEEEHENNLURRE
EAREAREER RTRERMAGRR
HEREARE -

77



78

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2023 Annual Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKEIBHRS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emissions

Despite that our operation does not produce mass emissions
or impose significant negative impact to the environment,
our Group adopted and implemented relevant environmental
policies and is committed to minimize negative environmental
impacts through managing our business practice, carbon
footprint reduction and efficient resources usage. Hence,
our Group has established relevant emissions reduction
and energy saving initiatives to manage the emissions and
maintain green operations.

Our Group comply with the following significant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection:

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap 311)

J Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

J Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

o Environmental Protection law of the People’s Republic of
China

J Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control law of the
People’s Republic of China

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with environmental related laws
and regulations in relation to air and GHG emissions, water
and land discharge, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste that would have significant impact on
our Group.

A. RIFRE

ATBERR Y
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Air Emissions

Our Group did not own any vehicles, and we expect air
pollutants generated were insignificant during the Reporting
Period, hence, no related targets have been set.

GHG Emissions

The primary sources of GHG emissions of our Group
was energy indirect GHG emissions (scope 2) from the
consumption of purchased electricity, and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trips (Scope 3). Since we
did not own any vehicles, our Group does not have direct
GHG emission (scope 1). Our Group advocate green office to
reduce negative impact impose to the environment, we target
to gradually reduce the GHG emissions and we promote a
culture of energy saving culture in workplace with practices
mentioned below during the Reporting Period. For the year
ending 31 December 2024 (Year 2024), our Group target to
participate at least one environment campaign.

Our Group actively adopts the following energy management
and environment protection measures to achieve the target,
which are described below:

J For energy-saving and environment protection measures,
which are described in the section headed “Energy
Management” in aspect A2 Use of resources; and

J Reduce the frequency of business trips, encourage our
staff to utilize electronic communication channels, such
as conference call to reduce carbon emissions generated
during transportation.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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Set forth below our Group’s GHG emissions performance.

TXHIINANEENBEREBHNRR -

Emissions
EHYNESR
Year 2023 Year 2022
Indicator’ B Unit B ZEZ=fE C-—T-_fRE
Energy indirect GHG emissions EREZEAERE
(Scope 2) Hm(EE2)
- Purchased electricity -BEE tCO,e —ERES 18.37 15.63
Other indirect GHG emissions EHERERE
(Scope 3) B (& E3)
~ Business air travel ~RERBEE tCO. “afRER 2.63 0.42
Total GHG emission BRERBHENAE tCOe —ElkRES 21.00 16.05
Total GHG emissions intensity? BREREHNAE tCOe/employee —HLHKEE/
HE? = 0.81 0.49
Notes: M -
1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide 1. BERBHNBBEUN_SMLELBEEZY TR

equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “How to prepare
an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEx, and Sustainability Report 2022 published
by Hong Kong Electric Investments Limited.

2. As at 31 December 2023, our Group had a total of 26 (2022: 33)
employees. The data is also used for calculating other intensity
data.

Following the easing of travel restrictions after the COVID-19,
our Group involved more business travel to explore business
opportunities, and increase in electricity consumption in office
as a result of less work from home arrangement in Year 2023
as compared with that of Year 2022. Our Group recorded a
significant increase in the emissions intensity of total GHG
emissions for Year 2023 as compared to Year 2022, primarily
due to the resumption of business air travel.

Our Group endeavors to improve energy efficiency and
reduce energy consumption by adopting energy management
initiatives in the Section “Use of resources” in this ESG
Report.

BEBEEBETRR)EE R S P e ] 2
RE e hBOBRE-WHE - REFRER
BRERESDREEENREFR AR EMD
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Waste Water Discharge

Our Group's operations only produce domestic waste water
and do not generate industrial waste water. As the property
management company entirely controls water supply and
discharge, our Group cannot obtain water consumption
and discharge data from the management office. Therefore,
our Group cannot provide data on water consumption
and discharge. However, we believe that the domestic
waste water discharge amount of our Group is normal and
reasonable.

Waste Management

As our Group is a financial services provider with wine trading
business segment, there is no significant environmental
issue was noted and no hazardous waste was generated
in the business activities and therefore no relevant targets
have been set. As a responsible company, our Group will
engage qualified chemical waste collector to handle in case
if any hazardous waste generated to comply with relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by our Group were
mainly papers and solid wastes generated from our office
and wine warehouse, which were insignificant and had little
impact on the environment. To reduce the environment
impact, from Year 2023 onwards, our implemented measures
to reduce the amount of paper waste, and established
relevant policies to handle any non-hazardous waste
generated, which is Principles of reducing, reuse, and recycle
are applied as follow.

o Recommend double-sided paper use;
J Set defaults to double sided printing;

] Adopt electronic communications and filing to reduce
the use of paper; and

J Appoint certified third-party companies to recycle paper
generated within our operation.

REZEFEZERABRAE
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We placed effort to minimize the environmental impact
resulting from non-hazardous wastes from our business
operation, our Group’s total non-hazardous waste intensity
in Year 2023 maintained at a similar level compared with that
of Year 2022. We expect to host at least one waste reduction
campaigns in Year 2024 and target to increase the recycling
rate of the paper and raise the employee’s awareness on
waste reduction in the coming years.

Set forth below our Group’s waste disposal performance:

BB NIREBLEEELNETEEYHR
BNFERERE AKEER_ZT_=FE
MEEEREVMBEEABER _T__FK
MENKF - HMBEHR - - MFEEHR
EL-RBBEEE EERAREAFRSA
REKREXRRFAEENRERER -

TXHIINIAEENEENRERR

Consumption

EREEER
Non-hazardous Year 2023 Year 2022
waste category BEEZENEE  Unit By “E-=FfE C"T--FFE
Paper R Kg Tr 234 243
Total non-hazardous wastes BEENRE Kg TR 234 243
Total non-hazardous wastes BEBEWMBE  Kg/employee Tr/EE 9.00 7.36
intensity g
A2 Use of resources A2E R E A

We are dedicated to comply with and ongoing review
of applicable regulations concerning ESG. Our goal is to
maximize resource efficiency, minimize waste, and promote
energy conservation. Our Group did not own any vehicles,
and do not have direct energy consumption. Given the nature
of our business activities, the primary resources consumed by
our group include electricity, water, and paper, we commit
conserving resources, including electricity, water and paper
consumption during our operation and continuously improve
the efficiency of using resources.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁk#&ifhﬁﬁﬁ%% trek

ARMERER RMANBERERZKRER
hméﬁﬂ% D BE Y I e HE BT RE © AN
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Our Group has established relevant policies and procedures
to ensure efficient use of resources,
electricity, office consumables, etc, to minimize unnecessary
use of resources.

include water and

Our goal is to stable the electricity and paper consumption
We aim to reduce the use of resources and
corresponding carbon footprint. Environmental awareness
is also promoted among employees to drive their
behavioral changes. We target to participate in at least one
energy-saving related campaigns in Year 2024. During Year
2023, energy saving and environmental protection practice
have been adopted in the office area included by not limited
to the measures below:

level.

Energy Management

J Promote a culture of energy consciousness and adoption
of resource conserving process, such as reminding
employees to switch off lights, unplug chargers;

J Use energy-efficient settings on office equipment, such
as install occupancy sensors or timers to automatically
turn off lights in unoccupied areas;

J Implement green measures on deploying energy
efficient equipment and enable power-saving settings
on computers, such as sleep mode or hibernation, to
reduce energy consumption during periods of inactivity;

] Set up emissions targets based on previous year’s
actual emissions and monitors targets monthly through
electricity consumption stated in electricity bills which
contribute to most of the carbon dioxide emissions;

J Make the most of natural lighting by positioning
workstations near windows and using light-colored
surfaces to reflect and distribute natural light; and

J Switch off lights and air-conditioning for rooms and
computers not in use and setting room temperature at
25.5°C.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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During the Reporting Period, electricity consumption of
our Group increased as compared with that of Year 2022,
primarily due to more work from home arrangements in Year
2022 under COVID-19.

Set forth below our Group’'s energy consumption
performance:

BEMA - ARBANENERR-F-—4%
- EBMR T = £ FECOVID9
BAE T AR TR G EM -

TXEIIAEENEERBERA :

Year 2023 Year 2022
Types of energy HREE Unit By “E-ZFE CZTZZFE
Indirect energy consumption MEERERE
~ Purchased electricity -BEE MWh KR 27.02 22.27
Total energy consumption RRAREE MWh KR E 27.02 22.27
Total energy consumption intensity ¢ R BFEEHE  MWhlemployee KEEK/EE 1.04 0.67
Water Management KEREHE

Water is supplied by the Water Suppliers Department, there
is no issue in sourcing water. Our Group's existing businesses
are not expected to pose a significant use of water and
hence has no material impact on the environment and no
related target has been set. As a responsible company, our
Group promote water conservation our employees during the
Reporting Period.

Use of Packaging Material

Our financial services segment does not provide any physical
product, and our wine trading business did not consume
significant amount of packaging materials for product
packaging since we did not involve in production process.

A 7K B K BB P 6L R - R BUOKIR D7 | X R
THHEHB AEENRBEXHABIEKRE
AK AEHRREIBEATE TERE
HEABR - ER—RB|BENRQA AEERK
THARNEERESHHMAK-

BEMBHEF
ZMOHERE D BE MBRTAERES -
MaRBEALELEEEBE B RMAY
IEEHER I EREQEEAERAR R
B o
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A3 The environment and natural resources

Due to the nature of the business, our Group does not have
any direct and significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources during our operations.

Raising Environmental Awareness

Our Group integrates green and low-carbon development
into the corporate culture and encourages our employees
to participate in a green office. To promote environmental
awareness among its employees, our Group also issues a
guide for green practices to its employees via email.

When building and evaluate investment portfolios, our
management also consider various sources of pollution,
including water, noise and air. Such that environmentally
friendly entities would be considered as priority.
Environmental impact assessment is performed in order to
assess the environmental risk of our business activities if
necessary.

A4 Climate change

Our Group understands that climate change is a global issue
that affects everyone around the world. We are aware of the
impacts of climate change on the sustainable development
of our wine trading business operations, in particular delivery
and storage.

We carry out risk analysis to determine the negative
impacts of climate change on our operations, and whether
it will affect our Group and our Group’s related mitigation
measures. We set parameters and collect information to
identify significant climate-related issues and mitigate their
impacts.

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms,
rainstorms and typhoons, could lead to an increased
risk of power shortages, interrupt the supply chain and
damage our Group's assets, disrupting the operation of our
Group’s offices. These events could also disrupt the work of
employees.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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According to the Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons an
Rainstorm Warnings and the Safety Guide for Working in
Inclement and Hot Weather published and revised by the
Labour Department, we have established with employees
the reasonable and practicable work arrangements under
tropical cyclone warnings, rainstorm warnings or extreme
conditions following super typhoons as well as other severe
weather, including getting to work, leaving work, returning
to work and working from home (if applicable). We have
consulted our employees and involved them in the process
of formulation of work arrangements and contingency
measures.

The work arrangements under severe weather will be
reviewed regularly and updated or revised appropriately
based on experience and the needs and actual conditions of
both employers and employees.

Transition Risks

Our Group anticipates that climate change will drive the
governments and regulatory authorities to introduce more
stringent environmental laws, regulations, and policies in
order to achieve global carbon neutrality. For instance, the
HKEx requires that listed companies enhance climate-related
disclosures in their ESG reports. Consequently, our Group
may face additional compliance costs to meet updated
regulations. Failing to comply with climate change
requirements could expose our Group to claims and litigation,
as well as damage its corporate reputation. To avoid slow
responses to climate-related trends, policies, and regulations,
our Group will closely monitor changes in relevant domestic
and international policies and regulations, as well as
industry trends. It will also enhance its capacity to address
climate-related issues and make timely adjustments.

RESTRAMETNBARERES T
ETAMES RERARR TN ITIEL2EHE

HEBITHTABATRAEES EWES
ok B 58 Be AL 1R B9 4% i B R - M&EMEQ

RITEEMIEATH ITIERH 8 LI
THCEIRERIEWMER)S  BHM
EBRPEZRAEINRBERS2EGEAM
W THER B R ERIE 0

BARRTHIERZRHEBTUAEHERE I
RAEKLBRNMEELETNFTERERBRIEL
BEMERLBE -
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AEBEGN REZLCEEIRETREE#
BELEABRTHNREEE KIIKBXK
NEREHRRPM- Pl TEEXZHER

FTHRAAEERRE HEgRERABEP MR
HREAEANEZE Bl A&EEATREE
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B BEREZAONREERE A5EHBE
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B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group, we
strive to attract and retain talents and reconcile economic
imperatives with well-beings, aiming at reinforcing
satisfaction, loyalty and commitment of human capital. We
aim to provide employees with a comfortable and healthy
working environment and ensure that their rights and
interests are protected. In order to enhance our governance in
human resources management, our Directors directly involved
in governing the recruitment, resignation, termination,
training, promotion, working hours, rest periods, discipline,
other benefits and welfare, we have formulated the human
resource management policy and updated regularly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. We also
established a sound system of human resources management
covering various aspects of employment.

Employment Practices

During our recruitment process, employees have been hired
based on consideration of their experience, qualifications
and knowledge. All employees have entered into written
employment contracts prior to employment to ensure job
title, job duties, working hours, holidays, remuneration,
termination process and benefit are agreed.

The salary and benefit levels of our employees are reviewed
and adjusted annually based on the results of performance
evaluation. We established a compensation practice taking
into account the overall economic outlook, relevant external
compensation levels as well as the requirement of internal
fairness.

Remuneration and Benefits

A wide range of benefits including gift voucher or cash
coupon for celebrating Chinese traditional festival, annual
health service, comprehensive medical and retirement
schemes are also provided to employees.

Our Group guarantees employees the right to rest and
vacation according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and
legal leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual
leave and other leave entitlements.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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Communication Channels

Our Group places great importance on receiving feedback
from its employees and has implemented a responsive
platform to facilitate this process. Our Group has established
an efficient communication channel that enables staff to
express their work-related opinions or any other relevant
feedback regarding our Group. If applicable, department head
will take these suggestions into consideration and, if deemed
appropriate, initiate improvements through the human
resources department with the management’s approval.
Undoubtedly, these initiatives contribute to enhancing the
efficiency of our Group’s operations.

Equal Employment Opportunities

We committed that nobody should be treated less favorably
on his/her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy,
marital status, disability, family status, and race. Opportunities
for employment, training and career development are equally
opened to all qualified employees.

Our Group does not tolerate the dismissal of employees on
any unreasonable basis. Management will assess the cases
with the department head and human resources department
to ensure there are reasonable grounds and applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong have been complied before
action. We complied with all the relevant laws and regulation,
including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and our Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with employment related laws and regulations that would
have significant impact to our Group.

BERE
AEBBEEERMKINEERSE LEH
h—EEEAFalARERRE AKEER
VERHBRRE FETIRMREETHE
HENERIEMAMEAEEEHENRE -
WER MPATEBEEZFESR LER
RBEENBERLT KEEEBHE BBREBAD
BRBMAETHE - BBEER SLBEEHR
BRREAREENELREK -
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BMAE EUASTEHER - Fik- 8

AR - BB - REMN K& RSB AR E
MEHAFEFE-RBE BIREXRER
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AEEBIBRRNEAITAENEHRERE
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A summary on the relevant employee composition related AEBER T _=ZF+_-_A=+—HHEE
KPIs of our Group as at 31 December 2023 is disclosed as #AX BB NEEREREEHMERZEN T
follows:

As at As at
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
i A
Social KPIs HEHBRENER Unit B +=-A=+-H +-A=+—H
Total workforce EEAY number A& 26 33
Total workforce by gender BEMREINESAY
Male EoRid number A& 15 18
Female pegid number A& 11 15
Total workforce by employment ZERERE S HWEER
type ag
Full-time 2B number A 21 26
Part-Time 3 number AE 5 7
Total workforce by employee %ZEBEREINEER
category By
Senior management RREBRE number A& 2 2
Mid-level management hEE R number AE 13 12
Entry level EEAB number AE 11 19
Total workforce by age group BRERAFEIHES
By
Below 30 30 AT number A 2 4
30 to 50 30507 number A8 21 23
Over 50 S08% A £ number AE 3 6
Total workforce by RHBEEINEEBLAY
geographical region
The People’s Republic of China ~ H E A R # 7l number AE
(the" PRC") (TED 1 7

Hong Kong, China hE & B number AE 25 26
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Employee Composition
By Gender
BB SEERSHEBK

15,
58%

11,
42%

B Male [ Female
B i

Employee Composition
By Employment Type
RERENSSHESHER

5,
19%

B Full time [ Part time
28 R

Employee Composition
By Geographical Region
Rt ESSESHER

1,
4%

M PRC [ Hong Kong
il BB
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Employee Composition
By Age Groups
BRERANBS0ERHEK

3
, 2,
1% 8%

21,
81%

[ Below 30 M 30 to 50 Over 50
B0BRA T 30%505% 50B%A £

Employee Composition
By Employee Category
RERBFRNBSHERER

2,
8%

11,
42%

13,
50%

B Senior [ Mid-level [ Entry Level
management  management
BRERE PRERE HEAB
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A summary on the relevant employee turnover rate related
KPIs of our Group for Year 2023 is disclosed as follows:

FHEEREAXHEAD

2023 2022
Social KPIs HEBEBEARESZR Unit E —8=-= —_ET__
Employee turnover rate? EER KL ®3 % % 75 16
Employee turnover rate RMRBIHWET
by gender? K b e
Male B % % 67 6
Female = % % 85 27
Employee turnover rate RERMARE D W
by age group* BB R Kt =
Below 30 308 A T % % 167 25
30 to 50 30 % 508% % % 68 9
Over 50 50B% A E % % 44 33
Employee turnover rate RGESE D W
by geographical region® BER KL=
PRC F % % 175 0
HK &% % % 59 19
Total No. of Employee & Resigned Employee turnover rate by gender
Staff (Number) (Percentage)
EERBEBASRE (AR RERESNEERALR (AoH)
40 100% .
30 26 > 75% 67% 8%
20 50%
10 25%
0 0%
m Total No. of Employee m Total No. of Resigned staff m Male Female
EEHEE BERRA BB EL S ey

Employee turnover rate by age groups
(Percentage)

Employee turnover rate by
geographical region (Percentage)

REFRARBINEERALE (BDL) ZHESINEERALER (BDL)
200% 167% 200% 175%
150% 150%
100% 63% 129, 100% 59%
50% 2 50%
0% A 0% S
m Below 30 30 to 50 m Over 50 m PRC Hong Kong
0Bk A T 30%508% 50BRA 1= g P

il
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Notes:

3. Total employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees leaving employment during the Reporting
Period by the average number of employees at the beginning and
the end of the Reporting Period.

4. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
category during the Reporting Period by the average number of
employees in the category at the beginning and the end of the
Reporting Period.

B2 Health and safety

Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe,
healthy, and hygienic workplace for all employees, and all
other persons likely to be affected by our operations and
activities.

Our Group comply with occupational health and safety
guidelines recommended by the Labour Department and
occupational Safety and Health Council. Health and safety
standards are given prime consideration in our operations
and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld. Employees
are committed to deliver safety initiatives in reducing the
potential danger in workplace. Considering the occupational
risk, proper protective equipment and guidance are provided
to the employees.

Our Group participates in regular fire drills to raise employees’
safety and fire prevention awareness. Besides, our Group also
purchased medical insurance and compensation insurance
during the Reporting Period to protect the interests of
employees. Appropriate training, education, and evacuation
exercise are organized regularly. Our Group will regularly
review the abovementioned policy to ensure its effectiveness.
Employees are encouraged to report unmanaged workplace
hazard and to suggest improvement on workplace safety.

Bt

3. WMEEBRAEDRBLHEHBES LGN
HEHRMM YR RO T HREREARTE -

4, SEAIHEERILEDNRREPHZER B
BEBEASBRUREYBEBNRERZERND
THES ABE-

B2 R Z &

AEEHRNRAERAMEHZREABDZEN
EREELRMEEMAL BEYERLE

x 8=

BEREFENIERER-

AEEETHEIRMBELRE2REERER
MBI EXEREL2ES - BREALEEER
BPREXTNEEEZE MK IFERE
TEERE - BEAHETRD TIERRE
BB R - ERINBERR M
EREBERHEENRERERES -

AEBTETH2MELEE URSEENX
ERBHAE# - WIN AEETHREHAE
EERRREBERR ARERBREMNH = -
BMERERBEERI BHELRRARE -
AEBEKERRT EABREK UBEREEX
- AEEZBHEEEREEIZNITHER
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A summary on the relevant number and rate of work-related
fatalities related KPIs of our Group for the past three years is
disclosed as follows:

REZEFEZERABRAE

BRI -HEKEBHRS

AEBBE=ZFEHEAIRXTHABELAQR
CEREANEREREESRERENT

2023 2022 2021
Social KPIs HEBERENESR —E-=f —T-Z—F ZET-—F
Number of work-related fatalities I TH A 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities InT X 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury ITHEELAIIEHE 0 0 0

Our Group strictly abides by the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) or other relevant laws and
regulations on health and safety. During the Reporting Period,
our Group do not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to providing safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards that would have significant impact to our Group's
operation.

B3 Development and training

To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel
development of employees, our Group encourages and
supports our employees in continuous personal and
professional training. Training enhances employees’
competencies and potentials in performing their jobs
effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual
success of employees and our Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements,
and skills required, we have developed relevant training
policies and procedures and committed to create an
environment of continuous improvement through providing
in-house peer learning and on-the-job coaching as well
as training or education subsidies to employees. We also
encourage our staff to attend external training courses and
seminars.

In Year 2023, we organized pertinent training courses for
employees. In addition, our professional staffs have also
attended SFC Continuous Professional Training and ACCA
Exams for their continuous professional development.

AEEBERENBELREMREKH) (B
S09E)HHEMBREREELTZNIERIER -
BEMAN AEELTIAANFETANEREERE
ARERZE2IHFREERRERERXBESR
ERERLERAMBASEENEEEKNEAXN

TENBR-

B3# R K IEH
REKDPETEREENASTER KA&E
EBRYTZREEESFEBAAREEE -
EABIRAEELARBERBMITIIENRE
REH REMSAEERMAOAEEHKE
B gt o

BIRENEEZRULRAFRE HMAS
B EMEBEE KR REF - XEER AR A
EDBPRERBEEUNRAEEREHIZIXHK
BEHM BONEEREBERTRENRE &
PR B B T i SN BR A5 B AR A2 e 8 B ©

RZZE_=ZFF BMA/EE ENI YL
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FEBEZEEIMACCAZR U RERFZOF
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A summary on the relevant development and training related AEBR T _=—FEH@ZE KFIHBH
KPIs of our Group for Year 2023 is disclosed as follows: o g xJI EEMERENT :
2023 2022
Social KPls HERRANERE Unit By —E-=f =—T=-=
Percentage of employees TIEER DR
trained® % % 31 30
Trained percentage by BRUEREDTHNZI
genders® EBEB DS
Male B % % 75 50
Female el % % 25 50
Trained percentage by REEERE SN
employee category® FIEREB DS
Senior management SRERE % % 0 10
Mid-level management PEEREE % % 50 30
Entry level EEAE % % 50 60
Notes: M 5
5. The percentage of total employees trained is calculated by dividing ZINEEBAHLBH N EREHEZININEE L
the total number of employees trained during the Reporting Period BHRUBREHREEREE -
by the total number of employees as at the end of the Reporting
Period.
6. The percentage of employees trained for each category is FEEMNZIEEA D | =

calculated by dividing the number of employees trained for that
category during the Reporting Period by the total number of
employees trained during the Reporting Period.

Total No. of trained & untrained staff

RilRAZINR T A

69%

y
f
o

b 7Y 4R 3R
I

]
JH@E/\%W%M#&*%WEJXD 81

=
=3=]

Trained percentage by gender

BENBSHRIER S

P

25%

75%

B Total of trained staff B Male B4
FHNETaH
Total no. of untrained staff Female %%

AEHIE T

FIZER
BEHE
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Trained percentage by employee category

BRERNNBSHRIERE ST

0%

50% 50%

| Senior management Mid-level management
DAREEE PREEE
Entry level
AEAEB
2023 2022
Social KPlIs HEBEEENERZR Unit By ZB-=Hf —T__F
Average training hours BEREETHEI
per employee’ W87 hours N 4 8
Average training hours =R & o2
by gender® T 1 B B8
Male S hours /)N B 6 6
Female gl hours N 3 12
Average training hours REEERNESN
by employee category? 19 3 G BF e
Senior management RRERRE hours AN 0 16
Mid-level management PEEE hours N 4 4
Entry Level EEAEB hours N 5 11
Average training hours Average training hours by
by gender employee category (Number)
R R 8 7 Y15 2 AR R RESERE 2 HNFEHZINEFE
15 20
10
6 10 5
. N : :
0
. 0 o
m Male Female W Senior management Mid-level management M Entry Level

B peg e SREEE RIS HEAE
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Notes: M 5

7.  The average training hours completed per employee is calculated 7. LEEEKMELZIRH I ERREHED
by dividing the total number of training hours during the Reporting REIRBERUAREH RN EEEHBTE -
Period by the total number of employees at the end of the
Reporting Period.

8.  The average training hours completed by each category of 8 EHNEE TR TFHIINFEHEIRZERE
employees is calculated by dividing the total training hours of that BEMEHANBEINFHBRAZENR RSN
category of employees during the Reporting Period by the number KEEE AHFE -

of employees in that category at the end of the Reporting Period.

B4 Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and forced
labour in any of our operations and services. Children who
are identified by the local labour law should not be employed,
as they reserve the right to pursue education in their
childhood. With the aim to prevent child labour employment,
during the process of recruitment, information of candidate is
verified by checking the identity proof and resume supporting
documents. Labour forced by means of physical punishment,
abuse, involuntary servitude, peonage, or trafficking is strictly
forbidden. We will also avoid engaging with suppliers and
contractors that are known to employ child or involve forced
labour in their products or services.

Our Group implement the following procedures to prevent
child and forced labour:

] Opinion boxes have been set up to allow employees to
report child labour and/or forced labour;

o Human resources department would verify each
applicants’s age before granting employment; and

J If child and forced labour is identified, disciplinary
actions would be taken immediately.

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations nor any cases of
child labour or forced labour in relation to employment and
labour standards, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Our
Director did not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations related to recruitment of child
labour or forced labour practices.

B4 % T % Al
ZFEIMEETEH¥W&HE?&EPE%EI&
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iﬂ:%/\mﬁ’fﬂt’ﬁ KBS -EF- JEB
FE 2 & - TXEEJZ/\DE&EwEFEx?ﬁ}ﬁ%
T-HMABEBEEEMNEBEE TP KR
BETITHNHEILABEEEER SRS L
a1Eo
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e ERVYEEBER fﬁ’/uutﬂﬁﬁi WET
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o ANERIMEERTERBIZEESSA
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e MWMRFFREILBES T HLAKRK
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B5 Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard
on business ethics and conducts, with managing the
environmental and social issues arising from their business
operations. During the Reporting Period, our major suppliers
of wine products are located in Hong Kong.

During the supplier selection and contract drafting processes,
the following factors are considered in achieving “Green
Procurement” on our Group’s supply chain:

J Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of
products/services;

] Effort spent by the suppliers on limiting emission of
pollutants;

] Responsible management of environmental impacts;

o Compliance with local environmental and social law and
regulations;

J Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money
laundering;

° Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,
disability or marital status on supplier’s recruitment;

] Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits;

J Provision of a safe working environment which complies
with local laws or practices;

J Community investment initiatives and effort.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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To identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, our Group implemented the following methods
during supplier selection of supply chain and monitor their
performance:

J We have developed standard procedures in selection,
evaluation and monitoring suppliers;

J We have adopted the principles of openness, fairness
and transparency in supply chain management;

] Factors to be considered when corporation with new
suppliers include economic interests, products/services
quality, products/services safety, as well as suppliers’
compliance with laws and regulations concerning
environmental and social practices;

] Business licenses, qualification certificates, production
safety permits and other management system
certifications will be collected during the supplier
selection process to ensure that they comply with
relevant social and environmental laws and regulations;

] Our Group will give priority to suppliers who provide
products/services that could promote sustainability;

J Our Group will perform assessment on suppliers on a
risk-basis approach;

J The cooperation with suppliers will be terminated if the
environmental and social standards not in line with our
Group'’s policy.

During the Reporting Period, our Group has implemented the
abovementioned practices relating to engaging suppliers to
all of our major suppliers.
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A summary on the relevant number of suppliers related KPIs
of our Group for Year 2023 is disclosed as follows:

BRI -HEKEBHRS

AEE_FT_-—FEEHAEBHHAEAMAEE
REVESHEREDT ¢

2023 2022
Location of suppliers HEBN D it @ ZEZ=ZFE _T__FF
PRC H 5 0
Hong Kong, China A 36 42
Other H 2 1
Bé6 Product responsibility BeEmMEME
Responsible investment policy BEWREHE

Our Group realises the materiality of environmental, social
and governance factors in affecting the performance of
business, as well as the long-term impact on the surrounding
communities. The investment may impact the local
community, for example on living condition of local citizens,
labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors
of ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and
decision-making process.

As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG insight
in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control
undesired risk and maximise shareholders’ value in long-term
basis.

Product Responsibility Policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our
wine products. Our management of wine trading segment
responsible for monitoring the quality of wine products, with
strict compliance with the national/local laws and standards.
Only suppliers with high quality products or performance are
selected by our Group. Warehouse, hygienic condition, quality
control and inspection procedures are examined on a regular
basis. All employees across the value chain will continuously
achieve various quality objectives.
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We implement the following measures to maintain the
services’ safety:

J Monitor the room temperature and the hygiene level of
warehouse regularly;

J Establish the responsible investment policy;

J Establish the product responsibility policy; and

Establish the data privacy policy.

We are committed to providing quality products and services
to customers and focuses on customers’ responses to the
products sold by our Group. Customers can offer their
opinions or lodge complaints through existing communication
channels. We will conduct investigations and prepare reports
based on the responses and take corrective measures when
necessary. During the Reporting Period, our Group did not
identify any material violation of laws and regulations in
respect of product and service quality, we did not receive any
complain, nor any products that needed to be recalled for
safety and health reasons.

Data Privacy Policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders’ personal
data is important to us. We ensure compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other statutory requirements to meet a
high standard of security and confidentiality of personal data
privacy protection. The following data protection principles
are adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

e  We only collect personal data that are relevant and
required for our businesses;

] We will not share personal data to any entity that is
not a member of our Group without consent unless it is
required by law or it was previously notified;

J We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect
against unauthorised access to personal information;
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. Computer system is regularly updated and is installed
with firewall and antivirus software to avoid possible
hackers’ activities; and

J All employees have signed confidentiality agreement.

Intellectual property rights
We implement the following practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights:

J We use authorised and copyrighted products only;

J Employees are not allowed to download or install any
forged or copied programs, software or materials; and

J Our standard employment contracts contain provisions
on Intellectual property rights and confidentially.

Our Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations on
product health and safety, advertising, labeling, remedies and
protection of intellectual property rights, and also observes
the laws and regulations related to privacy. There was no case
of violation identified during the Reporting Period.

B7 Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. We do not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of our business operations
that compromise the interest of our shareholders, investors,
customers, and other stakeholders. Our Group is in strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, 8 employees of our Group
received approximately 16 hours of anti-corruption training
in relation to Guidance on Combating Money Laundering and
Terrorist Financing (Virtual Asset Service Providers).

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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Our Group has provided publications and policy in relation to
anti-corruption practices to our Directors, senior management
personnel and employees. Our Group also provided
anti-corruption policies to new employees.

Our Group has set up whistle-blowing channel in a private
communication channel on reporting suspicious fraudulent
actions to our Group's independent department directly. The
conduct of employee is closely monitored by management.
Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal control
systems is conducted to prevent the occurrence of corruption
activities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly complied
with all applicable laws and regulations, as well as guidance
from various regulatory bodies, including SFC. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with related
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.
There were also no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices during the Reporting Period.

B8 Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and
strengthening the wider community, and encouraging
employees and other stakeholders in supporting the
community. Our Group place high importance for making
positive contribution to the community where it operates,
and considers community benefits as one of its social
responsibilities. We care about the well-being of social
community, and would participate in the charity activities.
Our employees are also encouraged to actively participate in
public conventions, conferences, exhibitions, and events, with
an emphasis on philanthropic contributions, sponsorships,
and community investment.

Selection of supporting charities involves several
considerations. We evaluate the vision and background
of charities organisation. Charities engaged in unethical
activities, and those in unclear financial position, and conflict
of interest with corporation/individual will not be considered.

AEBSFRAEMNES SREEEBELE
ERHEARESHEARN L RY MBE
AEBETERHFEERERESHE -

$¢lEHJﬁ IRRREB URHERS
ﬁ%iﬁ& ARFERITRTASEEE L

#B Eﬁﬁ%xJkﬁﬁﬁwﬁg &
¢nm%w ERBHI R AR LB AEE S

mE e

REMEPA AEEBRBETHAERBERE
MESR UEBRBESEANSZ EEEHR
BHES - AKEBEBYTHNBENEREEREA
MR DR RFERERENEZRERM
HAEEEXNBEAZENBR ZFEARE
REEETEREF BB BRI - W&
MR TEAHEESTRANCEEEREN -

B8t B IR &
ER—MBRENQA ZAMNERRRBIL
MBEEANER IBEEREMEEN

EXxEREAR - AEBERSEERREKERA
HEEEEBRER Y HEEMNZERASED
et BMA@BALOHEARBU I
M2EEZZH KMATHXBEERERSE
rEeR 2R BERETY FHBEITE

N B R

ERBEY BHEHRKRE -

XRHEENEESRZEEZEREK - LM
HEREABNBEEAES RETEBRED

B = E R
AB MR

A R B %5 AR 5 R B I EROE B
MERETEEE-



2023 43k REBBIZERERAT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI -HEKEBHRS

We will continue to regularly review the objectives and BRI G#HETHEEHERENBEZERTMH
direction of community investment and monitor community WEBHEKEE B RBEZS A Lt #
investment, sponsorship and donation activities and approval HBE - B 2L B8F BT — X R HANLE
policies. We will review whether our social performanceisin RIBEEFTALEIBZEEKE -

line with the community investment policies at least annually.

ESG REPORTING GUIDE RIE-Ht8KEBHRSIESI

The following table is a summary of the relationship between T XR#HJIRE HEREARSIESIBASE
the ESG Reporting Guide and the issues found relevanttoour EHEBEEHNBEEBEZ

Group:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

ERXGAMGHRE HEREAHERES

Mandatory Disclosure

Requirements Reporting Guideline Section/Remark
BREHBEERE # & 15 5l BB
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: Governance

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; Structure

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses

EIRRE m%%@%ﬁm%%'%$ﬁﬁTﬂWW: EIRRE
) BREEFESHRE HEREARFENETE
(i) EFENRE- EA&AAﬂﬁHﬁ& g B
H BREIREREENRE HER MAHW%E
(@%%%ﬁA%%%HW%ﬂE:
(i) EFFNARRE HERELSHEBEBEERTER I
%%Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁA%%ﬁ@
Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report | Reporting Scope
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.
b ¥ 5 [E MERE HEREARGENERSE  WiE Lﬁt E P &' P& ¥y % ]

E“%ﬂi%ﬁ%)\iﬁ%iﬁWi@&%:‘\‘*iliiﬂ’ﬂi@%% FERBESR
ke ZTABREBEIRCZEREHREA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREXRGMBAMNER HEREBKREES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5t %18 | R 3

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—-REE

HREXRER ¥ & 8 5l - i
A. Environmental

A RER

Aspect A1 Emissions

fE &A1 2 &)

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

A1 Emissions

—RIKE ERABRLRERBHEN RKRLHWHHES EERES A1 BETD
BEYVYNELEZTH:
(@ BX:k
by BFTHETABEAXZENHBEERBROIBNER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emission and respective emission data. A1 Emissions —

Air emissions
A1 Emissions —
GHG emissions

B8 4 AR AR IR A1

BEDRRE AR N AE B R B o

ATEER Y —
REBHE®
A1 BE R Y —

B = R A8 BEN

KPI'A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

A1 Emissions —
GHG emissions

B 52 8 IR 1R A2

ER@EDEERER(EED)RERBHERE(AMETE)
@R ZE(WMASEEEMN BRRETH) -

ATHER Y —

B = R B8 B

KPI'A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

A1 Emissions —
Waste
management
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ERXSFEMNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5t %18 | R 3

General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE

HREXRER & 8 5 BB

A. Environmental

ARIE

B B2 4E MR IRAL3 MEAEEEREEYREEUMGAE) R(MEREE(MINE ATBER —
EEWM - SERMEHHE) ENEE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where A1 Emissions —
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Waste
facility). management

B ERIEIRAL4 FMEAREEEDEAE(UBAE)R(WMER EE(WUE ATBER —
EEEBU HEKXRMAE)- &) & TR

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve A1 Emissions —
them. Greenhouse gas

emissions

BREXEZREALS IV MR EARRREINELE SRR TR - ATBER —
R = R 88 B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are A1 Emissions —
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps Waste

taken to achieve them. management

752 4E MR IR A6 HMEEEEERBEEEYN A R Fr &l &R ATBERR Y —
EREREINELEREARRN TR - FE 1) B 38
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BUKE-

ERARGIEMRHNERE HEREREKRSIES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[FEFHBRIHKRX

General disclosure/

KPIs Reporting guideline Section/Remark

~BRBE

BRAENER % & 15 5l i i

A. Environmental

ARIE

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

B E A2 & F £ 8

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water A2 Use of
and other raw materials. resources

—RIRE EREAER(BERR KEEAMFREME)®RE A2 &R 1E A

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, A2 Use of
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000 s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of resources
production volume, per facility).

7 52 48 MR 1R A2.1 REASSNEER LHEZEERWE  Ralod)BEE (A A2 & JR1E A
FTERFERAEREZE(NUNEBESEEN - BEHRBTE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of A2 Use of
production volume, per facility). resources

B AR I 1R A2.2 BREKERTEMWMINGEEEN BERKMEFTHE) - A2 & JRE A

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2 Use of
to achieve them. resources

BA 52 48 MR IR A2.3 BRIV RERMNEEERAENNELBFEMEKR A2 & JR1E A

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2 Use of
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to resources
achieve them.

B EMIEIRA24 SR ER @ A KR | AT (e BB - LA K PR RT 3Z B9 A UK R A2 B RE A
HREAREAREINELARMEIRANITR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) A2 Use of
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. resources

B8 4B R IR A2.5 B mAAaEMHNES(UEE) R(NER) 8+ E A2 & JR1E A
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5t %18 | R 3

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

~BRBE

HREXRER ¥ & 8 5l BB
A. Environmental

ARIR

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[EmA3 RERXARER

General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the A3 The

environment and natural resources.

environment and
natural resources

—RIKE BEBETAHRERRAEREXNERTENRE - A3IRIR &
RAEIR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the A3 The

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

environment and
natural resources

BRAENEZRA HAXBEHHRERAAERNEAZEREENER AR &
FRXENTH - RAREIR

Aspect A4 Climate Change

[E m A4 Rz

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant A4 Climate
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may change
impact, the issuer.

— R E BRI REHERERAEGHETAEELENEARIKMN AR IR E b
HEEHREK-

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have A4 Climate
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the change
actions taken to manage them.

7 5248 W IR 1R AL M E R RS BETAEEYENEARGHEBERE ALR & B 1t

N EHITE -
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—-REE

BARERER ] & 15 5l - i
B. Social

B.&t&

Aspect B1 Employment and Labor Practices

B EB1 BREREIESR

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

B1 Employment

—RWE ERFMN@EE BELREN IERE RY TEHE - B1{& 1%
Z b~ RBCAR DA R Bl £ 48 I /8 A9
(@ HBXR:X&k
by BTHETABEAXZENHBEZRRINER -

KPIs B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- B1 Employment

or part-time), age group and geographical region.

B 4 A8 AR 15 B 1.1

R BEREBAR(MEBSKRRE)  FiicdR RitES oM
BB A -

B1 & &

KPIs B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

B1 Employment

8 2 A8 IR 15 B1.2

2R FRARRLEE S HIEERELE -

B1{& &




2023 F3R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRS

IR~ 1t

REZEFEZERABRAE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

ERXSFEMNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—-REE

BARERER ] & 15 5l - i
B. Social

B.&t&

Aspect B2 Health and Safety

[E EmB2 BERZE

General disclosure

Information on:

B2 Health and

(a) the policies; and safety
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE EARBZE2TIHBRRERREEEBEBELERZEN B2fiZ R L &
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBZEIRZLAOIBNER-
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2 Health and
the past three years including the reporting year. safety
78 B2 4 W R 12 B2.1 BE=ZF(ERERFRE)BFRITHNAZ R E- B2 2B R 2
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. B2 Health and
safety
7 52 4 W5 15B2.2 HIBELXITIEAS- B2 RE = &
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2 Health and
and how they are implemented and monitored. safety
79 82 48 W 1§ B2.3 HAFFERMOBERREZ BB UREBATRESR | BR2EEREZRS

T8
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[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE

HREXRER ] & 15 5l BB

B. Social

B.4t &

Aspect B3 Development and Training

fE mB3 R K% A

General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for | B3 Development
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. and training

—REE FERARTEEBTIEBREN NI LRENBR -l | B3R KEI
& & o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | B3 Development

category (e.g. senior management, middle management). and training
7 52 4 W 5 1EB3.1 rMFIREEEN(NEREEE PREEB)EI>NXI | BIEEREKFI

BEADL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | B3 Development
and employee category. and training
79 52 4 W 5 12 B3.2 RERMEEEEANE S BEEETKIIIN FHREE- B3 % & & 1F 3l
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General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE/
BARENER ¥ & 15 5l EH B
B. Social
B.#E
Aspect B4 Labor Standards
€ T B4 2 T % 8|
General disclosure Information on: B4 Labour
(a) the policies; and standards
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
— MR = B IEE TohmBEs TH: B4 45 T 8
(@) BE: &
b) BFHETABEAXENHEBZEIEARRABNER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4 Labour
child and forced labour. standards
74 8 4 SIB 12 B4 Wi BIEBO MEEABRE T RRBEET - B4 4 T *E 8l
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when B4 Labour
discovered. standards

B8 42 A8 IR 15 B4.2

WA EBRRERBASERARBBRAMKENN TSR -

B4 & T 2 A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREXRGMBAMNER HEREBKREES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE

BRAENER % & 15 5l BB

B. Social

B.4t &

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management

[ E B5 ftEEER

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply | B5 Supply chain
chain. management

— R E EEMHEENRREAEERAREBE - B5 1 FE 52 & 3%

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. B5 Supply chain

management

78 $2 4 W 5 12 B5.1 mriwEE oW HEREA - B5 1 FE §2 & 38

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | B5 Supply chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how management
they are implemented and monitored.

B8 $2 45 X 5 1R B5.2 HMEAEBEERHERNEN HEATHERAEMNNOHER | BSHEREIRE

BH URBBERTRERE A

KPI B5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social

B5 Supply chain

risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and management
monitored.
B9 B2 45 5 1% B5.3 HMEEEBNHEESERANRE R L SERNIED B5 it f& 3 & 12

ARBEATRERET A

KPI B5.4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally

B5 Supply chain

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and management
how they are implemented and monitored.
79 $2 48 W 45 12 B5.4 HMIEREHEEREESRARERER LRGN ED - LA | BSHEREEIRE

REBATRERERT A
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—-REE

HREXRER ¥ & 8 5l - i
B. Social

B.&t&

Aspect B6 Product Responsibility

[E EB6 EmEE

General disclosure Information on: B6 Product

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant law s and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

responsibility

—RIKE FRFMRHERMRBENEREELZE: BEEHE RELLES B6ZE mn B £
H A KR T A
(@ BX:k
by BFTHETABEAXZENHBEERBROIBNER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for B6 Product

safety and health reasons.

responsibility

78 52 45 W 3E 12 B6.1

EEXCEXEMBRBTRLE2AREEAMADKRNA

oL e

B6E mh B 1T

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

B6 Product
responsibility

38 42 A48 R 4K 15B6.2

BEEBRERMRBORFEHE AREEH T E -

B6E M B

KPI B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

B6 Product
responsibility

B B2 45 S 15 15B6.3

M REENRENZERBBNED -

B6E m B 1

KPI B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6 Product
responsibility

B8 42 A48 W IE 15B6.4

Ml EEREBENER@KIRERF -

B6/E m B

KPI B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

B6 Product
responsibility

78 52 45 WIE 12 B6.5

i

I

WIEBEERRERALBBRE  URBBATRERE -

p

B6E m B 1T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

ERXSEAMNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <F 5 %8R 3

General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—BEE

BARERER ] & 15 5l - i
B. Social

B.&t&

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

fE EB7 k&S

General disclosure Information on: B7

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

—RIKE BRI IR R HFRAEREN: BTRE S
(@ HBER: &
by BFHBETABEAXZENHBEZERBROIBNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices B7

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

Anti-corruption

7 8248 W 12 B7.1 REZHAHBETASIHEERHIICEANBETHAR BT E S
HEBE RFAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing B7
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. Anti-corruption

B 52 45 5 1R B7.2 A EEERBEREF UAREERTRERR A BTRE S

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and B7
staff. Anti-corruption

74 52 4 W5 1R B7.3 M EEFREIRHENOREFEI - BTRE S
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General disclosure/
KPlIs

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE

BRAENER & 8 5 BB

B. Social

B.4t &

Aspect B8 Community Investment

fE T B8 HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs B8 Community
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its investment
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

— R E FHENAMR2ERTREEMEHMEFTFENBRREEZRE B8t = 2 &
HEERERMAANEEK -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental B8 Community
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). investment

2 $2 45 % 5 12 B8. 1 ETEREB(INHE BREFE BIFR EF Xtk B8t BRI &
BE)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. B8 Community

investment
7 52 4 W 5 15 B8.2 EEIHBEMBIAER(WESERRER) - B8t BRI &
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The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
business and geographical segments are set out in Note 4(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 157 to 158.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) does
not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the Year
(2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group
for the Year are contained in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report,
there were no material events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using
financial performance indicators is provided in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8, page
4 and pages 9 to 27 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group’s corporate governance
is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 28 to 56 of this annual report.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s performance
by reference to environmental and social-related key
performance indicators and policies, as well as compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Company are provided in the paragraph
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 67 to 115 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, financial risks, and environmental,
social and governance risks that may have different levels of
impact on the Group’s financial performance, operations,
business as well as future prospects.

The following highlights the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group and it is not meant to be exhaustive. There may
be other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but turn out to be
material in the future.

Economic Risks
— A severe or prolonged downturn of economy.

- Negative effect on our operational, financing or
investing activities due to inflation, fluctuations of
interest rates and other measures relating to financial
policies.

Operational Risks
- Failure to compete in the competitive environment
which the Group operates in.

The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial risks are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
and the section headed "FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS” under
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” to this annual

report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on page 296.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the Company's share
capital are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distributions to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
as at 31 December 2023 comprised the share premium
and accumulated losses with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$226.78 million (2022: HK$264.49 million).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”) provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which they may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of their office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr. Jiao Shuge (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Nanjun (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 14 December 2023)

Mr. Wu Guangze*

Mr. Feng Hai*

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan**

Mr. Li Xindan**

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William**

Mr. Chong Ka Yee**
(appointed on 23 March 2023)

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu*
(resigned on 31 March 2023)

Mr. Wei Bin* (resigned on 29 September 2023)

* Non-executive Director

**  Independent non-executive Director

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 57 to 66
of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration and
the Five highest individuals are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Jiao Shuge, Mr. Wu Guangze and Mr. Chong
Ka Yee shall be retired and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. As such, Mr. Tang Nanjun will retire from
office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

All Directors’ appointments will be subject to normal
retirement and re-election at the annual general meeting by
the Shareholders pursuant to the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of the Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTOR’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Following enquiries
with the Directors, the Company has received confirmation
from each of the Directors confirming that he or she has
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in
the Model Code for the Year.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)
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Shares Issued Voting

Name of chief executives Capacity/Nature of interests interested Shares
BEEEZN nue T

FETHRABHESR B RatE ROHE BEREERMOD%
Mr. Wu Guangze Beneficial owner 31,000,000 2.07%

REERLE ExnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, neither
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any associated
corporations, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
shares or debt securities of the Company or had exercised any
such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no any
contract of significance (whether for the provision of services
to the Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which any controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

INTEREST IN

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the
persons or companies (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the ordinary Shares as at 31 December WZ-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H TBRERHE
2023: BEIMT
Approximate

Number percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares shareholding
BRRERB g% BROBE REBSABIL
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (A7 1) ExEAA
JZ International Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ International Ltd. (#f7F 1) XEGEEE S
Golden Power Group Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 20.94%
ENEBERRAI(MF2) EnEAA
Orient Ruixin Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RAERERRA(NF2) REGEEE R
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%

Management Co., Limited (Note 2)

RAER(LBREEBEARRA(MF2) XEHZE#ER

Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2)

LBRERFRFRERAREBERRA(MF2) IEHZEZERER

Orient Securities Company Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RABFROBERDR (M E2) XEHEEE R

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 194,960,000 12.99%
BREZERERAR(HZ3) ExnlEBA

CCBI Investments Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRREBEEKREBER AR (HZ3) REGEEE R

CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRERER)ERRA(MF3) XEHEEE R

CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BITeMERBR QR (ME3) REHEE R

CCB International Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%

(Note 3)

ROBEREEZERER AR (HZ3) REHEE R

China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 3)  Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
FERRRITROERRA(MF3) REGEEE R

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%

FRESREERAEEDA(HE3) XA B
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Notes:

1. JZ Investment Fund L.P., an exempted limited partnership governed
by the board of its general partner, JZ International Ltd..

2. R #EF B M AR 2 A (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly
holds 100% of the equity mterest in Shanghai Orient Securities
Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the
equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Management
Co., Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital
of Orient Ruixin Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 3 75 &
% B% 15 & BR 2 & (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient
Securities Capltal Investment Co., Ltd., Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai)
Investment Management Co., Limited and Orient Ruixin Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden
Power Group Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity
interest in China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn
holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
CCBI Investments Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd., China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings
Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments
Limited are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person,
other than the Directors, whose interests are set out herein
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) has
been adopted by the Company pursuant to a shareholder’s
resolution passed on 17 December 2012 and expired on 16
December 2022. The expiration of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme does not affect the rights of the outstanding options
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and those
outstanding options continue to be valid and exercisable
during the prescribed exercisable period in accordance with
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. No service provider sublimit
was set under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Purpose and Participants

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to reward
any Directors and employees of the Group, any director or
employee of a company or entity in which the Group had
invested in and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters, any director or employee of any service partners
of any member of the Group who the Board considered, in
its sole discretion, had contributed to or would contribute to
the Group (the “2012 Participants”) and to encourage 2012
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

2023 Annual Report

53 Bz iE 5t 8l

_B-_FHEREsE

ARARERKBR-_ZFE—ZF+=ZATtHE
BeBREABREMNEREFE(Z2ZE—=
FHERETE])) ZAEERZZEZ_F+
“TRATARAEH - T -——FEREFEE
MIAEFERE_T——_FEREFERN
BERITEBRENOREN MZERKITHE
BEREEESS YAREBE-_ZT—Z_FBER
BAERHAENTERARTE -2 —Z2F
EREFSBETIERBSHER S ERE -

BEMRSHEE

—E R REGFIEEERAKEIM
EEZNEE AEBEREQAXERBZMENM
EFdEE - UEREFE2RHBNERAE Y
ARHEAEEELERZAKRBEMKE R
AZEMBER(EXELEMBT@E) FHA
DEHE EABE HER KRE -BTF XK
BH GEXBEH BEA TARHKE
HZ2ERNEEFZXRE(-_T—_F28%F]).
TEE —FT - —F2EEFHNR/RARALE
BRRZEBMERTARBRERND ZEE -



2023 F3R

Maximum Entitlement of each 2012 Participants

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
(when aggregated with any shares subject to options granted
during such period under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company other than those options granted pursuant
to specific approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the shares in issue for the time being, unless
further grant of options being approved by Shareholders in
general meeting with such 2012 Participant and his associates
abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue
on the date of such grant; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
options shall be subject to prior approval by resolution of the
shareholders (voting by way of poll).
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Option Period, Minimum Period for which an Option Must
be Held Before It Can be Exercised and Consideration on
Acceptance of the Option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at
the time of grant of the option which shall not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme does not specify a minimum period for which an
option must be held nor a performance target which must
be achieved before an option can be exercised. However,
the rules of the 2012 Share Option Scheme provide that the
Board may determine, at its discretion, such term(s) on the
grant of an option, which decision may vary on a case by case
basis. A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
as consideration for the grant of option is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of the grant of option within a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. Such remittance is
not refundable in any circumstances.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares.

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all the options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as at its
adoption date (the “2012 Scheme Mandate Limit”). Upon its
expiration, no further options shall be offered or granted.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the
2012 Scheme Mandate Limit so that the Company would be
allowed to grant options under the Share Option Scheme for
subscription up to a total of 149,974,992 shares, representing
10% of the number of shares in issue as at 24 May 2021.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 16 September 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed to
grant 55,000,000 share options to Mr. Wu Guangze carrying
the rights to subscribe for 55,000,000 shares and 50,000,000
share options to Mr. Wei Bin carrying the rights to subscribe
for 50,000,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$4.53 per
Share (the “Grant”) under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Validity period of the share options are from 15 October
2021 to 6 June 2031 (both dates inclusive). The share options
of each Grantee will be vested in five equal tranches (being
11,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wu Guangze
and 10,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wei Bin)
in accordance with the vesting schedule of the share options,
subject to the fulfilment of certain performance targets.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2021, the Company granted the Grant on
15 October 2021.
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Details of the Grant are set out below:

Tranches

First tranche

Second tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(i)

For the year ending 31
December 2021, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests
and non-recurring gains and
[osses MNote)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operations
and listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2021 is not
HK$495,004,000.

less than

For the year ending 31
December 2022, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
MNote)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company's operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2022 is not
HK$594,005,000.

less than
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Tranches

Third tranche

Fourth tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

For the year ending 31
December 2023, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
(Note)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company’'s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2023 is not less than
HK$712,806,000.

For the year ending 31
December 2024, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
(Note)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company’'s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2024 is not less than
HK$855,367,000.
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Tranches

Fifth tranche ()

(ii)

Note:

Performance Targets

For the year ending 31 December
2025, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses Mo®) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2025 is not less than
HK$1,026,440,000.

Non-recurring gains and losses refer to highly infrequent profit or
charge not arising from the Company’s ordinary and usual course of
business, including but not limited to the impairment losses on defaulted
investments and gains or losses on disposal of subsidiaries or business.

Details of the share options outstanding during the Year are
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Given the vesting conditions for the second tranche are not
met and the resignation of Mr. Wei Bin as the non-executive
Director on 29 September 2023, the corresponding tranche
of share options (being 11,000,000 share options for Mr. Wu
Guangze and 40,000,000 share options for Mr. Wei Bin) has
been automatically lapsed during the Year.

The number of shares of the Company that may be issued
in respect of options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the Year (i.e. 33,000,000) divided by the
weight average number of shares of 1,499,749,920 share for
the Year was 2.2%.

NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme (the
Scheme”) has been adopted by the Company pursuant to
a shareholder’s resolution passed on 23 June 2023 (the
“Adoption Date”).

“New Share Option

Purposes

The purposes of the New Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to reward Participants
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and
to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Participants

Participants include the employee participants, related entity
participants and service providers. The eligibility of each of
the Participant shall be determined by the Board from time to
time on the basis of the participant’s contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.
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Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The total number of the shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and all options and awards to be granted
under any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Company (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date or the relevant date of approval of
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. Within the
Scheme Mandate Limit, the total number of the shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
to the service provider(s) under the New Share Option Scheme
and all options and awards to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) of the
Company (the “Service Provider Sublimit”) shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue as at the Adoption
Date or the relevant date of approval of the refreshment of
the Service Provider Sublimit.

The number of shares available for issue under the New
Share Option Scheme at the beginning of the Year is Nil
and the end of the Year and the date of this annual report
is 116,974,992 and 127,974,992 shares, representing
approximately 7.8% and 8.5% of the issued shares as at
the date of this annual report. There is no service provider
sublimit set under the New Share Option Scheme.

Maximum Entitlement of each Participant

The total number of the shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all options (including the options) and awards
granted to each Participant (excluding any options (including
the options) or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the relevant schemes) under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue.

Option Period

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an
Option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period for the exercise of an option to be notified
by the Board to the grantee at the time of making an offer,
but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the offer
date.
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VESTING PERIOD

The vesting period for the options shall not be less than
12 months from the offer date, provided that where the
participant is:

(i)

an employee participant who is a director or senior
manager of the Company and specifically identified by
the Board, the remuneration committee of the Board
shall; or

an employee participant other than a director and senior
manager of the Company and specifically identified
by the Board, the Board shall have the authority to
determine a shorter vesting period under the following
specific circumstances:

(a)

grants of the options in compensatory nature to a
new employee participant to replace his/her share
options or awards forfeited when leaving his/her
previous employer;

grants of the options to an employee participant
whose employment is terminated due to death or
disability or occurrence of any out-of-control event;

grants of the options with performance-based
vesting conditions in lieu of time-based vesting
criteria and the employee participant is required to
satisfy the performance-based vesting conditions
within 12 months from the grant of options. For
the avoidance of doubt and save as otherwise
provided in this paragraph, the vesting period shall
not be less than 12 months if no performance
target is imposed;
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(d) grants of the options that are made in batches
during a year for compliance reasons, which
include the options that should have been granted
earlier if not for such compliance reasons. In such
case, the vesting period may be shorter to reflect
the time from which the options would have been
granted; and

(e) grants of the options with a mixed or accelerated
vesting schedule such as where the options may
vest evenly over a period of 12 months.

GRANT OF OPTIONS

On and subject to the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time and from time
to time within the Scheme Period (as defined below) to make
an Offer to any Participant as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select, and subject to such conditions as the Board
may think fit, which may include a condition that the Grantee
shall not dispose of the Shares issued upon exercise of the
Option within such period of time or under such conditions
as the Board may at its absolute discretion determine,
the vesting period for the Option to be granted and the
performance targets, if any, attached to the Options to be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme, to subscribe
during the Option Period (as defined below) for such number
of Shares (being a board lot for dealing in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof) as the
Board may determine at the Exercise Price provided always
that an Offer made to such Participant will not constitute an
invitation to the public to subscribe for the Shares under any
applicable legislations.
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An offer shall be made to a Participant on a business day
in writing in such form as the Board may from time to time
determine, requiring the Participant to undertake to hold the
Option on the terms on which it is to be granted and to be
bound by the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme
and shall remain open for acceptance by the Participant
concerned for a period of five business days from the Offer
Date (inclusive of the offer date) provided that no such Offer
shall be open for acceptance after the Scheme Period (subject
to early termination thereof).

Consideration on Acceptance of the Option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted and accepted and to have taken effect on the
offer date when a letter in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine signifying acceptance of the Option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company within five
business days from the offer date (inclusive of the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the Adoption
Date and expiring at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
Accordingly, the remaining life of the New Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report is approximately 9 years.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the New Share Option Scheme since the
Adoption Date.
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EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
Offer Date, which must be a business day;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the offer
Date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date,
provided that in the event of fractional prices, the
exercise price per share shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has no
outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, the total borrowing (including
borrowings, amount due to a related party and lease
liabilities) of the Group amounted to HK$9.14 million (2022:
HK$110.02 million).

DONATIONS
For the Year, the Group did not made any charitable and
other donations (2022: Nil).
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”)
in Hong Kong. Under the Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum
level of relevant income of HK$7,100 for the employees’
contribution. The Group’s employees in the PRC, participate
in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries was entered into or existed
during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes”, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreements for the Year, and there did not
subsist any equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company as at 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
There were no competing business of which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.
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The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’'s
operating results, individual performance, time, commitment,
duties and responsibilities, contribution to the Group,
comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing
practice and trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself
and the next four largest suppliers accounted for about
24.1% and 57.5% respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself
and the next four largest customers accounted for about
47.6% and 25.2% of the Group's turnover (excluding income
(loss) from securities trading and investments). The five
largest customers are from provision of asset management
services and sales of good.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which amount to HK$3.48
million (2022: HK$7.16 million) as set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements fall within the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are subject
to exemptions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and are fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance code are based on the
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “"CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed below, the Company has
complied with all the CG Code during the with the following
exceptions.

Under the code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing. During the
Year, Mr. Jiao Shuge was the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and the CEO from 18 May 2023 to 14 December
2023. This constituted a deviation from the code provision
C.2.1. However, the Chairman and CEO, Mr. Jiao Shuge,
who was also appointed as the executive Director on 18 May
2023, led the Board and ensured that the Board worked
together as a whole and the decisions of the Board were
implemented. All important issues were discussed in a timely
manner on a fully informed basis and in the best interests
of the Company. Mr. Jiao Shuge also managed the strategic
development of business and operation of the Group while
the Group developed its business with his leadership in the
Board.

Following the appointment of Mr. Tang Nanjun as the CEO
with effect from 14 December 2023, the Company has
re-complied with this requirement.
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Code provision F.2.2 stipulates, among other things, that the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting, and
invite the chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. Due to other business
commitments, Mr. Jiao Shuge, who was the Chairman and
chairman of the Investment Committee of the Company (the
“Investment Committee”), and Dr. Lo Wing Yan William,
who was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 June 2023. Nevertheless, with the consent of
the other Directors present, Mr. Wu Guangze, who was the
non-executive Director and was familiar with the business
operation of the Group, chaired the annual general meeting
and all other members of the Investment Committee and
the Remuneration Committee attended the annual general
meeting to answer questions.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(2), 3.21 AND 3.25 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 December 2022 in relation to, among other
things, the non-compliance with Rules 3.10(2), 3.21 and
3.25 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer
must include at least one of the independent non-executive
directors with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. In
addition, Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, every
listed issuer must establish an audit committee comprising
non-executive directors only and the audit committee must
comprise a minimum of three members, at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. The audit committee must be chaired by an
independent non-executive director. Pursuant to Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules, an issuer must establish a remuneration
committee chaired by an independent non-executive director
and comprising a majority of independent non-executive
directors.
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Following the appointment of Mr. Chong Ka Yee as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee on 23 March 2023; and the
appointment of Dr. Lo Wing Yan William as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee on 23 March 2023,

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the Company has included at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

the Audit Committee has comprised the non-executive
Directors only and a minimum of three members, at
least one of whom is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and

the Remuneration Committee has been chaired by an
independent non-executive Director and has comprised
a majority of the independent non-executive Directors,
which meets the requirement under Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

On 23 March 2023, Mr. Chong Ka Yee has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Dr. Lo Wing
Yan William has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

On 31 March 2023, Ms. Zheng Xiaosu has resigned as an
non-executive Director.

On 18 May 2023, Mr. Jiao Shuge has been redesignated
to an executive Director and appointed as the CEO; Mr.
Wu Guangze has been redesignated to a non-executive
Director and also resigned as the CEO; Mr. Feng Hai has been
redesignated to a non-executive Director; and Mr. Wei Bin
has been redesignated to a non-executive Director.

On 29 September 2023, Mr. Wei Bin has resigned as an
non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of the
investment committee of the Company upon his resignation
as the non-executive Director.

On 14 December 2023, Mr. Tang Nanjun has been appointed
as an executive Director and the CEO and Mr. Jiao Shuge has
resigned as the CEO.

On 1 July 2023, Dr. Lo Wing Yan William has resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Oshidori International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange; Stock Code: 622).

Save as disclosed above, there had not been any changes to
Director’s information as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rule during the Year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022
were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”) and the
consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited
by Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (“Prism").

Crowe resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 17 November 2023. Prism was appointed as the new
auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Crowe to hold the office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Prism
as the auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

On behalf of the Board
OClI International Holdings Limited

Jiao Shuge
Executive Director (Chairman)

27 March 2024
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
OCl International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 157 to 295, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policies information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements on 31 March 2023.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Allowance for expected credit loss of debt investments at amortised cost

Refer to Notes 3, 14 and 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Note 2(j)(i).

The Key audit matter

How the matter was address in our audit

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount
of the Group’s debt investments at amortised cost and
the related loss allowance amounted to approximately
HK$230,952,000 and approximately HK$209,932,000,
respectively.

The determination of loss allowance using the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model is subject to
a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD"), exposures at default (“EAD") and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors. Management judgements
and estimates are involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

We identified the allowance for ECL of debt
investments measured at amortised cost as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the gross
carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 and the
determination of loss allowance involved significant
management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for ECL of
debt investments at amortised cost included:

o obtaining an understanding of the management
process and key internal controls over the
measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the
key parameters and assumptions in the ECL
model, including any quantitative, qualitative and
forward-looking information;

o assessing the accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the ECL model,

e checking the mathematical accuracy of the ECL
calculations; and

o evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Allowance for expected credit loss of trade receivables

Refer to Notes 3, 16 and 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Note 2(j)(i).

The Key audit matter

How the matter was address in our audit

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
the Group’'s trade receivables was approximately
HK$45,474,000, after net off the loss allowance for
ECL of HK$ Nil.

The management measures loss allowances on
trade receivables at amounts equal to lifetime ECL.
ECL allowance on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix which involves significant
management judgement in estimating the expected
loss rate based on historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions.

We identified the allowance for ECL of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the carrying amount as at 31 December
2023 and the determination of loss allowance involved
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for ECL of
trade receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding of the management
process and key internal controls over the
measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the
key parameters and assumptions and in the ECL
model, including any quantitative, qualitative and
forward-looking information;

o assessing the accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the ECL model,

e checking the mathematical accuracy of the ECL
calculations; and

o evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Fair value measurement of financial assets

2(9).

Refer to Notes 3, 18 and 29(d) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note

The Key audit matter

How the matter was address in our audit

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$102,403,000, were categorised
as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy, which
represented 36.6% of the Group’s net assets.

The Group engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer (the “external valuer”) to apply
valuation techniques to determine the fair values of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
that are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques, in particular those included significant
unobservable inputs, involved subjective judgements
and assumptions. The sensitivity of the assumptions
used may have material impact on the valuation of
these financial assets.

We identified the fair value measurement of financial
assets categorised as Level 3 as a key audit matter due
to (i) the determination of the model adopted and key
inputs required management'’s significant judgement
and estimation; and (ii) the prescribed value of the
financial assets categorised as Level 3 is significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial
assets categorised as Level 3 included:

o understanding and evaluating the internal
controls relating to management’s model used,
development of significant assumptions and
major data inputs and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty;

o evaluating the external valuer’'s competence,
capability and objectivity;

o engaging auditor’s valuation expert to assist us
in evaluating the valuation methodologies and
key assumptions adopted by the Group’s external
valuer in the valuations of financial assets
categorised as Level 3 by (i) examining the terms
of the financial instruments and the relevant
agreements; (ii) assessing the reasonableness of
valuation methodologies; and (iii) assessing the
key parameters used against available market
information;

o evaluating the adequacy of related disclosures of
valuations of financial assets at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to estimate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Chi Chiu.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

YIP CHI CHIU

Practising Certificate Number: P06934

Hong Kong
27 March 2024
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REBBIZERERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mOERNRHEMhWEANR X

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

NOTE 2023 2022
B 3% —EC-=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FETL
Revenue W 7% 4
Revenue from asset management REBEEEB 2 & 42,746 28,274
Revenue from investment and financial RERERMBHARE
advisory services 2 W a 435 531
Income from underwriting and REBZFOHEREE
placing of securities Z WA - 1,560
Sales of goods HEEm 36,636 29,341
Income (loss) from securities trading REEHEENKE
and investments ZWA(EE) 9,731 (29,061)
89,548 30,645
Cost of sales and services rendered HERCRERBERR (33,968) (35,459)
55,580 (4,814)
Other income Hbd A 5 7,011 8,249
Selling and distribution costs HERKHER (14) (71)
General and administrative expenses — BRI (76,767) (51,486)
Impairment losses reversed (recognised)on & B A E & B (R 2 REE B
financial assets 3,629 (25,107)
Loss from operations REELXKER (10,561) (73,229)
Finance costs B%ER 6(a) (4,426) (5,993)
Share of profits of joint venture FE{5 & 2 A EEF 1,739 1,011
Loss before taxation BAaER 6 (13,248) (78,211)
Income tax credit FERE® 7 10 =
Loss for the year REEEFE (13,238) (78,211)
Attributable to: LTATEA:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARNAIEZRRE (13,118) (75,708)
Non-controlling interests R E R (120) (2,503)
Loss for the year KEEEE (13,238) (78,211)
Loss per share BREE HK(0.87) cents  HK(5.05) cents
- Basic and diluted —-EARLEE 10 (0.87) &l (5.05)7& Il
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158 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
oBEmNEMEBWR
For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=F#+-RA=1+—-HItEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(J4 7 o &t &)

NOTE 2023 2022
i & ZB-ZF —T-C
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEL
Loss for the year rEEEBR (13,238) (78,211)
Other comprehensive expense: Ht2EX &
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~—E# I SEH 7 HE Bz
to profit or loss: ZEH
Exchange differences arising on translation #EINE ¥ K E 4
of foreign operations ZERER (419) (946)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ZAFE2HE X HAH (13,657) (79,157)
Attributable to: LT ALHE:
Equity shareholders of the Company N/NETR E3i 4=t (13,425) (76,482)
Non-controlling interests FERER (232) (2,675)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear AFE2HE X HAHE (13,657) (79,157)

The notes on pages 163 to 295 form part of these financial BN E163E295E MM AL ZHFME D
statements. — & e
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REBBIZERERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ROUMBRARE
As at 31 December 2023

R-ZZE-=F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

NOTE 2023 2022
B 3% —EC-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FETL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHZE 11 14,795 22,360
Interest in joint venture REZBARIZER 13 6,709 5,101
Rental deposits MERS 17 1,086 1,086
22,590 28,547
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 15 6,719 6,256
Trade receivables EWE FRA 16 45,474 7,431
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 - T8 {4 278 & H 4 & U Bk 78 17 7,950 17,150
Debt investments at amortised cost BBERANTECERRE 14 21,020 17,350
Financial assets at fair value through BERFEFAEGZEREE
profit or loss 18 115,032 110,260
Time deposits with original RIBMBER=-EANTEHER
maturity date over three months 19 14,845 -
Cash and cash equivalents BehBReEEEHR 19 89,948 230,568
300988 389,015
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Contract liabilities EHEE 4(b) 3,272 1,548
Accruals and other payables Bt EREMENERE 20 30,390 12,022
Amount due to a related party J& 1~ BE B 5 5RO 21 - 46,930
Borrowings R 22 = 46,861
Lease liabilities HEBRE 23 3,174 7,089
Current tax payable Ji& 1= B HA £ 18 27(a) 798 337
i > veu 114781
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 263,354 274,228
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERABAEE 285,944 302,775
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 5,961 9,135

NET ASSETS

EEFRE 279,983 293,640
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160  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ROMBIRARNE
As at 31 December 2023

R-B-_=F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(J4 7 o &t &)

NOTE 2023 2022
B 3% —EC-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRERE
Share capital % 2 28(c) 14,998 14,998
Reserves & & 272,238 285,663
Total equity attributable to equity ARuEaRREGARESR
shareholders of the Company 287,236 300,661
Non-controlling interests FERER (7,253) (7,021)
TOTAL EQUITY wmER 279,983 293,640

The consolidated financial statements on pages 157 to 295 &R FI57TE20 B2 6 EHRERXEN -

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Z—WE=A-++BEEETSH &R EET
directors on 27 March 2024, and are signed on its behalf by: B OUVHNUNTEETRAEZE:

Jiao Shuge Tang Nanjun
E&E EME
Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 163 to 295 form part of these financial ZHRF163E295EMNM T AL SHEHREN
statements. —EBD e



2023 Fif; REEREZERERAA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RORREER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-Z-_=f+-A=+-HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAAERRRELS
Non-
Share Share  Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium Teserve reserye losses Total interests  Total equity
BE  RGEE EXEE  HEE  ZiHEE B FRRER s
HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn Tin TiEn Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
(Note 28 (Note 28 (Note 28
(Note 28(c) (e (i) (i)
(W (Wi (W&
(H&28(0) (0)] (diy) (i)
Balance at 1 January 2022 “EoCE-R-RER 14,998 493,790 (6) (919 (140,070) 372,193 - 372,193
Changes in equity for 2022 SECIERRERD:
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (508 (75,708) (2503 (8211
Other comprehensive expense for theyear ~ AEE 42 AR M g = (174) = = (174) (1) (946)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ AEE 2 AR L4 - e (174) = (75708 (76,48)) 2675 (719,157)
Contributions by non-controllng shareholders 34 5% & 37 3 f4f 1
to newly incorporated subsiciares WEELAATE - - - - - - 4 4
Partal disposal of & subsiciary to MABRRALE-RMELAN
anon-controlling shareholder (Note 12) SoER(NH) - = = 4350 = 4350 (4350) =
Balance at 31 December 2022 and CECCEYCRST-RR
1 January 2023 TEICE-R-RER 14,998 493,790 (780) 3831 (215,778) 300,661 (7,001) 293,640
Changes in equity for 2023 CECCERRERD:
Loss for the year REEER - - - - 319 (13,119 ) (1339
Other comprehensive expense for theyear ~ AEEEf2 AT M - - (307) - - (307) (1) (#19)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~~ AEE 2 AR LEE - - (307) - 131y (1340) ®3) (13657
Balance at 31 Decernber 2023 “ECCEYCACT-RER 14,998 498,790 (1,087) 381 (228,39%) 287,236 (7,25) 279,983

The notes on pages 163 to 295 form part of these financial

statements.
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162 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HOWRMERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=F#+-RA=1+—-HItEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(J4 7 o &t &)

NOTE 2023 2022
P = p gl —Z2-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Cash used in operations REH AL 19(b) (23,022) (4,279)
Bank interest received g 1451 R 1T H & 2,520 178
Income tax paid BE#EH (157) (5,253)
Income tax refunded BEEREMEGH 628 =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&TZEFMARESEE (20,031) (9,354)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Payments for purchase of property, plant ~ BAME - HERZEZH
and equipment ZHA (73) (3,672)
Increase in time deposits with original REBHBBE=EANTH
maturity date over three months 73 (14,820) =
Payment for acquisition of a joint venture W —HAE QAR 2 H ™ - (3,660)
Cash received from non-controlling o3 MK f‘ﬁ B
shareholders on newly incorporated ) I £ AR AR 3R I AR E’\J Be
subsidiaries - 4
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEFMARESEE (14,893) (7,328)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMER 19(c) (46,977) (38,986)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEESNERL S 19(c) (7,089) (8,762)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENAERESNFEED 19(c) (714) (304)
Interest paid BENF A 19(c) (3,962) (5,800)
Repayment to a related party mEE 5 EENIE 19(c) (47,008) (11,713)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BREZB TR BR & FE (105,750) (65,565)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBREEEBERL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (140,674) (82,247)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—-HZBRER
AT 1 JANUARY Be¢%EER 230,568 313,006
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEEERGH o E
CHANGES 54 (191)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt-ZA=+t-HAzR&RAEE
AT 31 DECEMBER ZEEH 89,948 230,568

The notes on pages 163 to 295 form part of these financial ZH MR F163E295H A /It F M KR KD
statements. — &b e

F
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Level 23, 28 Hennessy
Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting
and placing services, trading of wines and beverage, and
securities trading and investments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.
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ZFETZA=T-HBLEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit of loss (“FVPL") are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(qg).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

N
= —

ZFETZA=T-HBLEEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following new and
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these
financial statements for the current accounting
period:

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

] Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

o Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model
rules

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Except for the
amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information and provide
guidance on applying the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosure. The Group has
revisited the accounting policy information it has
been disclosing and considered it is consistent with
the amendments.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

For each business combination, the Group can
elect to measure any NCI either at fair value or at
the NClI's proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCI are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. NCI in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between NCI and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of NCI and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group or Company has joint control, whereby the
Group or Company has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets
and obligations for its liabilities.

An interest in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group's
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see
Notes 2(f) and 2(j)(ii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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ERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method, together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture, after applying the ECL model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

retained interest is not remeasured.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)).
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)
(ii)), unless classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquiree
and the fair value of the group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets

The Group's policies for investments in securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially stated
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at
FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of
how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see Note 29(d). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification.

(i) Non-equity investments
Non-equity investments are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Expected credit
losses, interest income calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note
2(u)(ii)(b)), foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

- amortised cost,
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(i) Non-equity investments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as if the
financial asset was measured at amortised
cost. The difference between the fair value
and the amortised cost is recognised in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). When the
investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in OCl is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(ii) Equity investments
An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL, unless the investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition the
group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in OCI. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. If such
election is made for a particular investment, at the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings and not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss (see
Note 2(u)ii)(a)).

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest (see Note
2(i)) and items of plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Properties leased Over the period of

for own use the lease term
Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements terms of the lease or
5 years
Furniture, fixture 5 years

and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.
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ERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of
12 months or less, and leases of low-value item.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value item, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 2(h) and 2(j)(ii)).

2.

2023 Annual Report

BAEHHRE)

(i)

HEEE#E)

ERAEBEA

REERBAE NEEEREMR
REEAHEAG HHEHEHF12
BAKA T EREEREKEER
BEERN EXKENEEER
BAVHER AKESRERSR
REHNHEELEEARNCHE - B
EEAEMZEHERBNEEN
AR EEHAREARECEERERR
B3 o

ERAETUEARLE AERE
NEREERANBNOEE M RER
BEER YEAEEME S M XL
(HZMETEZRETE)ERBEEA
ERERKRER - R mERR
HERBEREBHEKATE MAE
FAXAIERERMNE XA Xk
BORR —HEHXMNENAEHE
RS | AHEABNFES
AR EELEN S HEARESR
AR -

RIEE T ILE R R R A F A&
BEVNLEXNAGTE ERBRER
M BBk 2 RIEL M EMBEER
FAENHAEEABENYBESE M
FHREEANTEHVBEERE B
ik kBB AEEEENERAH
BESEMEMBEMMGETRAN B/
FREKRDNEERD - FRAREEE
BERIENABRFITERREEIE
Al B8R (R BT 52 2(h) & 2(G)i)) °



2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for
separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to investments
in non-equity securities carried at amortised cost
(see Notes 2(g)(i), 2(u)(ii)(b) and 2(j)(i)). Any excess
of the nominal value over the initial fair value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of right-of
use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
if the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there
is lease modification, which means a change in
the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case, the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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ERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECL"s) on the
following items:

° financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and debt
investments at amortised cost); and

° contract assets (see Note 2(1)).

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including listed securities and unlisted
investment funds, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Generally, credit losses are
measured as the present value of all expected

cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following rates if the effect is material:

o fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

. variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j: ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of
ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date (or a shorter period
if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months); and

o lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR”)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

2. BEABHBKRAE)
) FEBEREERERE)

(i)

XEZ@MTA
BEERGE)
EERRABLEARIS SRR
AgEFl)

AMEERTANEERRE
THRBIAKRE S KE LT
AEBESHLENHE R BTG
ERVIZHERB BFEN SR

EHNEENE

TAZLEENVORR -REH
AP REER S WO)E
BAPTKAEEZBEMHER
SENRF ZFETEREAR

& [ £ B a0 & IR K 4R S (a0
RBEH)EBRITH: H()e
MEEBBPOR AIBEKREYD
EH-AEBEeEREEAE
MEERETHER BEBXE
KB ETEHFMNEBZKAS
AR ESHRIEMEER-

CHEEER % %)J
Xﬁfﬁ%tﬂﬁ
N B

\—gga

kN om
@ R
—| >~ nn\‘

o RERABWNIHMAHIM
R HME -

TRITEIFSIRIFEE
FAMERNITERBEE
Zib(amEm)

e BEBRARZEENERSK
BHBEERL &

181



182

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
 E_F_ZFf+-_RA=Z+-—BHLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j: ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR”)

(Continued)

e  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in non-equity securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

o significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j: ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract assets is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and contract assets) to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() ' Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)
For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGU"s). Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed. For other assets, an impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the
resulting carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

N
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first in first out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(U

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(u)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the terms in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(u)). A contract liability is also recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such latter cases,
a corresponding receivable is also recognised (see
Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(u)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m])

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration
and only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and other
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Trade and other payables (other than refund
liabilities)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The
par value of the shares issued and fully paid is
recognised in the share capital account. Any excess
of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new
issue) over the par value of the shares issued is
recognised in the share premium account.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently,
these borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with Note 2(w).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the polynomial
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity
or in OCI.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustments to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:

—  temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture to
the extent that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future;

—  taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill; and

—  those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits
are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on
the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t}  Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts (Continued)

()

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required
to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount
of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. A
provision for onerous contracts is measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, which is determined based on the
incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation
under that contract and an allocation of other
costs directly related to fulfilling that contract.
Before a provision is established, the group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract (see Note 2(j)

(if)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when

it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or other sources (including securities
trading and investments) in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a
gross basis. In determining whether the Group
acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group's ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u] Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Investment and financial advisory
services income

Depending on the nature of the services
and the contract terms, investment
advisory services fees and financial
advisory services fees are recognised in
profit or loss over time using a method
that depicts the Group’s performance,
or at a point in time when the service is
completed.

Asset management fees

Asset management fees include periodic
management fees calculated based
on assets under management and
performance-based fee. The fees are
recognised progressively over time using
a method that depicts the Group’s
performance, to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

Income from underwriting and placing
of securities

The Group provides placing or underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising
activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue in respect of the commission
on underwriting and placing of securities
is recognised when the relevant placing
or underwriting activities are completed.
Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a
point in time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u] Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from other sources and other

income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Dividends

] Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.

Realised/unrealised gains or losses
from financial assets at FVPL

Net gains (losses) on financial assets at
FVPL are recognised on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes
are exchanged and unrealised fair value
gains (losses) on financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the period in which
they arise.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue from other sources and other
income (Continued)
(d) Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the
date of transactions are used. Foreign currency
differences are recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the exchange reserve, except to the extent that
the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the exchange reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. On disposal of
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation that have been
attributed to the NCI shall be derecognised, but
shall not be reclassified to profit or loss. If the
Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary
but retains control, then the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.
When the Group disposes of only part of an
associate or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

2.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[y Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken into
consideration in the assessment of whether the
Group, as an investor, controls the investee. The
principle of control includes three elements: (i)
power over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from involvement with the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use power over the
investee to affect the amount of investors’ returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
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elements of control listed above.

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether HREBEERE AEBZEHNFT
(i) there are any other holders in these investment FOZEREEsNENEMES

funds which have practical ability to remove
the Group, and prevent the Group to direct the
relevant activities of the investment funds; and (ii)
the combination of investments it holds, if any,
together with its remuneration creates exposure
to variability of returns from the activities of the
structured entities that is of such significance
indicating that the Group is a principal. The
structured entities shall be consolidated if the
Group acts in the role of principal.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

(a)

Loss allowances on financial assets at amortised
cost

In determining expected credit loss for financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the most
significant judgements relate to defining what is
considered to be a significant increase in credit
risk and in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of economic
conditions. A high degree of uncertainty is involved
in making estimations using assumptions that
are highly subjective and very sensitive to the risk
factors. Management reviews the loss allowance
on a regular basis. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY 3.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The Group holds financial instruments that are not
traded or quoted in active markets. The Group uses
its judgement to select the appropriate methods
and make assumptions based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period to
estimate the fair value of such financial instruments
classified as FVPL. Valuation techniques include the
market approach using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or
liabilities such as net asset values as provided by
fund administrators, broker quotes, last transacted
price and discounted cash flow approach which
utilises inputs such as projected cash flow and
discount rate. Broker quotes obtained from the
pricing sources (such as pricing agencies or bond/
debt market makers) may be indicative and not
executable or binding. The Group would exercise
judgement and estimates on the quantity and
quality of pricing sources uses. Although best
estimate is used in estimating fair values, there are
inherent limitations in any valuation technique.
Estimated fair values may differ from the values
that would have been used if a readily available
market existed.
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REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions and significant estimation are required
in determining the provision for income tax.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’'s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered. The Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of estimated
tax losses carried forward disclosed in Note 27(b)
as there is no evidence that future taxable profits
will be available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. B RABHRS
(a) Revenue (a) W=
The principal activities of the Group are asset AEEBFEXBREETE REH
management, provision of investment and RERUBKHZARSE EHIFBE
financial advisory services, provision of securities HERERE BEEBERSKRER
underwriting and placing services, trading of NEBFBHEERKRE -
wines and beverage, and securities trading and
investments.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RIZERIMBREAS»ZEFA
customers by major products or service lines is as Rl (U
follows:
2023 2022
—E-= - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Revenue from contracts with ERAMB®REEREISH
customers within the scope of HEXNEEFHNEHAK
HKFRS 15 A
Disaggregated by major productsor X B E R KRB E B H
service lines
- Asset management —-BEERE 42,746 28,274
— Investment and financial advisory —RERMBEARE
services 435 531
— Income from underwriting and - REBHFRERES
placing of securities Z A - 1,560
— Trading of wines and beverage - BEEREHEARM 36,636 29,341
79,817 59,706
Revenue from other sources H b iy &
Income from debt investments: RKRREBEBREZWKA :
— Interest income from debt —REHK AT EZE
investments at amortised cost BREME KA - 145
- Income from debt investments at —BAFEGFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss BEBEERERA - 950
- 1,095
Change in fair value of financial assets A A FE AEx 2 & &
at fair value through profit or loss BEATFEEZS 9,392 (30,156)
Dividend income ix 2 A 339 -
9,731 (29,061)

Total S 89,548 30,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Note
4(c).

The Group has applied practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its income from
investment and financial advisory services and asset
management as the Group recognises revenue
at the amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed
to date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from
sales of wines and beverage as the performance
obligation is part of a contract that has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

The Group will recognise the expected revenue
in the future when the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts are satisfied (see
Note 2(u)).

4.
(a)

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

SRDBRS (&)

W %5 (&)
17 R W B ) I 3R I8 T 5 8 0
ZEPEHWBERERNM T -

AR AEEAERERTSCHAERK
BRENMHERARGEREES R
WA MEEFEEEEREANKE
ESRIENKRRBEE WAKE
ERABEBYHBELERFISHE
NIBNERBEEZA #2BE
BEHRBRERRELARBRTFLPAHN
Z W as e

HREBEHNEERRE —FHAAN
REHFEREON —&n BA
SEERAEEMBHRELERFIS
REIVBENERERE 2 #2
BEREENNRSIBNELHERS
B MR am 2z W E e

EANEATRRNENERLEIE
TR AEESERKRERBHAK

A
A (2 B M aE2(u) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRNEBBIE ()
(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) EEHEEFEANEE
2023 2022
—B2-= —ZF=ZZ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Contract liabilities EHEE
- Billings in advance of - FREEBERRDHNENTE
performance in respect of asset E:S
management activity 577 1,548
- Billings in advance of -~ FBRBEEBRAREEED
performance in respect of B B 4 78 1 3K
trading of wines and beverage
activity 2,695 -
3,272 1,548
Movements in contract liabilities EHNERZEY
2023 2022
—ECZ=f 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TERT
Balance at 1 January R—R—BZ&& 1,548 9,169
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRAERFNFTAGHEED
a result of recognising revenue WATEDNEERD

during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the

beginning of the year (971) (7,621)
Increase in contract liabilities as a BEARBMEENRED

result of billings in advance of ERRHELNEELM

trading of wines and beverage

activity 2,695 -

Balance at 31 December Rt+tZA=+—HBz&% 3,272 1,548
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Liabilities related to contract with customers
(Continued)

Movements in contract liabilities (Continued)
When the Group receives fee income before asset
management activity commences, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of the contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds
the amount of fee income received.

When the Group receives advance payment
from customers to purchase wine and beverage
products before the customers take possession
of and accepts the products, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of the contract, until
the revenue recognised on the relevant contract
exceeds the amount of the advance payment
received.

The amount of billings in advance of asset
management activity and trading of wines and
beverage activity are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

Segment reporting

The Group's executive directors are the chief
operation decision makers (“CODM") as they
collectively make strategic decisions towards the
Group’s operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments:

(a) asset management

(b) investment and financial advisory services
(c) underwriting and placing of securities

(d) securities trading and investments

(e) trading of wines and beverage

4.

(b)

(c)

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

SRDBRS (&)

ERETEFEANEEHE)

EHNEBZEE (&
EAEBEEEEEEE MG A
RERABEAE SEBHESORKE
EAMNBE BEEMHERAMNER
Yk HB B T UCER B B U A -

EAEEREFPHEARALEMERA
WAEFBEABEMARBEMRD
BENREE $REORBEREL
ERHEE BEERHEHEAOERN
WaHBBaBENRAEEB AL -

BEEBLIPUNAEERKMRE
BEEPNAREREABTE—FA
BERRBUA -

DEEHE

AR AKENATESTHRRERS
HEHRNEEZEELRERTE
MRESITBERERRE(ZESR
EREED -

AEERBRERERDERFXE
BREBLELERREFERNBLRSE N
BRSO TAERERXRK K&K
BEZ2ATAI 28D &0 :

(a) EERE

(b) HRE KRB HE ARG

(0 EHFBHEES

d EBHEEREKE

() BBBELRKMEER
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRABWS(E)
Segment reporting (Continued) (c) VRS (&)
Segment revenue and results DI R FEE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEEPF &KW ZE uuHﬁZﬁTl Ry
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, HHE s ERAEER T ==
as well as information regarding the Group's FRZIE-ZZF+=A —+—E1JJ:
reportable segments as provided to the CODM FENERIBE RS BRBATMG M
for the purposes of resources allocation and MEBEKEAREREEELASE
assessment of segment performance for the years AEZ2HHENERIHINBAT -
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out
below.
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z-_=H+=ZHA=+—HL
FE
Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERHH REaH RHEH BEER
EEER FARE REE kRE HREH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAx A AR TAR AR A
Revenue from contracts with ~ REEFEHHKE
customers
At a point in time RE-BEY - - - - 36,636 36,636
QOver time BE-BEH 42,746 435 - - - 43,181
42,746 435 - - 36,636 79,817
Revenue from other sources REEAREHUE - - - 9,731 - 9,731
Revenue from external customers R B S %EF fik & 42,746 435 - 9,731 36,636 89,548
Inter-segment revenue RN E - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue T 2H A HMh# 42,746 435 - 9,731 36,636 89,548
Elimination of inter-seqment revenue 7 25 fi U & £ 3 - - - - - -
Consolidated revenue SENE 42,746 435 S 9,731 36,636 89,548
Reportable segment profit (loss) T 2H 2 HEH (F82) 8,798 432 - (3,.243) (6,993) (1,006)
Elimination of inter-seqment profit 7 25 & i 7| & 3 -
Reportable segment loss derived ~ REASENBEF R
from Group's external customers A E R AMAZHA T
and joint venture E& (1,006)
Other income EMA 7,011
Unallocated corporate and other A2 B AR RE X 1
expenses (14,827)
Finance costs BHER (4,426)
Loss before taxation BRBAER (13,248)
Income tax credit AERES 10
Loss for the year EEBR (13,238)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRABEWS(E)
Segment reporting (Continued) (c) RS (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DE W RFEEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-F-_—_f+=-HA=+—HL
FE
Investment
and financial Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERMTE EHOH HHEE BEER
BEER HARE REE RERE HREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Thn Thn Tin Thn T
Revenue from contracts with REEFAHANNE
customers
At a point in time RE-BES - = 1,560 5 29,341 30,901
Over time BR-REH 28,274 531 = = = 28,805
28,274 531 1,560 - 29,34 59,706
Revenue from other sources REHMGRR NS - - - (29,061) - (29,061)
Revenue (loss) from external RENBEFHUE (B
customers B 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 29,341 30,645
Inter-segment revenue P HENR R - - - - 1,573 1573
Reportable segment revenue (loss) T £ # 4 $ i % (K1) 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 30,914 32,218
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 25 8 4 & 41 8 - - S & (1,573) (1,573)
Consolidated revenue Gals 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 29,341 30,645
Reportable segment profit (loss) W 2H 4 HEF (F8) 238 526 1,560 (58,300) (1,118) (57,094)
Elimination of inter-segment profit 7 3 78 & 7 ¥ # (34)
Reportable segment loss derived ~ REAEENBEFP R
from Group's external customers AR AIMAZHAH
and joint venture B (57,128)
Other income ElA 7,229
Unallocated corporate and other A2 ERAFAIRE X
expenses (22,319)
Finance costs BHER (5,993)
Loss before taxation BREAER (18.211)
Income tax fiFH -
Loss for the year EEEE (78,211)

Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and income generated
by those segments. Inter-segment sales are priced
with reference to prices charged to external parties

for similar orders.

WERE2ELBMELE WG RIRAR
ITREAEHRS B - D HMEHE L2 E
FABLLET EWEINBA TR B EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRNEBBIE ()
(c) Segment reporting (Continued) (c) VRS (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DE W REEE)
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned SEHERMNEB)ES D BHR 2
by or loss from each segment without allocation MEEzEBER HEILEFAET
of certain other income, finance costs and EmWA BB EBEREARDERDF
unallocated corporate and other expenses. This REMIZEH I HmMEELERK
is the information reported to the CODM for the EERCER UNEHIBEEBERKEFT
purposes of resources allocation and performance (EESLA
assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities DHEEREBE
The following is an analysis of the Group's UTRREBRBEDHEZAE
assets and liabilities by reportable and operating BERBEZD:
segments:
As at 31 December 2023 R=ZFE=-_=F+=ZH=+-—H
Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory and placing trading and wines and
management services of securities investments beverage Total
RERHE EEOH E5EE BEEE
EEER EELY REE ki & REREE E b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER TER TER
ASSETS £E
Segment assets THEE 53,651 435 - 136,862 13,903 204,851
Unallocated items: FARER:
Property, plant and equipment ng RERRE 11,119
Deposits, prepayments and Be BRTBEREME
other receivables W EE 2,815
Time deposits with original maturity R/ @B=EA M
date over three months EBHER 14,845
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEES 89,948
Total assets BELR 323,578
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities ek 16,184 - - 9,701 3,255 29,140
Unallocated items: AORER:
Other payables EHERRE 5,320
Lease Liabilities RERE 9,135
Total liabilities AELE 43,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRABEWS(E)
Segment reporting (Continued) (c) DWWEH (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DHEEREEE)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_-_%+-A=+—-H
Investment
and financial Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory and placing trading and wines and
management services of securities investments beverage Total
RERYEK EHBH BHEE BER
BEER HARE REE RRE RAREER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TR TR THR TERL
ASSETS &E
Segment assets THEE 15,880 - - 136,958 15,329 168,167
Unallocated items: FORER:
Property, plant and equipment VEN Y ET 15,012
Deposits, prepayments and other & BN HER LM fE
receivables WEE 3,815
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEER 230,568
Total assets BESE 417,562
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities pR=Y | 1,963 - - 54,007 410 60,092
Unallocated items: AORER:
Other payables EfEAEE 43818
Borrowings B3 46,861
Lease Liabilities REBE 12,151
Total liabilities aERE 123,922
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
 E_F_ZFf+-_RA=Z+-—BHLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(c)] Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

J all assets are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain
property, plant and equipment, certain
deposits, prepayments and other receivables,
time deposits with original maturity date over
three months, and cash and cash equivalents.

] all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain
other payables, borrowings and certain lease
liabilities.

Other segment information
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.
(c)

2023 Annual Report

BRAPBIWS (&)

7 &b IR & ()

PEHEEREE(E)
REENBEZDMBERREERD
fic -

s MABEERESIKZEHMEKLED
moEETYE BEL&RE -
TR BNERBEREME
WHRELRRIAEERE=EA
MEHEFFIALRBEE RS S
BIE BRI

s FMARBIREEZBREEED
MoHEETEMEMNEKRE &
RAERETHERGERSN -

H 1ty 5 BEH
BERTES BEAKEALS
BEHOA:

BE_Z_=f+_-A=t—-HL
FE

Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  andplacing  trading and wines and
management services  of securities  investments beverage  Unallocated Total
RERME E5EH #5EE BEE
BEEE BARE kEE kkE RHREEH AAE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR TR TR TR
Additions to property, n% BERRE
plant and equipment RE - = = - - 73 73
Depreciation of property, EN N ET
plant and equipment g 3 = = = 3,648 3,966 7,637
Impairment losses reversed ~ FEREEEE 2
on financial assets HEESR - = = (3,629) = = (3,629)
Interest in joint venture RAERRZER 6,709 = = = = = 6,709
Share of profits of X R=-WNG:F
joint venture (1,739) - - - - - (1,739)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRABEWS(E)
Segment reporting (Continued) (c) DEHKE(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Bt 7 5E# (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-F-_—_f+=-HA=+—HL
FE
Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory and placing trading and wines and
management services of securities investments beverage Unallocated Total
RERET EHOH F5EE BEE
BEER FARK REE kRE  RAGEE ARR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL
Additions to property, ng RERRE
plant and equipment RE - - - - 8,295 15,994 24,289
Depreciation of property, ng RERRE
plant and equipment nE 3 - - 318 996 5,012 6,359
Impairment losses recognised 1 & @24 & B 32 &
on financial assets REBE 781 - - 24,326 - - 25,107
Interest in joint venture REEDNAZES 5,101 = = = = = 5,101
Share of profits of X R-INGbR
joint venture (1,01) - - - - - (1,01)
Information about major customers BERETEEFZEH

The Group's customer base is diversified and
includes two (2022: two) customers with whom the
value of transactions have exceeded 10% (2022:
10%) of the Group’s revenues (excluding income
(loss) from securities trading and investments) as

AEBZEFPEZTE EM(ZE
TZFE MBBEFPZRHBERBBA
SEAKS(TEEXREEZSFEE
RIEEZHRA(ER)I0%(ZE =
ZF10%)  HAWT

follows:
Note 2023 2022
fisE === —E_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FE T
Customer A BEFA (i) 38,003 19,750
Customer B = FB (ii) 11,018 10,130
Notes: M aE -
() Revenue from asset management business segment, () KREBEEEEBEBIBzWZ &
calculated in terms of assets under management. EREEEHE-
(i) Revenue from trading of wines and beverage business (i) REBEERKREEEB»H 2
segment. W &5 o
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and interest in joint
venture (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical location
of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and the location of
operations, in case of interest in joint venture.

4.

2023 Annual Report

BRAPBIWS (&)
(c) 2 &EI|EE)

ih I & #Y
TERHINEHEODAEERAIIBE
Flmk(i)AKEEME BE &K
BARREGERRIZEE(BEF
RBEEDANMEBELEEAR TP
B 3 2 7 B BOR B0 12 ¢ AR 75 3k X A
EMHNE -RFEFRRBEENL
BUNENEREENERULEG
ME - BELEREMS) REENL
EMEERRIZEAMT) -

Revenues from external

customers Specified non-current assets

REIBEF ZWH BEFRBEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=-= —_E-— —=E=-= =~
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET THER FET
Hong Kong A 89,548 30,645 14,778 22,326
The People’s Republic ~ # #E A R X 7

of China ("PRC") (el - - 6,726 5,135
89,548 30,645 21,504 27,461
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hfthidgr A
2023 2022
—E-= - —
HK$000 HK$'000
FEXT FHET
Bank interest income FTHR B U A 3,032 178
Income from termination of REKRIEFBEREZBA

memorandum of understanding (R B 3E32(b))

(see Note 32(b)) 3,286 6,386
Government grants (Note (i)) iSRRG - 468
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREH 2B

plant and equipment - 120
Sundry income FMIEKA 693 1,097

7,011 8,249

Note (i) Bt 5 ()

In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from RZEZZF AEBEKIHBE %-i BRI AT B
the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, BRSO EREES T EI'J BEIFE
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative B - BNBRLZEFERAT I“? ¥ R4t
Region. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support BZE REBEAUJESHENNESE - REMM
to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise B IR KNE&E @ REXHUEBEITGEHET R
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is EILHMEERARINEETIR -

required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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E_ZE_=Ff+-R=+—-BHIEE
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. P[RR AIE 18
Loss before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting): BRBATEERINER (T A) T EIER
e
(a] Finance costs B %5 B
2023 2022
—_Eg2-= —_=z=_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T FE T
Interest on other borrowings HiEEMNE 1,195 4,881
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEMNE 714 304
Interest on amount due to TR B 5 IR R B
a related party 2,317 164
Other borrowing costs H M EEKAR 200 644
4,426 5,993
(b) Staff costs 8 T KA
2023 2022
—_E-=HF —ZE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEIT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 8) ZEEW e (MTsEs)
— fees and other emoluments — e hEMLHe 2,064 3,630
Other staff costs EMETHX
— salaries, allowances and bonus —F e ERERIEL 32,307 17,864
— retirement benefits scheme —R KR FI A& 5
contributions 652 750
35,023 22,244
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. PMRBtAIEE(E)
(c) Otheritems (c) HAEB
2023 2022
—g—-= —ZEF=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH& T
Depreciation charge (Note 11) rE B FE)
— owned property, plant and -BEVE BERRE
equipment 954 338
— right-of-use assets —ERAREE 6,683 6,021
7,637 6,359
Impairment losses (reversed) B (& E)MERBEEE
recognised
— debt investments —-BEBEKRAE (3,629) 24,326
— trade and other receivables —EYWE 5RIE K H &
Y B 18 - 781
(3,629) 25,107
Auditors’ remunerations Z 8RN B &
— audit services — 1% EUBR 700 1,228
— other services —H th AR 75 - 170
700 1,398
Legal and professional expenses FEREXER 20,255 6,247
Commission fee relating to asset HEEEREKEAEHE AR
management business =1 - 8,400
Cost of inventories (Note 15) FE KA K EE15)
— cost of sales —HE AR 33,968 27,059
- general and administrative — M RITHXH
expenses - 1,539
33,968 28,598
Net foreign exchange gain N e (328) (964)
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

2023 Annual Report

RGOREREMEBNREZXRANFAR

s

a) RHESGEERHEGBCZEWERAN

loss and other comprehensive income represents: WIELE -
2023 2022
—B-= —ZF- =
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Current tax BN 23 B 1|
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - EEBFEH
Over-provision in respect of BETFEBBERE
prior years (10) -
Provision for the year FEEME = -
(10) -
(a) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the (a) BERASHEREBREIZHES

Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these two jurisdictions.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified
entity of the Group is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of a qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of other group entities in
Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(b)

MR RED REBHEBEH
Mz MR R AR N ERME
e

BE-_ZT-_="FR-_FT-__F
+-_A=Z+—BLEE &x&
EeERBEENBBMNEBD
BRI F 15 BB R AR B R E o
BEMNSEEEMAS 65
REBERBHE28E B TH
SR8 25% i - MiER2 A
BE TN EAEZ16.5%
o NTEE F AT BB R R AR G
WAEERAEMERNFE
1 78 1% [E] TE B E16.5% A ©

HRAEEBRBE T _=F
FZEZ_—_F+=-_A=+—H
tFEELTEMAERN QI E
REETHERRAIREBAE
TR -
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REBBIZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

(c) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25%
(2022: 25%).

No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for in the consolidated financial
statements as the Group has no estimated
assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

RGOREREMEBNREZXRANFANR
Gt (E)

a) RHESEERHEGCZEWERAN
BIEE (&)

(0 FTECLEMBHMKEERAE25%(=
T —F :25%) e

HRAEBRBE-ZT_=F
K-+ =-A=+—8H
HFEYEGBTERBREF
B R AR S BT R NE R
PEMCEREH 2BE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. MGG EaREMEZEBR WS X AN

OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE swmE)
INCOME (Continued) (b) REAMEFE 2R B HESS
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and BBz HER

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FH& T
Loss before taxation B B A B3 1B (13,248) (78,211)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BIMAIBEZ BHEHE @ 1%
calculated at the rates applicable BHEREER 2R NER
to profits in the jurisdictions MEFE
concerned (2,071) (11,743)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 8] 1 & = 3% i ¥ Fi 18
for tax purpose FE 2,785 1,824
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBFH 2 WA H 1B
tax purpose 2w (815) (828)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & & 52 &t 18 &5 18 ¥ % 18
ZRE 1,566 11,179
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary KRERE K E =B H H 18
differences FE 108 (432)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not E) BT R ER 2 HIEEIE
recognised (1,138) -
Over-provision in respect of prior BEFEBEBERE
years (10) -
Tax effect of share of results of BhHeaEbEEBENONNK
joint venture FE (435) =

Income tax credit Frig i (10) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE
8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. ESFHE
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENSERESZHMOT :
as follows:
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
UrEs FUGES BUFHTES
Ts0 Siu Lun Lo Wing Yan Total
Jiao Shuge  Tang Nanjun FengHai  Wu Guangze WeiBin  Zheng Xiaosu  Chong Ka Yee Alan Li Xindan William 2073
EHE EHE BB fRE R g8 #zd Edh 0 Bk ZBIZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TR TR T#n TR TR TR T#n TR TR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e) (Note f) (Note g)
(Wita) (Hatb) (Hrikc) (Witd) (Wite) (W) (Hritg)
Fees e = - - - - - 186 20 20 L 906
Other emoluments Mg
Salaries ¢ = = = 1,150 = = = = = - 1,150
Discretionary bonus MERL - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit scheme & R 73 2 - - - 8 - - - - - - 8
- - = 1,158 - - 186 0 20 pI) 2064
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
§f78% FHhES BUkafES
Chang ~ TsoSiuLun Lo Wing Yan Total
Feng Hai WeiBin -~ WuGuangze  JiaoShuge  Zheng Xiaosu Tat Joel Alzn Li Xindan William il
5 ) REE EHR g% L4 E2h 20 EXC ZECCEER
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$000
T Tin TEn T T TiEn TEn T TiEn TEn
fegs e S S S S - 210 10 10 1) 960
Other emoluments A ES
Salares £ - - 2640 - - - - - - 2640
Discretionary bonus Mgl = = = = = = = = = =
Retirement beneft scheme RENE - - 18 - - 1 - = = 30
- - 2658 - - 25 10 10 10 3630
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

Notes:

(a)  Mr. Jiao Shuge redesignated from a non-executive director
and appointed as a chief executive officer on 18 May 2023
and resigned as a chief executive officer on 14 December
2023.

(b)  Mr. Tang Nanjun appointed as an executive director and
chief executive officer on 14 December 2023.

(c) Mr. Feng Hai redesignated from an executive director on 18
May 2023.

(d)  Mr. Wu Guangze redesignated from an executive director
and resigned as a chief executive officer on 18 May 2023.

(e)  Mr. Wei Bin redesignated from an executive director on 18
May 2023 and resigned as a non-executive director on 29
September 2023.

(f) Ms. Zheng Xiaosu resigned as a non-executive director on 31
March 2023.

(g0 Mr. Chong Ka Yee appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 23 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, no director of the Company (2022: one
director) whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8
above. The emoluments of five (2022: the remaining
four) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023
were as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

RSEHMAL

rEERNEEEaME2AMALT X
BARRIER(ZZE__F: —UE=$)-
BEZHEER EXWIASKEE -EHE
T+ -_A=Z+—BILEE" T
M(ZEZZF BB TEUATZEE

wmn

2023 2022
—E-=FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Salaries and other benefits e hkHMumEF 10,460 6,601
Contributions to retirement BAKAE F ET &R
benefits schemes 68 72
10,528 6,673
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEHMERATAR -
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-C
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAY EE AH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 0 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7% 7T 0 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % T £ 2,000,000 % 7T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 Jt & 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 Jt & 3,000,000 7% 7T 1 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE
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10. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 10. SRERRBBEE
2023 2022
=5 —ZT—-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Loss BiE
Loss attributable to equity RARIERRREMLEE
shareholders of the Company (13,118) (75,708)
2023 2022
—EBEZ=H —Z=E-=
Number of shares R4 & B
Weighted average number of BETEBERMETHH
ordinary shares in issue 1,499,749,920 1,499,749,920
Basic loss per share was calculated as the loss for the PR EARERBIDIEARREBRKEE
period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the EHABBRUEETERRINE TS
Company divided by the weighted average number of HEtE-

ordinary shares in issue.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the BE_ZT_="FRZIZFE_Z_F+ZR=
diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share T—RLEFE HRARAERENT
because the exercise price of Company's share options FESARHFEHEME EREFEE

was higher than the average market price for shares. HBREXNEEMRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

M. ME -BERR
(a) FRTEE ¥R

Properties
leased for Furniture,
own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total
ARG &M B
BEREENE HE#£L HERZE a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAx
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2022 RZE--_%—-HF—H 21,608 2,766 1,136 25,510
Exchange adjustments R (36) = (16) (52)
Additions NE 20,431 2,793 1,065 24,289
Disposals EE (21,572) (2,766) - (24,338)
At 31 December 2022 W-_E-__%+-A=+-8 20,431 2,793 2,185 25,409
At 1 January 2023 R-_ZE-=%-8-H 20,431 2,793 2,185 25,409
Exchange adjustments 5 AR = - (4) (4)
Additions NE - - 73 73
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=1—H 20,431 2,793 2,254 25,478
Accumulated depreciation: RiAHE:
At 1 January 2022 R-_E--%—-A—-H 16,189 2,766 972 19,927
Exchange adjustments g (20) = 12) (32)
Provided for the year ERNEE 6,021 187 151 6,359
Written back on disposals REAMD (20,439) (2,766) - (23,205)
At 31 December 2022 WZE-_-f#+-A=1+-H 1,751 187 1,111 3,049
At 1 January 2023 R-_B-=%—-A-H 1,751 187 1,111 3,049
Exchange adjustments X A% - S (3) 3)
Provided for the year EREE 6,683 698 256 7,637
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=+-H 8,434 885 1,364 10,683
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2023 W-_E-=%+-A=+-H 11,997 1,908 890 14,795
At 31 December 2022 WZE--#+-A=1+—-H 18,680 2,606 1,074 22,360
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

AN
EiS

11.

— 5 —
=
=

ZFETZA=T-HBLEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) M. ME-BERRXEBE)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

2023 Annual Report

BEEBRRSMWEREEENK

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: HFEWAT :
2023 2022
—EZ=fF —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TERT
Properties leased for own use, HEBRMME UIFEXK
carried at depreciated cost 3l 7R 11,997 18,680

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

HEBGaTPEIANEEABANOXLIER

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DHWT
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REEBHNEPNGERAREEE
assets by class of underlying asset: MIFEER
Properties leased for own use HEBRNWE 6,683 6,021
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) ME & EHME (M FE6) 714 304
Expense relating to short-term leases HERMEFEBEN D 359 444
Variable lease payments not included NEHENRUEFARE
in the measurement of lease liabilities BENE 2,600 -
During the year ended 31 December 2022, BHE_T__F+_-_A=1+—HBHL*F
additions to right-of-use assets were approximately E-EREEERNELN R20,431,000%

HK$20,431,000 which were primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new

tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

Notes 19(d) and 23, respectively.

H oo

HERSR
& & B R 2 47 95 Bl £ M &7 19(d) k& 23 7 7

TOIEHEFEEBRFRITIENEA(L
HENRERA-

BENFHEENEESR
5
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
4 years. Lease payments are increased on an
agreement-to-agreement basis to reflect market
rentals.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the future
lease payments during the extension periods are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

M. N¥E BERXEE)

(b)

EREEREGE)

HEB BB
AEEEREHEGZESERYD
XESMRGMHEN - HEBRR
e B E4F - HE M FIR @ Rl
HBEAAUNRRTISHEE -

REBHEBREARNBRAERR
HESEHNBEINEIER - EAITH
BT NEEBHNRBEARNEETA
THEOBERER URERHELE)
M- AEBXREEMKBERAFTH=
CAEMEETEEHERE W
REEE TR BETITEEHERE
B AMEEAHMENRKEEMNK
T AHERENE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. BﬁE ‘AN E
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at KRARRZEZ=FR_2ZTE=2F+=
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: A= ‘f’ AZETEWBRARIGFHBHOT :
Place of Particulars of
incorporation or Issued and
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation  paid up capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
AL B&AR
WEAAAR s EXnY BERAFE REREZAMK IERK
Direct Indirect
EE B
2023 2022 2023 2022
“B-cE -Z--F ZB-ZE -F-CF
0Cl Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEXARAT Bk BB 1,000/ 7T - - 100% 00% REBK
OCI Asset Management Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong Us$1 - - 100% 100%  Fund management
(Cayman) Co Ltd
0CI Asset Management RERS Br E3 - s 100% 100% E2EE
(Cayman) Co Ltd
0Cl Asset Management Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$20,001,000 = S 100% 100%  Asset management
Company Limited (2022:
HK$5,001,000)
REEEEEARAR  FE B 20,001,000% T - - 100% 00% ZEEE
(C2-f:
5,001,000/ L)
Real Treasure Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - - Trading of wines and
Limited beverage
EERERRAA BB BE 1T 100% 100% - - BHERAMEE
OCI Administrative Services  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% - - Provision of management
Limited services to group
companies
REBRTBRBBRAA Bk Bk 1,0007 7T 100% 100% - - REBRAREERR
#
RB(LB)LEEEED  PRC PRC HK$14,750,500 - - 51% 51%  Provision of financial
BERAA) advisory service
RR(LE)CRERANE 1E e 14,750,500 ¢ - - 51% 5% REMBAARS
B2 A )
OCl Global SPC-OCI US Dollar - Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong US$1,768,226 - - 100% 100%  Investment fund
Debt Fund SP(ii)
0Cl Global SPC-OCI US Dollar B & & & B 17682065 T = - 100% 100% REES

Debt Fund SP(ii)
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(i)  Registered as a wholly owned foreign enterprise
under PRC Law.

(i)  The Group considers that it has ability to control
through its representatives on the board of the
investment fund and acting as a fund manager. The
“paid up capital” disclosed above represents the
participating shares of the respective investment
fund at the end of the reporting period.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Partial disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed its 49% shareholding of Title Success Limited to
a BVI company which is wholly owned by an employee of
a subsidiary at zero consideration. At the date of disposal,
the fair value of Title Success Limited was insignificant.
The disposal does not result in loss of control of the Group
over Title Success Limited and is treated as an equity
transaction. Title Success Limited become a partially-owned
subsidiary since then.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

RBLINKRE (&F)
(i) WEFEZZZMAIBBELE -

(iy *&EERR EEBREREETE
FENRRLETECRERRE
e EXWEMNIHRRA]EA
AREESNBERRZLBRBMD -

FRHBARNFROGEZRTEMNER

ARAEZERR ERMAINARAME
RAIETBREAKRENXRERNEELR
E-ARAEFAR REEMHER
ANFRERERFEBR TR

HE—RNBARANI D ER

BHE_T__F+_A=t+—BILF
E AEENUNZRERN—HHWEAQF
W—R2EEXERMBENREBREZESA
7 i & H # A Title Success Limited #49%
PEAE o 7 & B 8 - Title Success Limited
MATFEELFTERN - HESTHI EBE
A &£ B %k & HTitle Success Limited #y 4%
HlE BERARER S L% Title
Success LimitedfX B DB M E A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12.
Disposal of a subsidiary

On 11 January 2023, the Group entered into a sale
agreement, with an independent third party, to
dispose its entire interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Arcadia Fund Management GP Limited, which was
principally engaged in provision of securities trading and
investments for a consideration of HK$1. The net assets

of Arcadia Fund Management GP Limited at the date of
disposal were as follows:

2023 Annual Report

NERINKRE (E)
HE—RBHREQA
RZEZ_=Z=%—A+—HB Xx&EHA
BYF=ZFFLHEBRALEHER
% & K B 2 &) Arcadia Fund Management
GP Limited ) 2 50 s - Z AR X BN F
RHEBFEEERE RER1B T
Arcadia Fund Management GP Limited 7 H
ERHNEEFENT

2023
HK$'000
THER
Consideration received and receivable: 2k e AR E
Cash received = -
Consideration receivable FE U (8 -
11 January
2023
—E-=
—A+—8H
HK$'000
THER
Analysis of assets and (liabilities) over Sy EERBEB) ST
which the control was lost:
Other receivables H fth & Y2 AR 18 30
Net assets disposed of HEBEEFE 30
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—HNBAR ZEE :
Consideration received and receivable 2 K e KB -
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 30
(30)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZREMAFE:
Cash consideration received BERRERE =

Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B e

RITEHRNES -
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid-up
capital of LERRME R EEEF R R A (the "Joint
Venture”) from a third party at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$3,660,000. As of the acquisition date,
the fair value of the Group’s share of the Joint Venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities was approximately
HK$4,273,000, resulting a gain on bargain purchase of
a joint venture of approximately HK$613,000.

Pursuant to the Article of Association of the Joint
Venture, the Joint Venture is jointly controlled by the
Group and the other party because the relevant activity
affecting its returns from its involvement with the Joint
Venture requires the unanimous consent of the Group
and the other party sharing the control. Therefore, the
Joint Venture is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.

Details of the Group’s interest in joint venture, which
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

13. REELIIER

RZZEZZFRAZ+T=H AEHI
/& R (B 43,660,000 T A 5 = H KB
LWERMERARLEERERAREE
RNAIDNEO%M BB A - MUt A H -
AEEREGEAGELAAUHRNEERARE
ZRARFEHBAL273,0008 T ELEHE
BEAE QA2 Wz 4613,0008 7T °

BEASAAMABRSERMAA 422
AEmASERS—HRAEH REA
PEHSRASAANNEENARED
BEAEER S ERIEN SR — 5 — K
BBl RALEAFAEAREEN
ABDFNE-

d

S

AEBERGAEMBRRPINEGZERT
ZRED(ERBZEARNFROT

Proportion of

Particulars of ownership
Form of Place of registered interest
Name of business incorporation and paid-up held by
joint venture structure and business capital the Group Principal activity
ot B L K Bk e 4 Eo3
RENTER EBERESA X BRREFRE BBk TEXK
Shandong Civil Aviation Incorporated PRC Registered share capital: 60% Provision of asset
Dongsheng Investment Balilzav t RMB10,000,000 management and
Management Company Limited* Paid-up capital: advisory services
WREHRAREER RMB5,000,000 REAEERL
BERAA Bt AR - H AR
AR %10,000,0007C
BRRA:
AR 5,000,000 T
*  For identification only * (EHREF

The Joint Venture in which the Group participates is an
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is
not available.

AEBEZ2BE K -GERARIELTA
RER YEMS®RE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
 E_F_ZFf+-_RA=Z+-—BHLEE

13.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 13. MBE
Summarised financial information of the Joint Venture,

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

/7,

282 i 3 (#)
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ARl cHBERBMEB(E R EFR

RZEMERELFHE)

B A M5 ®

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated FANEEHBECHEREENT -
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2023 2022
—EgE-= —_EFq- =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
The Joint Venture’s N
Current assets B & E 18,813 16,848
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,913 4,006
Current liabilities nEaE (12,208) (6,596)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (337) (1,001)
Equity attributable to the equity EaRREGER
shareholders 11,181 8,502
Equity attributable to the non-controlling JE 4% f% #E %5 & 15 # 25
interest - 4,755
Total equity 48R 11,181 13,257
Included in the above assets and FALMEEREBE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents BHerkIBeEEEE 15,146 14,764
Current financial liabilities (excluding nBERARE (T BIEE S
trade and other payables) N E b fE S FRIE) (639) (608)
Non-current financial liabilities ERBEHAE (334) (998)
Revenue W 5 26,956 10,876
Profit for the period attributable to the  #& 2 A% 3 & 16 2% HA 8 & I
equity shareholders 2,899 1,685
Included in the above profit: gF A L HEF
Depreciation and amortisation & N B8N (810) (482)
Interest income B A 180 120
Interest expense M E R X (66) (53)
Income tax expense FT 5 B < (161) (69)
Reconciled to the Group's interestin BEAEBEREE QAT 2
the Joint Venture ERHER
The Joint Venture's net assets attributable #£ 5 i% 3R fE (5 & & A 7]
to the equity shareholders & EFE 11,181 8,502
Ownership interest held by the Group AEBBSENMAREER 60% 60%
Group'’s share of the Joint Venture’snet AN&EBEEAS LA FE 2
assets B EFE 6,709 5,101
Carrying amount of the Group's interest 7N £ B # 25 7 BR E & 6,709 5,101
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 14. RIBEHRGTBEACERIRE
Note 2023 2022
Bt 5% —EC-=F —E_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FEL
Corporate debt securities NEEBEFH (a) 230,952 230,856
Less: Loss allowance (see Note 29(b)(i)) & : /&5 18 B & (& Mt 5£29(b)(i)) (209,932) (213,506)

Total debt investments at amortised B R N E2BEHRERE

cost, net of loss allowance (MEREERE) 21,020 17,350
(a) Corporate debt securities (a) ~RBHEZS
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: RAIBEHES B
Note 2023 2022
Bt 3 —E-= —E-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL
8% senior guaranteed notes SEEEREBELEZR
("SP Note") ([SPR#E]) (i 101,574 101,531
10% senior guaranteed notes WEEEREBLEER
("RD Note") ([ROE#E]) (ii) 108,376 108,331
9% guaranteed bond ("CFLD Note")9E 5 ERE 4 ([CFLDE#]) (iii) 21,002 20,994
Gross carrying amount at 31 R+-—A=+—-BZ4ERE

December 230,952 230,856
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 14 REEMRABCERRE(E

(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued) (a) ABEEKEESE)
Notes: B 3
()  SP Note represented US$13 million (2022: US$13 () SPEEREBR=-B(HESE)BRAQA
million) 8% senior secured guaranteed notes issued ([SPEBRTANDEITRZ=ZZF— 1
by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“SP FEtA=THIHEMI3EEET(Z
Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right T -F:13BEET)SERER
to extend the maturity date by further 12 months AEREAZE TALAGHE
exercisable by the Company. The SP Note is secured & 5 Hﬁ EI 12 B - SPEENTH
by a charge over 131,000,000 shares of C.banner EEEZERERA 7( F R EE
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on BMEXHMAERA w2z A7)
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group 131,000,000 f% & 15 f’F ?ﬁﬁ Tﬁ EiR-E
does not have the right to sell or re-pledge the shares SPEBEETARLBELANBRLT
held as collateral in the absence of default by SP AEBERELESBERABFRN
Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also secured B M SPEEBEIRU=ZBE
by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower Group BRAR(ATERADAIE#H
Co., Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and personal BAREREARERAZERR

guarantee provided by Yuan Yafei (the “Personal
Guarantor”), controlling shareholder of Corporate
Guarantor.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors
of the SP Note failed to provide additional collateral
requested by the Company pursuant to the terms of
the SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of
events of default (“EOD") under the terms of the SP
Note. In October 2018, the Group has issued EOD
notice to SP Note Issuer in respect of all outstanding
sums owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November
2018 and 10 January 2019 in relation to the default of
the SP Note.

RRDFTEABRADREH/D E
ATERBEM -

RBEE-Z-NF+-A=+—H
LEE SPEBEERAZREEA
RAFRREIFEREREBESPRRE K
REAABDEBREHRB\IMER S
BHENEMH(ENEHDHEL -
RZZE—-NF+ A AEBECZHLSP
ERBETARNOMAAREENRREA
ASPEBEZFTAZBLBOEHBA -
RKRABER-_ZE-—NE+TA-t+A1h
B —Z2-NF+—-—A=-tBR=
Z-NF-ATBEHRPEBENE
HERRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 1 November 2018, the Group appointed a legal
adviser and the Group brought legal proceedings
against the Corporate Guarantor and the Personal
Guarantor at the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November
2018 for all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note
Issuer under the SP Note. On 20 December 2018, the
Court issued a R 5 i f## £ (the “Mediation Order”,
order numbered (2018) Su 01 Min Chu N0.3422) in
relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of
the amounts owed under the SP Note recorded in the
A EE 1% % (the "Settlement Agreement”) entered
into between OCI Capital Limited ("OCI Capital”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor on
the same day as a result of the mediation conducted
by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor are required under the
Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement
to repay amounts owed under the SP Note to OCI
Capital by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment
by 28 December 2018 and twelve further monthly
payments during 2019, no payment was received
by OCI Capital based on the Mediation Order and
Settlement Agreement. Given such failure to pay in
accordance with the agreed schedule, all amounts
payable under the Mediation Order and the Settlement
Agreement became immediately due and payable.
Accordingly, on 9 January 2019, the Group submitted
an application to the Court for the enforcement of
amounts due under the Mediation Order and the
Settlement Agreement. Up to the date of these
financial statements, such court application is still in
progress.

The Company received notice from the Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd on 8 December 2021 that the
Restructuring Plan (the “Plan”) of Sanpower Group
Co., Ltd was passed. The Plan is scheduled to resolve
the defaulted debts and part of the related interest
due through business restructuring and improving
fund pool through disposal of certain assets or
investments. The Plan will last through 2021 and
2028. The Company is registered as one of the
Sanpower’s debtors and will be notified by Sanpower
Group Co. Ltd for their updates on the Plan.

On 20 December 2023, there is a voluntary conditional
cash offer (the "Offer”) made by First Shanghai
Securities Limited, for and on behalf of Orchid Valley
Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”) in respect of the
charged C.banner International Holdings Limited's
shares at the offer price of HK$0.16 per share. The
Group has accepted the Offer and transferred the
charged C.banner International Holdings Limited
shares to the Offeror in January 2024.
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14. RBEARGFEZEBERE(HE)

() DEEH=EZSGE)
BsE : (&)

@)

(%)

RZE—-—NF+—AF—H"
ZEZEZEEBR MALEE)
NE+ — EEWHMPKF
BSPE iF £ £
/IﬁétPﬁ}Jii&dFiﬁJm+%
NAERARBAERARZER
ﬁ“ R=ZFE—NF+=-A=+H"
FRELREABRE(AMRSE] X
E R 9 A((2018)8 01 & #134225%) -
RNAREBERAFERARBAERA
HERBARAZ2EMNBARRE
BAEBRAB(REBELX])  AalfE
BRARBAERAMETHORAREM
mﬁaazmﬂ%méwﬁmmﬁn
et $E MSPEBEB TN E& R RBEZ
REMFE- ﬁ*“TVﬁA&IAV
RABEBRBEABESLMNBEHERE
BEAEESPERBNARNRIE -
FRAR-_Z—NF+_A=+N
E%iﬁ%%ummm%ﬁ&%:
TN FIXAHBIT+HEAR
m%g§$m*wumﬁmﬁ

AR 1% 5 1F B E TS R %W*
%ﬁﬁ%%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'%ﬁﬁ
R E N RN 15 R JE Y M R IR T

ERREEIEEEN - FLL - A&
EE%:%—ni—HHHW%ﬁ
e mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬂ%%
%ETUW XIH - HEE I 5 0% R
FABARL FHEERBEDER
TR R -

ARRARZ—ZZE=-—F+=-ANHA
THREEERAREEREBE-BESE
BERAAZEAFRTERR]D
EBEBMBM ZARFEEBE
BKEEMBLEETEESKREMN
NELESHRBAENES RIS
FEMEENE - ZARBERF
T FE_ZFE-_NFHBEE®E X
AAEBERABZHWONEHBAZ—
BEE-BEEFERARBNEMBZ
FRMEHHEL -

%
4 | |
M

T_=F+=ZA=+H B—

8 FEHF B R QAR KOrchid Valley
Holdings Limited ([E#H A B #H L T
BEBBERERAAIKRGRL S
FEEGRGEREEZN(EN])  ZHE
REBROIEETL - AEEBR T =
ME—BEMBHTBEEERNT
AEBRBRERERAGRKRGOERET
E:GND
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(i)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of
the SP Note was approximately HK$20,305,000 (2022:
approximately HK$15,038,000), after a provision for
impairment loss of approximately HK$81,269,000
(2022: approximately HK$86,493,000) (see Note
29(b)(i).

RD Note represented US$15 million (2022: US$15
million) 10% senior guaranteed notes issued by
Rundong Fortune Investment Limited (“RD Note
Issuer”) maturing on 15 April 2019. The RD Note is
secured by a charge over 78,000,000 shares of China
Rundong Auto Group Limited (“China Rundong
Shares”), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not have the
right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral
in the absence of default by RD Note Issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RD Note
Issuer failed to repay the outstanding interest and
handling fee receivable and this has resulted in
occurrence of event of default under the terms of the
RD Note. The Company has made announcements on
8 August 2019 in relation to the default of the RD
Note.

In 2019, following the RD Note Issuer’s failure to
repay the outstanding principal amount and the
outstanding interest and handling fee receivable
of the RD Note, the Group exercised its right as a
charge in possession of the charged shares and sold
2,019,000 China Rundong Shares on the market for
HK$3,648,440 and subsequently contracted with two
third parties, LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi (“Potential Purchasers”) which
are independent of the Group, to sell the remaining
75,981,000 China Rundong Shares (“Remaining
Shares”) for HK$80,000,000. LanHai International
Trading Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary of
Lanhai Holding (Group) Company Limited, which is in
turn 99% controlled by Mr. Mi Chunlei. Nonetheless,
neither of the Potential Purchasers paid any of
the consideration to the Group. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the Potential
Purchasers. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to LanHai International Trading Limited and Ms. Ding
Yi was filed to the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. The legal proceedings between
the Group against the Potential Purchasers of
Remaining Shares are still in progress. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company attended
the mediation but no agreement was reached with
the Potential Purchasers. Further Witness Statement
was exchanged and the case management conference
hearing was held on 29 November 2021.

2023 Annual Report
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(2 BBt 55 29(b)(0)) °

RD 2 4% #& F1 Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited(([RDEB BT AN BT =
Z-NFOA+HABIENIGES

ER(ZE-__F:15B8F7T)10
EEERELE ﬁomTFM¢I

ﬂimﬁigﬁ@“wfﬁméé
BARXSHMERAA EMZAA)
78,000,000 fi& B& 7 ([ & B R B 12 1)
TEER - ERDEBEEITAREBEY
MIERT AEBEREL EKFIE
HETEHBRDAEFR-

REBEE-_F—
IF % & - RDZE # % ﬁ
ﬂE&fW$%A

g
ﬁ

_|_

> 11

oo
SEU g |1

SE Do B -

i
ik
w6 o0 HF SH |

5 53 I

[ ﬁ
“¥

| ¥ 5
=
=
>F“&

«J‘
/%‘H
m - [

i'ii#
T
Wik (U S T m

¥
2
B¢ A
]
i

o

A

T — & #RDEE
Aﬁm%ﬁ$%§$$“
|EREWRFES
LERAB A B L H]
'jst 648,440 JT H) {E
ﬁ%2m9mm&¢l
£ ﬁm%%_ﬁ ¢l
AERFBEART AL
JE%4W$EI)
£ # T 75,981,000 fi% & B
ﬁTﬁﬁD ﬁFﬁS
CEBEBRESAE
HﬂEMﬁm A
R (EE)
E% %99%

=\
o]l

& B I >

I BoIBRB+AIMSEE S B - S

il
%%W
et

o S5 o i

JA
7
=
=)
=

\tﬂiﬁﬂ?ﬂ}“
ﬁ

g 535

%
i

R 5 it S 2 e R ¥ R
e
3

v
o

Dn\

’QEEtr‘rL\)TeF»FFr

oo S X

£
7

/
7

B
Rl RS Fll
m}H

HH

Fﬁ

Y
-
=
v
M@S

Mgt o Bt m
o8 F O (U 38

mHﬁmmmmﬁ%%ﬂﬁ

g 2y 5§ OF

v
A

Thaxt

¥ FE &

v
/

| FerwZ | o

m+%m»m>mnome0wH
+ﬁm%ﬁ%mmmmwMWJzﬂoﬂwmm

N
=
S
o N>~ g e
+ 20 e 2
I
mg B+ M ot )

>

E

2

S

B

:
SERARNEE AR gE O

PS—}D)

L1 s i 2094 e o Jﬁ‘rq\w?ﬁsﬁ*}f%’mf\k%

Eﬁ/\mﬂﬁ%i&
Jﬁfﬁguﬁz YQ—LEJ
ﬂ:+n5$ﬁ°

%|m~
i 0 g%

(AN
X

Al



2023 F3R

REZEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(Continued)

The case trial was conducted in October 2023 and the
Group lost the case.

The Group is liable to pay the legal cost incurred by
the Potential Purchasers. Also, the Group made the
provision of HK$5,360,000 for legal cost in relation to
the legal case as at 31 December 2023.

In 2021 and 2020, the Group further disposed of
800,000 and 5,491,000 China Rundong Shares,
respectively, on the open market for HK$612,000
and HK$4,495,200, respectively. The China Rundong
Shares were suspended for trading since 1 April 2021
and subsequent delisted on 31 October 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of the
RD Note was HK$Nil (2022: HK$Nil), after a provision
for impairment loss of approximately HK$108,376,000
(2022: approximately HK$108,331,000) (see Note 29(b)
(i)).

CFLD Note represented US$2.69 million (face value)
of 9% guaranteed bond issued by CFLD Cayman
Investment Ltd (“CFLD Note Issuer”) matured on 31
July 2021.

The Group received a default notice in respect of
CFLD Note on 9 March 2021. Accordingly, the Group
made a provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$20,287,000 (2022: approximately HK$18,682,000)
as at 31 December 2023 (see Note 29(b)(i)) and
at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of
CFLD Note was approximately HK$715,000 (2022:
approximately HK$2,312,000).

On 24 January 2023, a restructuring scheme was
approved by the court, under which the creditors were
offered with different new bonds for selection by 9
January 2024 to exchange for the CFLD Note. The
Group had submitted an application for the selection
of new bonds under the restructuring scheme and
subsequently received the new bonds in January 2024.

All debt investments held by the Group were past
due and impaired at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
Further details on the Group’s credit risk arising
from debt investments at amortised cost are set
out in Note 29(b)(i).
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15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2023 2022
= —ZT—-—
HK$000 HK$000
FER FAT
Goods purchased for resale HEEZEBER® 6,719 6,256

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

BARAXRFABRENETESZEIN

expenses and included in profit or loss is as follows: LU
2023 2022
—B-=F Z—ZE-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH& T
Cost of sales 5 & B A 33,968 27,059
General and administrative expenses — M EITEHX E = 1,539
Carrying amount of inventoriessoldand E&NMEFBHAGFEZEEE
utilised 33,968 28,598
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EWEZRIE
2023 2022
—=E=-= e —
HK$'000 HK$000
THERT FHETT
Trade debtors in respect of wines and EHEESEBREmZ
beverage trading BEH5EBA 20 34
Fees receivables from asset management, KB EEEE 2 [EW & A
net of loss allowance (M EERE) 45,454 7,397
45,474 7,431

All of the trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.

PMERKE ZRBEDREBEKAE-
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing analysis

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
arising from the business of wines and beverage trading
based on date of invoice at the reporting date:

16.
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EHREBZRIE(E

R 2 AT

RBEERH BEBERRREEERE
EZEKRBSEBREEZAHIERS
T

2023 2022
—_E-= —E- =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAETT
0 to 60 days 0%60H 20 34

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
net of loss allowance, arising from the business of asset
management based on date of revenue recognition at
the reporting date:

REEEH BEEEXHTELEZRK
BoRBEJFREBEERB RER RS A
MR :

2023 2022

—EZ= —_ET--
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 4,666 889
61 to 90 days 61£290H 2,357 484
91 to 180 days 91&180H 7,033 1,466
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 27,365 1,739
Over 365 days 365 H A 4,033 2,819
45,454 7,397

The Group allows an average credit period from 90 to
120 days to its trade customers in respect of wines and
beverage trading. Fees receivables in respect of the
business of asset management are normally due within
30 days upon presenting the invoice.

AEERHFHEEARRREEE SR
FPEWVEI20B 2 FHEEH-BEEE
BEXEBKHEREABRTERAZERERI0
HAE -
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17. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. RE -RIOKRBERHith [EUERIE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTAT
Other receivables H fth & AR 1B
— Interest and handling fee receivables —EREEZEIKF B R
from debt investments, net of allowance FES MBEBEEY
of approximately HK$5,026,000 (2022: 5,026,000 T (— & — —
HK$5,026,000) £ : 5,026,000 7T) - -
— Other receivables —H b fE Y BR 18 2,475 3,876
Deposits with brokers P8 42 ) 77 3K 769 769
3,244 4,645
Rental and other deposits MEREMES
— Non-current portion —JE BN HR o 1,086 1,086
— Current portion —BIHIE 168 323
Prepayments B RIE
— Prepayments for bank and other borrowing —38 1 §§ 47 & £ 4 {& & 5k &K
costs - 200
— Prepayments for fund sub-advisory services —JBfE & 5 B RS RE 489 1,277
— Prepayments for legal and professional fees —FBffZE R B X B F - 9,573
— Prepayments for purchase of wine -BNBEFHEBNE 3,337 =
— Other prepayments —H fh & KB 712 1,132
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits ~ J& : T & 1% & FE BN H3 2F o (1,086) (1,086)
7,950 17,150
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PROFIT OR LOSS
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18. RRAFEFABECEMNEE

2023 2022
—E-=ZHE g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAETT
Unlisted investment funds FETREES

- OCI Equities Fund SP —-OCI Equities Fund SP 102,403 92,013
- OCl Real Estate Fund | SP —OCI Real Estate Fund | SP - 4,620
Investments in listed securities RETHFESFONEE 12,563 13,540
Investments in listed warrants N ETRBEBHNIRE 66 87

Total financial assets at fair value through BATEFARBRZ
profit or loss TREERTE 115,032 110,260
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BE-E-=-f+-A=t+-HILEE
19. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 19. RIBBBRB=-BBENEHER R
DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ENBEEFEEEH
EQUIVALENTS
(a) Time deposits with original maturity date over (a) REEHMBERRIERERERPH
three months and cash and cash equivalents in REHABEB=ZEEANESRERR
the consolidated statements of financial position RekReLZEEBEERE:
and cash flows comprise:
2023 2022
—EZ=fF —EF--
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Time deposits with original maturity REIEA B A=A
date over three months TFHER 14,845 =
Cash at bank and on hand RITILFENRE 89,948 230,568
Cash and cash equivalents in the R BERALREERERTF
consolidated statements of financial mRekBREEFEEER
position and cash flows 89,948 230,568

At 31 December 2023, the time deposits with RZE_=Z=F+_A=+—H R
original maturity date over three months carried IR BER=EANTE BT RIRF

interest rate of 5.35% per annum.

At 31 December 2023, there were bank balances
and cash denominated in RMB amounting to
approximately HK$237,000 (2022: approximately
HK$238,000). Remittance of funds out of PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

F &5 35%5 8 o

WR_ZE-_=ZF+= A :+—EI
RBARBHAEZRTEHEERE S
#) /237,000 m(_%::ﬁ- )
238,000 L) - HE T E & A
BTHRBEBRTEMEBAINEE HH
1A R gl -
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19. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 19.
DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

B=5=

REBBIZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

=FE+ZA=+-BLEE

REHAEBBE=-"EEANEBRER ]
ERBESFHERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BRBRAFEEELEEKRMARSY
used in operations: iR :
Note 2023 2022
L= —E-Z=F —T-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FAT
Loss before taxation T ] (13,248) (78,211)
Adjustments for: FRATERELAE:
Depreciation e 6(c) 7,637 6,359
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BEREEZ
plant and equipment W = 5 - (120)
Impairment losses on trade EWE 5 RBREER
receivables 6(c) - 781
(Reversal of impairment losses) BHERECREBRERRD)
impairment losses on debt HEERE
investments 6(c) (3,629) 24,326
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEE W zm - JFEE (328) (419)
Change in fair value of financial BAFTEFABREZLZ
assets at fair value through profit & REERAFEEH
or loss 4(a) (9,392) 30,156
Finance costs BB ER 6(a) 4,426 5,993
Bank interest income R1TH B A 5 (3,032) (178)
Share of profits of joint venture R /N b (1,739) (1,011)
Gain on bargain purchase of ajoint HEEE 4 2 A A
venture 2z - (613)
Changes in working capital: Z2iEEEE:
(Increase) decrease in inventories 7 & (% m) R > (463) 1,037
(Increase) decrease in trade fE U Z 5 BR I8 (18 4n)
receivables B (38,043) 1,251
Decrease (increase) in deposits, e BENREBEREA
prepayments and other FE U B 18 35 A (32 4n)
receivables 9,712 (6,294)
Decrease in debt investments at REIEKAFEZ
amortised cost BBIEERD = 9,971
Decrease in financial assets at fair BAFEFABGDZ
value through profit or loss S REERD 4,620 5,328
Increase in accruals and other FE 5T ZXIE K H fth B A
payables AR 78 3% N 18,733 4,986
Increase (decrease) in contract SEHEaEEMCED)
liabilities 1,724 (7,621)
Cash used in operations REXBMARE (23,022) (4,279)
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19. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 19. REHBBB=BEBMNEHRER R

DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ERREEFEBEE)

EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) REMEZBNEEHR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s THRANAEEREMEETSH 2 B
liabilities from financing activities, including both EZH(PRERe LIRS EFH) -
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from Q MEETHAEEANABEDEREENM
financing activities are liabilities for which cash IARRERRAEBZERER
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified EXRSPELEBREETH 2 RERE
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash COR=RE R

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
Accrued duetoa Lease
interests  Borrowings related party liabilities Total
Je 1
JEst RIS %8 BEBIRE HELRR BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 January 2023 RZBE-=ZE-f-H 250 46,861 46,930 16,224 110,265

Changes from financing cash flows: REBENREFELH:

Repayment of shareholder's loans ~ EEREE X = (46,977) = = (46,977)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B fEAEE 2 E AT H - - - (7,089) (7,089)
Interest element of lease rentals paid  EREHRE 2 FEHH - - - (714) (114)
Interest paid EXfHE (3,962) - - - (3,962)
Repayment to a related party AE%FERTE - = (47,008) = (47,008)

Total changes from financing cash REZBREHERBEAE

B (3962 __W6977) (47008  (1803) _ (105750)
Exchangeadjustments  EARE L a0 UL L 9
Other changes: Efp28:

Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BB (M 6(a) 3,712 = = 714 4,426
Total other changes Bt gas 3,712 = = 714 4,426

At 31 December 2023 R-B-=£+-A=1-H - - - 9,135 9,135
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19. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 19.

DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c] Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

REHAEBBE=-"EEANEBRER ]

B=5=

o A\
B

REZEBRZERERA
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
SEFTZA=+T-BLEEE

ERBESFERB(HF)

c) REREZTHNEBEBHKRE

Amount
Accrued duetoa
interests  Borrowings  related party  Lease liabilities Total
e f
EHE FE BRAIZRE HEARE Bg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TARL TAL TARL TARL
A1lanvary202 R-%--F-p-8 o1 B . 8B 982
Changes from financing cash flows: RERENREREED:
Repayment of shareholder's loans ~ EEREE X - (38,986) - - (38,986)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B EHEE 2 EATH - - - (8,762) (8,762)
Interest element of lease rentals paid  ERBHHEE 2 FEH 5 - - - (304) (304)
Interest paid BIfFE (5,800) = = = (5,800)
Repayment to a related party MERTEENE - - (11,713) - (11,713)
Total changes from financing REEHRERERDAR
eshflows ] (G800 (8seel  (11713) 0,066 (65.565)
Exchongeadustments EX®E - 8 B s .
Other changes: 88
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) B%ER(ME6R) 5,689 - - 304 5,993
Transfer from provision of BROERERER
post-completion quarantee - - 58,565 - 58,565
Increase in lease liabilities from entering E R U B EELMHAE
into new leases during the year BREM - - - 20,431 20,431
Farly termination of a tenancy RAKERERZ
agreement - - - (1,253) (1,253)
Totalotherchenges = R#BBRE 0 568 - %85S 1948 816
At 31 December 2022 B=B--%#+-R=t-H 250 46,861 46,930 16,224 110,265
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BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

19. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 19. REHEBB-BBENEHER B

DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ERREEFEBEE)
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases d HEREARLALHE
Amounts included in the statement of cash flows FAHERRERNEEERET
for leases comprise the following: 5l % I8
2023 2022
—g=-= - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FH& T
Within financing cash flows MERERER 7,803 9,066
These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid ZESHHEEE ST -_—F K -F
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and T+ A=+—HILEEEXH
2022. ZHHOBEEE#A-
(e) Major non-cash transactions le)] EXRIBREXRZ
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, (i) Bz -_—_4F+-_A=+—
part of the proceeds from the redemption BEFE BEOETESHD
of HK Dollar Fund linked note amounted to Z B E0 o BT 18 5 186,000,000
HK$6,000,000 was offset by the transfer of BT ea S TtESBROEREHR
corresponding participating shares in OCI Real 77 A8 3 7 OCl Real Estate Fund
Estate Fund | SP from the issuer of HK Dollar | SPHIMEE 2B M AAEE(R

Fund linked note (see Note 18). Bz 18) o
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20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

20. [EstRRIBREMEMRIE

2023 2022
—Eg=-= —_E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FH&E T

Accrued legal and professional fees Btz REEER 1,836 4,627

Accrued interest FEET B - 250

Advisory fee payable Et#RE A 346 404

Other accruals (Note (i)) H b, & 51 338 (M 5 () 24,710 2,991

Other payables H fb & < BR 18 3,498 3,750
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKATEZEHAR

amortised costs 30,390 12,022

Note (i): It included HK$5,360,000 provision of the legal cost
related to lose on RD Note case (see note 14(a)(ii)) and
HK$15,931,000 accrued staff cost.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

As disclosed in Note 24, the Group have to pay the
shortfall of approximately US$7.51 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$58.57 million to Orient Finance
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Orient Finance”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder of the
Company. After the negotiation with Orient Finance
in 2022, this amount will be repaid in five equal
instalments and bears interest rate of 8% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount
due to Orient Finance was fully repaid by cash (see Note
19()).

21.

M) : BERDEBREHRFHNEB LIS
FA % # 5,360,000 7 Jo( & M &£ 14(a)(ii))
N fEEt 8 T X 415,931,000 7T °

& < B8 Bt 1 SR 18

M 24 E R A B AR AR A
FEBRRZZENBRAR RH S RE
BEBERAAI(RAEAD N E
BEAHN7TSIEBEBEXETL(HERANSESTE S
BL) KHERASRERENLSER
DPHHEHEEETIRFRN K% B -

REBEE_SE_=ZF+_A=Z=+—HIHF
ToRNEFERABURSEBZT(RW
319 () °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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22. BORROWINGS

2023 Annual Report

22. &
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings (a) ERZEEEIMAT:
is as follows:
Note 2023 2022
Pt 5% —E-=F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT
Shareholder’s loan, unsecured ~ f& & 3% & # 48
— Cheer Hope Holdings -REEERBERAA
Limited (“Cheer Hope") (TREER) (b)(i) = 46,861
All of the borrowings are carried at amortised B A 12 S0 v 45 Bk Y AR AN 5T -
costs.
(b) Significant terms and repayment schedule of b) BERZEE/RRAREREBHX
borrowings
(i) Unsecured loan from Cheer Hope (i) RERZLERIERFEEF

The loan from Cheer Hope bears interest
at fixed rate of 4.15% (2022: 4.15%) and
was denominated in US$ and repayable on
demand (2022: repayable on demand).

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the loan was fully repaid by cash (see Note

19(0)).

KERZEERMNE ZXIEL415%

ZEEME(ZZT ZZ F:
415%)5F B METTHERE
HERKEB(ZE-__F: 48

WERER) -

RBEE-—_E-—_=%€+-A=+
—BLtEE ZERUABR£E
B (R M3 19(0) »
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual

REBBIZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

maturities of the Group's lease liabilities:

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

23. lHEGBE

HiER

31 December 2023
ZECZZE
+ZA=Z1+-H

Present value
of the minimum ~ Total minimum

TRITAEEHEGENRT AT

31 December 2022
S

+-A=+-1
Present value
of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments
BERE BERE REHRE RERE
DEE NES & fRzRE NEEE:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TR TAL TAL
Within 1 year fea® L S 38 . s 1803
After 1 year but within 2 years BRIFRTEBLE 3,341 3,553 3,174 3,553
After 2 years but within 5 years BEIEETEASE 2,620 2,665 5,961 6,218
R a6 6218 ... B S
9,135 9,771 16,224 17,574
Less: total future interest expenses B ARNERX B8 (636) (1,350)
Present value of lease liabilities MEREZRE 9,135 16,224
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AN
EiS

24.

—E-_=F+-A=1+-HILFE

PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE
On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC (the “SPC"), in respect of its segregated
portfolio, ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”)
managed by ICBC Asset Management (Global Company
Limited), pursuant to which the Company subscribed for
the Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount
of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156
million).

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor (the
“Vendor”) and Orient Finance as the Purchaser
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s entire
right, title and interest in certain amount of Class
B Shares (“Sale Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC at
the consideration of no more than US$8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) with a
post-completion guarantee clause that in the event that
the SPC redeems the participating shares held by the
Purchaser at the expiry of the investment term of the
Sub-Fund (i.e. 2 June 2022), the sum of entitlement
of the Purchaser as the holder of the Sale Shares
comprising the aggregate of all the returns, distributions,
income, and other payments received or accrued on the
Sale Shares since the completion of the disposal of the
Sale Shares in the Sub-Fund of SPC plus the redemption
proceeds paid or payable to the Purchaser is less than
the consideration of the disposal of the Sale Shares
paid by the Purchaser, the Vendor shall pay to the
Purchaser such shortfall within five business days upon
receipt of written notice from the Purchaser. Proceeds
of the disposal of the Sale Shares will be used to repay
the outstanding loan in the amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,590,000), together
with all accrued interest, owing from the Company to
Orient Finance. In August 2021, 7,900 shares were sold
to Orient Finance at the consideration of approximately
US$7.51 million.

24.
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ERERER
R—ZZ—-—HAhERABE-_+=0 KA aH
ICBC AMG China Fund | SPC ([SPCJ) gt &
HIREBE(RR)ARAREENE Y
1% & 45 & ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP ([ B
PESDIYUREHZE Bt X228
REXDESMEITBERNL - A H20
BEXT(HERDNIS6BEAETT) °

R-ZZE-—FEXA=-+=8" A2FE
BRER)(BEFDERFEBRWERER)
((BEFDITLEERZE Bt XA F
ERHRELHE MEAFSBHREKER
EBEARARARSPCR D ESLFETH
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FT A #E K #Ez - X {8 T #8 #8,000,0003%
JC (8 & 7 4962,400,0007% 7)) ° K % & 1%
BRIEZ MSPCERDESHNEZEH
REmFBEIZEFAZRH)EME
BEFFBN2EKRD EFEREER
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& E R M & 58S IR D U 3k FE 5T
WMArERER 9k A KE A4 E
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ZRE BFEERIEFEEBNE
FEIEFRAMESSNZER - HE
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24. PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
investment in the Sub-Fund was approximately
HK$28.83 million. The fair value of the investment in
the Sub-Fund dropped substantially on the last quarter
of 2021 due to the market value of those bonds issued
by PRC properties developers in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
decreased sharply upon the PRC government’s tightened
control policies over credit.

The net asset value (the “NAV") of Class B shares of the
Sub-Fund continued to decreased further as the prices
of those bonds and notes in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
dropped further in early 2022. The value of Class B
shares turned to zero by 31 Jan 2022 and further cut
loss actions were taken by the Sub-Fund’s manager. As
at 28 Feb 2022, the NAV of Class B shares is zero. The
chance of regaining value to acquisition value by the
expiry of the Sub-Fund is remote, hence a full provision
for the post-completion guarantee on the 7,900 Class
B shares sold to Orient Finance on their acquisition
value of approximately US$7.51 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$58.57 million is made in 2021.

After the negotiation between the Group and Orient
Finance in 2022, the shortfall will be repaid by the
Group in five equal installments. The provision amount
has been transferred to the “Amount due to a related
party” (see Note 21) under current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

24,
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

ERERBEE)

RZBE-_—F+-A=+t—H Ko E
ERENAFENR2883BEHET R
KO EERENAFEE_T-—FK

B—EFEABTIE®K RESHRTE
BFKREEEZHRR ZADEER
BHAPHNPEFRHERMEBETHZX
FEFMHEEKRBRD

HRZKSEEREHETNZEESF
REBBRR_S__FNE—XT
B ZKOEESBERONEEFE(E
EFEDEBERL BERMHEABAR
—EZZF-A=+—HREAT K
HPESLKEECENE— S EBEREBE - R
ZTZEZFZRARZ=Z+NH BERMHY
EEFEAT - REK2»ESEMATKIE
ZHRBEEEMNTEERN BEHERZF
T FRERKREEELN7SIE &XT(E
ERAS8S7TEBB T AR A EREE
7,900 RBERM 2B REBRERE
1 o

RZEBEZZF &R
HE AEEHES R
BRESCECEREZEGAVBERIRAR
HEEETHIEMER ST RE] (2R
B EE21) ©

1)
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25.

—E_=F5+-A=+-HBIFE

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
managed by the local government authorities. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the defined salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from the above
mentioned retirement plans at their normal retirement
age.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with those
schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

25.
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 17 December 2012 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at nil
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company.

On 15 October 2021, the Company granted a total of
105,000,000 options (the “Share Options”) to certain
directors. The Share Options will be vested in five equal
tranches in accordance with the vesting schedule of
the Share Options, subject to the fulfilment of certain
performance targets (the “Vesting Condition”). Where
performance targets have not been met, the share
options of a specific tranche will not vest. The estimated
fair value of the five tranches of the share options using
the polynomial model was approximately HK$1.55,
HK$1.78, HK$1.94, HK$2.07 and HK$2.19 at the grant
date. The share options are exercisable within a period
of 10 years from the date of grant. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

The Group recognises share-based payments expenses
in its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income based on awards ultimately
expected to vest.

26.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

MESBEUABRDRERBNXRS
ARABIRZE—ZF+ AT EtHERHRK
—IEERETE B ARRIESE
RERBEFASERE(BREAEE
TRARARNEBES)ANTKREERNBRE
REARRARMD -

RZFBE-_—F+A+HEB AAFMEE
F E F & H 4 #£105,000,00017 & A% #
((BRED) BRESZBEERENS
BRERAEI>DDHEEREE MEAEENSE
TEEEZ(BBHRED - MREKE
BFER BEHANBERESETIEHS -
FTHBEREAREBSENATEFERE
NER(E 4 B1.558 7T 1.78%8 7T »
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26. NEEBEUIARNDREBRNXRZ(E)

(Continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) REMBKERREGHDOT
follows:

Number of Vesting date
instruments (note) Expiry date

IARE BEASMHE JE % A

Options granted to directorson R=Z=—%+ A+ HAH

15 October 2021 KTESENBERE

First tranche £—H 21,000,000 1 April 2022 31 March 2028
“E--FWA-A ZEFZN\FZA=+-H

Second tranche £ 21,000,000 1 April 2023 31 March 2029
“E-ZEWMA-BA -—E-HAEZR=t+-H

Third tranche F=H 21,000,000 1 April 2024 31 March 2030
“E-MENA-H —EZTEZR=+-H

Fourth tranche %10 5 21,000,000 1 April 2025 31 March 2031
“E-_RFWMA-B -—E=-%#=fF=t+-A8

Fifth tranche g 21,000,000 1 April 2026 31 March 2032

—E-RENA-B ZE=--—f=-HA=+-H

Total share options granted REmBERESYA 105,000,000

Note: The number of options to be exercised after each Mex: REEEBHES TITENER
vesting period is subject to fulfillment of certain BEEXGBEBRKUHMENE T X
performance targets as set out in the Vesting BEIEERAR-

Condition.
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
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BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

26, NIERBBREUUARDRERORZ(AE)

(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) BREHERMEFHITEENT :
of share options are as follows:
2023 2022
“EZzf —E-C
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
MELH MEFH
TEE BREHA 18 BREZA
Outstanding at the beginning of ENRATE HK$4.53 HK$4.53
the year 4538 T 84,000,000 453587 105,000,000
Lapsed during the year ERRH HK$4.53 HK$4.53
4538 T (51,000,000) 4533 T (21,000,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ X H KT HK$4.53 HK$4.53
453% 7 33,000,000 45357 84,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year ERUIHE HK$4.53 HK$4.53
4538 T - 453% T =
The options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had R-EBE-_=F+-A=+—HXK1T
an exercise price of HK$4.53 (2022: HK$4.53) and FERENITERE RISET(Z
a weighted average remaining contractual life of T ZF 4538 L) R MEFH&#
6.3 years (2022: 7.3 years). TANHNEHEIF(Z T ==
73%) -
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions ) BREAFERRBRK

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a polynomial model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as
an input into this model. Expectations early exercise
are incorporated into the polynomial model.

h % H BB AR i 4 BR(E A B 3R B9 AR
BRAFESLERLBRENRF
BEFfE-BEBRENAFELE
RZEABRE T A - BREN
BHFHREZEEN —HE AK
B-RETENHEEMAAZERN
B o
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26. MRS E W NN BEENKZA(E)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFERRBEE)

(Continued)

Options

granted on

15 October

2021

R-ZBZ-—F

Fair value of share options and +HA+®EA

assumptions BREATFTERRBR RENERE

Share price at the grant date REBHORKRE HK$4.15

415% 7T

Exercise price T E HK$4.53

4537 7T

Expected volatility T8 B R 18 54%

Option life (expressed as weighted average @ BEREFH(XR T AZEAEREE T 8.3 years

life used in the modelling under BAER AR ME TS F ) 8.34F

polynomial model)

Expected dividends TEE AR B 0%

Risk-free interest rate R e 1.36% - 1.60%

Exercise multiple 1T (5 & 2.47

The expected volatility of share price is calculated
based on the statistical analysis of historical
volatility of the Company, adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

No expense was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil) as the directors of the Company were
of the view that the relevant performance targets
under the Vesting Condition will not be satisfied.

P (B o) 18 B 08 T IR B AR 2 Rl IE A
B AJ 15 & Bt A0 (E 7] 78 2 oK SRR 1R &Y
B B LR IR WY AT At o AT A
H-AHERRERELERE - T8
WABBERRNESGIEEH LT
BEAEEERTE -

BREDRERSGGRERT TR
BRBEONRFEAERELBHY
BEEZGMT -BMEEBRERT
HEE TS R

BHE_T_=%#+-A=+—A81L
FRE TERAGABRREMBEE
WEExTBERA(ZEZ =

w) RARAARNESRARE
BEBETHAXER ERARBEERK -
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

27.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

HREOMBMRRNTPHAMEHR

) HEMBRRKRFWEIMHRIEE

2023 2022
= —ZT—-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHE T

Tax payable at 1 January R—A—BZEMNBIE 337 5,590
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 7 4 & & & K| 15 & B &

for the current year - -

Over-provision in prior year BEFEHBEREB (10) -~

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEAENER (157) (5,253)

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded ERERBNEN 628 -

Tax payable at 31 December R+ A=+—BZ2EMNBIE 798 337

Representing: ¥
Hong Kong Profits Tax Payable BB G EN 798 337

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately of HK$436,704,000 (31 December
2022: HK$437,154,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$6,360,000 (31
December 2022: HK$10,134,000) that will expire
within 5 years. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

(b) XREREEBEEEBEB)
BBEWF200FTH T HE NEH
I % Bt R 51 7% 18 & 18 49 436,704,000
Br(ZE_—F+=ZA=+—8:
437,154,000 70 ) R IE L 18 &
E -DEAREBANEEERERES
B HEEBEEBZRKERT G
WA g TR - ABERREBEBER
% R G A E B A 8 $8.6,360,000
Br(ZE_—F+=ZA=+—8:
10,134,000% 7T) o H ftb B 1B o] | R
HA#E e o
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. BN -RELER
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) =D EH
The reconciliation between the opening and $’$l EREREHLINFINRF
closing balances of each component of the Group's BRESREH R E’\ ,&? Hwm
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated Ko ARTBERBERNBIRFINZE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the FHRONEHFBFHINAT :
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium losses Total
Company PN = RHEE 2itFR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TR TEn TEn
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-__E-A-Hz=E&H% 14,998 498,790 (158,709) 355,079
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBERZENLER
for the year - - (75,594) (75,594)
Balance at 31 December 2022 and R-F-_§+-A=t-REk
1 January 2023 “ECCE-R-BuEH 14,998 498,790 (234,303 279,485
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEFRR2EXLAE
for the year - - (37,112) (37,112
Balance at 31 December 2023 R_EZ=£T-R=T-H
&% 14,998 498,790 (272,015) 241,773
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 28. BN -RREBEBRBRIB(E)
=

(b)

(c)

Dividend (b) M

The board of directors does not recommend any EEEIMEEARLAFREIRN EMK
dividend payment for the year (2022: Nil). B(ZZTEZ—F:8\)-
Share capital (c) BRAE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each BEECI BT ZEBRK
Number of Share
Shares capital
R&GEE R A
‘000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R-E-_-_&#—-—A—-H —T-—-#%
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 +-A=+—-H-ZE-=%—-A
—BRZZE-_=f+-A=t—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, RZE-__F-HA-HB Z%-Z
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 +-A=+—-H - ZFE=-=%—-7
—BRZE-_ZF+-A=+—8H 1,499,750 14,998
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to AR i A A G IR S R 8
receive dividends as declared from time to time BENEREARAKRE ERER
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings K—ZE2-METEREARNRAO®%
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally TEEZAREMA-

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands,
the funds in the Company’s share premium
account are distributable to the equity
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the

(ii)

translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(v).

Other reserve

The other reserve comprises the changes in
equity as a result of change in the Group’s
interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(d).

(iii)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

28.
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flow
requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as total
borrowings (including borrowings, amount due to
a related party and lease liabilities) over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
gearing ratio was 3.3% (2022: 37.5%).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

OCI Asset Management Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Regulated
Subsidiary”), is granted licenses by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC") for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiary is
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (the “SF(FR)R"”). Management of the Group
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the Regulated
Subsidiary’s liquid capital level to ensure compliance
with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Regulated Subsidiary has no
non-compliance of capital requirements imposed by
the SF(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

28.
(e)
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ER - -ERREBRR(E)

ERER(E)
AEEZERRTEEEAGBLEN
BemeaBk WEEBEERRTB

BEEMAENEEHEE RS 1§°%

mE A5SBHEEEBRBL X

BERIFEVBNRARA TG F*W
FEER ENEABRIREREES
BIBRANEER R_T-_=F+=

A=+—HB AEBENEEERELL
R H33%(ZFE = —4HF:375%) o

AER EREUEEDUAEE
BRERFR - BBEFADEL

2 ARARTARE N RE DR
BRE BOANR BEFALR
BRHEEERIEES -

ARRZEMNBRAREEEER
ERAA(ZHREMNBAR]E
5B E %&%if%ﬂ‘ki/\ g((HE
BDERERAEEETARE X
B-XREMBARAETEARE
#&%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to currency, interest rate, credit and liquidity

risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the

Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or cash
flows of an asset, liability or forecast transaction
denominated in foreign currency (that is, a
currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which the transactions relate)
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The functional currency of
the Hong Kong subsidiaries is HK$ and the
functional currency of PRC subsidiaries is
Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily arising from investments
and borrowings denominated in United States
Dollars (“US$"). Currency exposure arising
from investments denominated in US$ is
mitigated in part by funding a portion of the
investments through external borrowings in the
same currency. As HK$ is pegged to the USS$,
the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$
to be insignificant.

As most of the Group’s financial instruments at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are denominated
in either HK$ or US$, management does not
consider there to be any significant currency risk
associated them.

29.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest-bearing financial
assets and borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to time deposits with original
maturity date over three months, fixed-rate
debt securities and borrowings issued at fixed
rates. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk mainly from balances with
banks and borrowings carrying interest at
prevailing market rates.

Management of the Group monitors the
related interest rate exposure closely to
ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group's HK$
denominated financial instruments. The
Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WEHEEKGE)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) 7= 7@ (&
The following table, as reported to the MAKSEEREEMZ2®H TX
management of the Group, details the FUAEERREH RN E
interest rate risk profile of the Group's PREERERABGEZMNER
interest-bearing financial assets and financial & B

liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

Note 2023 2022
Pt 5% ZBEZZF —T__F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Net fixed rate financial assets EE+BEE(EE)
(liabilities): FEE
Debt securities measured at REBHKATEN
amortised cost &% & 5 14 21,020 17,350
Time deposits with original REBHAEEA=MEA
maturity date over three months &) & Hi 17 & 19 14,845 -
Amount due to a related party JE 1< 78 Sk 7 ®UIE 21 - (46,930)
Borrowings - shareholder's loan & ;X — R R E X 22 - (46,861)
Lease liabilities HE&E 23 (9,135) (16,224)
26,730 (92,665)
Net variable rate financial FELHEE
asset: EEE

Cash at bank RITHR S 19 89,948 230,568
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared
assuming interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities outstanding at the end of
respective reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. When reporting to
management of the Group on the interest
rate risk, a 50 basis points (“bps”) increase
or decrease in the relevant interest rates will
be adopted for sensitivity analysis, assuming
all other variables were held constant, which
represents a reasonably possible change in
interest rates. Interest-bearing bank deposits
are not included in the sensitivity analysis
for the change of interest rate as the bank
deposit rate is at a low level and management
of the Group considers such the impact
of bank deposit interest is insignificant. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in loss after taxation of the Group or vice
versa.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE—Z-_=4+-A=t+—HILEE
HERERERLREMNTE 2N FREE)
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WRAEZ DR
ATHREDHTLDERAE R

RMEELREBMABENHNXER
BEE - ZOoMDIBIRNERSE
HRNAEARSREERS
REBEERBREFEHREEM
RE - ERAASEEEERS
MERERE  SERBEBMEX
SOEEE(TEHEDWERER
BRELN ERIXMAEEM
BEEORFTITENBRTE
BMEAELENGEZES -
R R 17 73 5ROF K BE R B K
FoAAXRKEEEER/RT
FRAMENFTELAEKR A
R RS HEREEDNIL KR
BEFERITER - A TEH
RAASEBHRERE N
[RZ IR -

2023 2022
—E-=HF ZZE-C
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Loss after taxation for the year FRKRRIEZEEE
Increase by 50bps = FH50 fE & 2 (112) 387
Decrease by 50bps T B& 50 R & 2h 112 (387)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, interest receivables and debt
investments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from time deposits with original maturity
date over three months, and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with sound credit
ratings, which the Group considers to represent
low credit risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies
The board of directors delegates to a risk management
team the duties to monitor the credit risk of the Group.
Members of this risk management team include, inter
alia, the chief executive officer, responsible officers,
the financial controller and the head of investment
department. This risk management team is responsible
for monitoring, pre-warning and detecting the credit
risk.

29. MBEEREERERTIEZR

(b)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Debt investments

The Group focuses on decentralising investments
for the credit-type fixed income securities
investments which are mainly high return products.
The Group pre-controls the exposure of the
credit risk by setting investment position limit,
classifying the sub-investment varieties, sub-credit
rating limits and concentration limits. Moreover,
the Group continuously tracks the bond issuer’s
business conditions and credit rating changes
through monitoring, pre-warning, risk detecting,
etc. At the same time, the Group is highly prudent
in the investment of the asset-based securities
products and strictly evaluates the quality of the
underlying asset pool and the effectiveness of the
credit enhancement.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk in industries
or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 84% (2022: 24%), 7% (2022:
21%) and 99% (2022: 79%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer, the second largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively within the asset
management segment.

29.

(b)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) fEEEE)

Trade receivables (Continued) FEWE ZRE(E)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all HRFBEELXKBBETREESEN

customers requiring credit over a certain amount. BEHgETEANGEETH BHE

These evaluations focus on the customer’s past FHEFEHEERTATIARNE

history of making payments when due and current REELRERNENEN LER

ability to pay, and take into account information BEENENES RERMMENLE
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to RIEHNER -

the economic environment in which the customer

operates.

e Trade receivables in respect of wines and e FHRBEEBLRHKDEENENK
beverage trading are due within 120 days from BHRERELIREE AL
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that 1208 AE|Hf o R R ERHE 48 3
are more than 3 months past due are requested BAMGEHEABARINA R
to settle all outstanding balances before any BEBRBER TRERTWE
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group MNEBE AEE-—RKRI-EME
does not obtain collateral from these customers. PUREET G-

e  Fees receivable from asset management e REEEEREBENENRERZE
mainly represent regular management fees EEREREEBENETE
based on a predetermined fixed percentage EHLOIBBMBHEREREE K
of the assets value under management. The SEECRKEFPEANES
Group acts as fund manager of fee receivable EBA TENEREPNE
customers and closely monitors the net asset EFE UWERKEAEIHE
value of the customers to ensure they have cEERKER-

enough money to repay the fee receivable.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group performs individual and collective
impairment assessment on debt investments at
amortised cost and trade receivables.

° For debt investments at amortised cost,
the Group identifies individual impairment
through methods such as risk classification
and early warning. For assets for which an
allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the Group determines the
allowance amount by assessing the losses of
each debt investment at amortised cost at
the reporting date. During the assessment
stage, the Group generally considers the
financial status of the borrower, the disposal
of collateral, the repayment ability of the
guarantor and related parties to estimate
the recoverable future cash flows and
discounts the recoverable future cash to the
present value of the significant impaired
debt investments at a reasonable discount
rate. The difference between the carrying
value and the estimated present value of the
significant impaired debt investments shall be
provided for as the impairment loss on debt
investments at amortised cost.

° For trade receivables, the Group measures loss
allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer
bases. Expected loss rates are based on past
one year experience. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) fEEEE)
Measurement of ECLs A EEERANE
In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group constructed EREBYBRMEEANFIR - K
a “three-stage” ECL model to manage its financial SERETIZ-RBEIBEHEEEISE
assets’ credit risk: RAREBHEHSREENEERR :
Stage 1: Financial assets have not experienced BER—: 2MEENEERRAB
a significant increase in credit risk ¥ 16 W R 1B W K B E I
since origination and impairment e EBAKI2ER R
recognised on the basis of 12 months BHEEEENSERE
expected credit losses. RRAE
Stage 2: Financial assets have experienced BER—: 2MEENRFEERRA
a significant increase in credit risk Vs HEREBE B ZEE
since origination and impairment is m-mRERFEHR
recognised on the basis of lifetime BHEEERENSER
expected credit losses. R AE ©
Stage 3: Financial assets that are in default and &= PREEENLERRB
considered credit-impaired. ZHRBE-
The ECL is the result of the discounted product BHEEBBEEELNB EPD) &
of probability of default (PD), exposure at default #) &, & (EAD) & & #4918 5k & (LGD) =
(EAD) and loss given default (LGD). The definitions EHMRETBENER - HETE
of these terms are as follows: W
e PD represents the likelihood of a borrower s BABMEEEBRAXEBBEE
or debt issuer defaulting on its financial TABEBTHENZEBNA
obligation; B
e EAD is based on the amounts the Group e BHRERBNMGEE REEBEASE
expects to be owed at the time of default. ERERANZEERERRE

TR
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. Sl EREBLEMNTIB 2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRKE)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

] LGD represents the Group's expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure.
LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral
or other credit support. LGD is expressed as
a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

The ECL allowance is determined by projecting
the PD, LGD and EAD for every six months and for
each individual exposure or collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together
and adjusts their duration (if there is no early
repayment or default). This effectively calculates
an ECL allowance for every six months, which
is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
allowance calculation is the original effective
interest rate.

For debt investments in stage 1, the Group first
calculates the annual 12-month PD and then
transfer it to monthly PD. For debt investments in
stage 2 and 3, the lifetime PDs are developed by
monitoring how defaults develop in a portfolio
from the point of time when a debt experienced
SICR to its lifetime. The lifetime PDs are based on
historical observed data taking into consideration
forward-looking factors. This is supported by
historical analysis.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) fEEEE)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) HAHEEEBENE(E)

The lifetime LGDs are determined based on the BEAFEHANENBEAXIREY

factors that affect the recoverable amounts post FEEHNBELORNEZREE T

default. These vary by product type. FEMBEUNEHNBREXFRATRE -

e For secured debt investments, this is primarily e HREEKWFEBKRE TER
base on the projected collateral values, BHEZERmERE R
historical discounts to market/book values due HEzmE / KEEEZAR
to forced sales and recovery costs observed. Prig M A] Rz W B A o

e  For unsecured debt investments, the Group e HREEBEBKKRE K&K
closely monitors their status and it believes BYEEERRL TRBARE
that the Group's credit risk exposure on them HHEB R AEE -
is minimal.

Forward-looking information included in the EFHEEEERIL R BERAE ML

expected credit loss model is as follows: EROT

The calculation of expected credit losses involves BHEEEENAEYRATEHE

forward-looking information. After the historical BoQBRELIN REEHBAT

analysis, the Group identified the key economic HEHEEEEABNERELERE

indicators related to expected credit loss, such as BB NEEBLEGDP)RBEE

gross domestic product (GDP), consumer price MEBEREECP) - AEEBELGFYH

index (CPI). The Group forecasts these economic B AE IR EITTE R - IR 2R

indicators at least annually and provides the best FRBMRAGZEME -

estimates of the economic conditions for the
coming year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure

(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
The following tables provide information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for debt investments at amortised cost
and fees receivable from asset management
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December

2022:

As at 31 December 2023

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5
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BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

MEEREERENRTIE 2R FEGAE)

(b) FERMRE)

RAGGEREHO
il REBEARGENERERER
EEERENER

TERREEBEBAAEER T =
=Ff+-A=+—RHBkZ=ZF=
—FE+ A=+t HEHEHIE
BEKAFECEERERE
EEENRERBRANEERR
RIEHEEBENER

R-—®-=f+=-A=+-~8

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BEE& AEEE FERE FEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THER THER
Debt investments at RBEKATEZER
amortised cost RE
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(P 5 (aa)) FIRB 108,376 (108,376) -
- SP Note (note (bb)) -SPERE Stage 3
(Bt & (bb)) F3EBR 101,574 (81,269) 20,305
- CFLD Note (note (cc)) —CFLDE Stage 3
(Pt & (c0)) F3EBR 21,002 (20,287) 715
Total @t 230,952 (209,932) 21,020
Trade receivables EWE SRR
— Fees receivable from asset -EEERN Stage 1
management EKER F1HE R 45,454 - 45,454
Total Bt 276,406 (209,932) 66,474
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEERKGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BAGEERMOE
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) REBEANRITBENEELRER
fees receivable from asset management CEERERERE)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 R=ZZFBZ-ZZ=ZF+=ZRA=+—8H
Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BERER BEEE EERE FRFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEL TETL
Debt investments at REHERAHBELED
amortised cost K&
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(P 7 (aa)) FIRR 108,331 (108,331) =
- SP Note (note (b)) -SPEE Stage 3
(P 3% (bb)) F3E R 101,531 (86,493) 15,038
~ CFLD Note (note (cc)) —CFLDEE Stage 3
(P 3 (c0)) FIRBR 20,994 (18,682) 2,312
Total &S 2308% (213506) 17350
Trade receivables EWESER
— Fees receivable from asset -EEEEM Stage 1
management EKER F1RER 7,397 - 7,397
— Fees receivable from asset -EEEEM Stage 3
management EKER F3IKEE 781 (781) -

el & 818 ! (8 1397

Total HoH 239,034 (214,287) 24,747

Notes: BT+ -

(aa) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (@a) ARAEER R REMWIT
the RD Note is considered to be credit-impaired 14@) N FTFFIM Y = B R B -
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed ROEEHEIRBEERE-
in Note 14(a)(ii).

(bb) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (bby RRAAEERAE REKZ
the SP Note is considered to be credit-impaired 14@OMFF =B RIER -
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed SPEBEWRABEERME-
in Note 14(a)(i).

(cc) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (c) ARAEZERAE REKZ
the CFLD Note is considered to be credit-impaired 14@)GIN T MRE EE RER
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed CFIDEEH KR AFEERME-

in Note 14(a)(iii).
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREMTI B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BAGEERMOE
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) HRBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management CEERERERE)
(Continued)
Movement in the allowances for impairment MK AGTECEBRERE
for debt investments at amortised cost is as BE2EEBHNOT
follows:
Loss allowance
BERE
HK$'000
FEx
At 1 January 2022 R-—Z--—&—fF—H 188,352
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAEHRRBEEBRE 24,326
Exchange adjustment ME H, G B 828
25,154
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-ZEBE-_—_F#+-_A=+—-8HK
—E-=F—A—H 213,506
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRNEBRRBREEE 1,595
Impairment losses reversed during the year FREHEREEE (5,224)
Exchange adjustment BE M 8B 55
(3,574)

At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+-A=+—H 209,932
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BAGEERMOE
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) HRBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management CEERERERE)
(Continued)
Movement in the allowances for impairment EEERERKREARBEBERMEZ
for fees receivable from asset management is g
as follows:
Loss allowance
EBERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZTE-__F#—H—H -
Impairment losses recognised FRNEERBHEERE
during the year 781
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZE-_—_&F#+=-A=+—8
1 January 2023 —E2-=%—H—H 781
Amounts written off during the year ~ F R E i 35 & & (781)

At 31 December 2023 WN-—ZE-—=#+-A=+—8H _
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
(Continued)

The directors of the Company, with the assistant
from an independent valuer (the “Independent
Valuer”), reviewed and assessed RD Note,
SP Note and CFLD Note for impairment using
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort in
accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9.
The results of ECL in respect of RD Note, SP
Note and CFLD Note as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 are summarised as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5
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29. MFEREEBREMTIB 2L FEE)

(b) fEEREE)
RAGGEREHOGE
il REBEARGENERERER
EEERERERE)

AAGERFE BB ILHER
(B EEM] W TIRE
BEEUBREENFIRRE -
FTREEAYRHUEBHEFETE
BRARSE DR ERMNE R
REMNFTARDEE - SPEE
RCFDEEMBE KR_FT =
=FRZEZZF+ZHA=T
—H ' EBRDEEK -SPEHE K
CFIDEEMEHEEBEAER
BEWNOT:

At 31 December 2023
R-E-_=%+=-RA=+-—H

PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE
ERBXE BHEAR ENEBR &8
% HK$'000 % HK$’000
Bk TER BAt TER
RD Note RDZ & 100 108,376 100.00 108,376
SP Note SPE & 100 101,574 80.01 81,269
CFLD Note CFLD Z 100 21,002 96.60 20,287
At 31 December 2022
RZEZZF+ZA=+—H
PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE
EOBE  EBHORR BUOEBRB BB
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Bt FET Bk TAT
RD Note RD Z #& 100 108,331 100.00 108,331
SP Note SPE & 100 101,531 85.19 86,493
CFLD Note CFLD E #& 100 20,994 89.00 18,682
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) 5)77'( E 5 B B2 g O (&)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) HRBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management CEERERERE)

(Continued)

In respect of LGD of CFLD Note, the Independent
Valuer has made reference to reports by major
credit rating agencies.

In respect of LGD of SP Note, valuations are
based on residual method, which is essentially
a means of valuing the collaterals held against
the SP Note. As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of collaterals held against SP Note that
are assessed for lifetime expected credit losses
amounted to approximately HK$20,305,000
(2022: approximately HK$21,484,000). The
collaterals mainly include listed shares in
Hong Kong. The fair value of collaterals were
estimated by the Group based on the market
price of the collaterals, adjusted in light
of disposal experience and current market
conditions, by reference to the valuation report
issued by an independent valuer.

In respect of LGD of RD Note, the valuations are
based on residual method, which is essentially a
means of valuing the collaterals held against the
RD Note. As the collaterals are equity shares of
a private entity without quoted market prices,
and the Group is not able to obtain the latest
financial information of the private entity for
assessing the collaterals value, the directors of
the Company consider the collaterals value is Nil
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

RCFDEBMBAOBREXM
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREMTI B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BAGEERMOE
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) HRBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management CEERERERE)
(Continued)

The table below summarises the information
about the fair value measurements of the

NRBEA B B RSP R B AT 15 1K
Yz RFEERZER -

collaterals held against SP Note.

Significant Relationship of
Valuation method  unobservable inputs Value of input unobservable inputs
TUEE
&8 7 % EXFUBERAE BAEEE WABEZBE
SP Note Unadjusted quoted  N/A (2022: Discount for Nil (2022: 30%) N/A (2022: The higher the
prices (2022: lack of marketability) discount, the lower the
Adjusted quoted fair value)
prices)
SPREE ARBAERE(CZT PEACEZZF: B(CT-2F:30%) MEACE_ZF#
T KABRE) mzmBsMzE) EZHs AFESE)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, BE-_ZT_="F+-H=1—

the Group did not recognise any loss
allowance (2022: approximately HK$781,000)
on fees receivable from asset management.

BIEFE AEE X EEWK
EEEEERERTMEERE
B(— T = — F: 4781,000/8

e
(i) Trade receivables in respect of wines (i) BRAAEBNMREEY
and beverage trading EWE ZRIA
During the year ended 31 December HEr-—_ET-_=#+_-AF=
2023, the Group did not recognise +—BILEE KEEYW
any loss allowance (2022: Nil) on trade EREE ARG RES

receivables in respect of wines and

fE W & 5 Bk 18 1 SR AE A &S

beverage trading. BEE( = -_—F:48)-

- =
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk c) RBELRAR

Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury NBECSRBHEBRRTHRAE
and finance departments. They are responsible for B-RHEBERRASEEEREH
ensuring that the Group has adequate liquidity B ESETHAERLE BRE
for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix cHERE BEIHBAER K
is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches. EEEARBEAREENRBEE
The Group manages liquidity risk by holding REERBESRR UBRESR
sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to BENEEREAGAENREHNE
ensure that short-term funding requirements are EFERK-

covered within prudent limits.

The following tables show the remaining contractual TREJINRBEAEER RS HARK
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the BRNAREBRFAEREB(EERED
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which MEFERK(WMAREHMN )RS
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows HARORITAMNEFEN N B R
(including interest payments computed using ERAEBEREHEERERNKZFH
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates HAEMNETESREBBENELOR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the BRF B o
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay.
Liquidity risk tables W BB R %
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEE_® _—_F+_RB=+—HIL
FE
Ondemand  After 1year  After 2 years Total
or within but within but within  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

BEREF BEF BB2E AKRRE
-Fn BEFEB2F BTFEASFE REAH RE®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Financial liabilities: cHERE:
Accruals and other payables & & 5B R A

KB 30,390 - - 30,390 30,390
Lease liabilties HEER 3,553 3,553 2,665 9,771 9,135

33,943 3,553 2,665 40,161 39,525
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

= 6 Bt 5 IR = Bff 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

29. MKEEARSEREMTIE 2R FEE)

) RBEEZRARGE)
B E % E B 5 ()
BE-FE-_—f+zZA=Z+—-HL

FE
Ondemand  After Tyear  After 2 years Total
or within but within but within -~ Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
REXRX BEIFES BRFES AERES
—ER HR2F BRSF nERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TER TAEL FEL TEL
Financial liabilities: AR
Accruals and other payables ~ JEFF B R EMER
RR 12,022 - - 12,022 12,022
Amount due to a related party & {3 BB 75 3B 49,277 - - 49,277 46,930
Borrowings EE S 47628 = = 47,628 46,361
Lease liabilities RERRE 7,803 3,553 6,218 17,574 16,224
116,730 3,553 6,218 126,501 122,037
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (d) DFEFE
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (i) UAFHEIAEHNZHEE

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments, including unlisted investment
funds which are categorised into level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly
to the audit committee. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and
annual reporting date, and is reviewed and
approved by the audit committee. Discussion of
the valuation process and results with the audit
committee is held twice a year, to coincide with
the reporting dates.

AT EREH

TR RAEBAERSBHRT
HHEMNEBRIANATEME
BEBMBRELENEIIRA
FEHABPREZEBED A
EAFEEH AFEHEE
B To AR R B A
EETTHERESEEHED
AT 58

s FEEAME-EERF
—EfBAEBIMERZ
BEXABRGFERSE
REFEBRTIG 2 RECK
KBAE)FEZRTE

s FE_EAMBE-ERFEZ
BEha ANEBIRENTE
F-EBERZ2AUBREE A
B BYEEREKRNH
BRB ABFEZRY
E-TABEGm AEBEE
ERETEHEREZE AR

« ECZEAGE:EAEX
FABEHABEGELD
FE

AEBA-—BEaMBEREFRS
MERH SR T EETMHE
BEIBRE=ZRATEER
MELTREES ZEHKE
BERAERZEERS ZEK
EEFHEFERS B YRR
— oM ARFEAEEHMG
BERE YHEZXZE@EX
MitE - BERITMAEZZR
EevmtEBENRER &
HEBHB B
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OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(d)

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

RREBERERAT
285
fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE—Z-_=4+-A=t+—HILEE

MBERREERERTE2 R FEGE)

NP EFEE)
(i) URAFEAENZHEEE

(Continued)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at Fair value as at  Fair value Valuation technique(s)
measurements 31 December 2023 31 December 2022  hierarchy and key input(s)
R-Z=-= i
tTZAZt-B +ZA=t+-H
BERNYEHNE ZAYE ZATE RYEARN H#ERARIESH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Assets:
BE:
Unlisted investment funds
FrMREES
0Cl Equities Fund SP 102,403 92,013 Level 3 Discounted cash flows model adjusted for
fund specific credit risk
E=f BRReNBREN(GESNTRER
BIEHEE)
OCI Real Estate Fund | SP - 4620 Level 2 Referenced to recent transaction price
=@ 2ZRHRHER
Listed securities 12,563 13,540 Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
tmES & AEREGE
Listed warrants 66 87 Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
F AR EE £/ AERERE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES  29.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MBEREEREMTIE2 R FEGE)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d RAFEFTEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URFEIEHNZHEEE)
(Continued)

aif::—¢+—ﬂ:+—
ALEFE E-RRE-BKZ
ML EEE A E = A
RHEEE=R(-F=—4:
AEBRE TR R
B #1825 K B SR 2 F 18 A8 A
MERR 2 EOBE -

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2022: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy ) o
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

BAS=R FESTSHERN

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
techniques unobservable inputs  Range input to fair value
TABEBAER
i B & 1 EXTABRBAE BE AFEZENBE

Investment fund  Discounted cash flows Discount rate taking into 13.69% (2022: The higher the discount rate,

model account the credit risk ~ 10.34%-12.08%) the lower the fair value
of the fund
REES BRAERERY ZRESEERRKE  13.69% BREgR AATFEY
& (ZF=Z%: &
10.34%-12.08%)
As at 31 December 2023, it is estimated R—_EBE_=Z=F+_H=+—

that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in discount rate by 2%
(2022: 2%) would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss for the year by approximately
HK$284,000 or approximately HK$294,000
respectively (2022: increased/decreased the
Group’s loss for the year by approximately
HK$1,797,000 or approximately HK$1,869,000
respectively).

B - Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂai’ﬂ%%T
BRERT - BIR RSB
PR%(ZF = —F:2%) 4 &t
BeBRAKRE2AFEBRE
2 B8 0, A 49284,00058 7T
8 49294,0008 (=T = =
AEBAFEEBEB D B
/A 491,797,000 TT 3K 4
1,869,000/ 7T ) °
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREBLEMTI B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) d DAFEFEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URFEIEHNZHEEE
(Continued)
The movements during the period in the balance ZEE=QRTFTEFELEHRN
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as HE®NZEHNT
follows:
2023 2022
—g-= —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH& T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 92,013 96,917
Distributions received WH 8 9 Ik WA - (4,750)
Unrealised gains (losses) recognised 4 A 1A 18 5 A FE R &
in profit or loss during the year K HE W= (B E) 10,390 (154)
At 31 December W+-—HA=+—8 102,403 92,013

The gains (losses) arising from the remeasurement
of the Group’s unlisted investment fund are
presented in the “income (loss) from securities
trading and investments” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

30. COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
an outstanding commitment not provided for in the
financial statements of RMB3,000,000 contracted for
the capital injection in the Joint Venture.

Except for the above, the Group has no other
outstanding commitment not provided in the financial
statements.

30.

ENMAEAKENFLTRER
TEEAZHB(BERINGEEGE
BmREMEEEERZT RIK
BREFEBEMREZBAE
)l

(i) K R-FEUF IR 2 G
BEEREBELNFHE
7N £ B 4R BK AN 3B SH K R B BR
WemEERBERABERE
RZEBEZ=Z2FRZFTZ_F+
A=+ HBEWNAFELES
RER-

TRE

RBEEHR AEEREMEERREER
ERTAE R B 3R = B HE R REEA
¥& & A K # 3,000,000 7T °

B bt & 5N AN E I EE MR
WMRBEBAREERRE-
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31. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31.

NCIN=R AR S &

2023 Annual Report

POSITION
Note 2023 2022
(=3 —8C-= —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
:Flﬁi %/%TE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment NE - IBRREE 11,119 15,012
Investments in subsidiaries RHBLRAZ KB 12 1 1
Rental deposits Heke 1,086 1,086
12,206 16,099
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & « B F A &Hﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁlﬁ 1,091 1,037
Amounts due from subsidiaries A IENGIE ¢ 181,684 213,050
Time deposit with original maturity date EIBABB-EANTARE
over three months 14,845 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkBe%EER 57,095 169,345
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables EAZEREMERERE 3,275 2,259
Amount due to a related party JER A HE - 46,930
Amounts due to subsidiaries L NGIE ¢ 12,738 11,846
Borrowings P - 46,861
Lease liabilities HERE 3,174 3,015
Net current assets RBEEFHE 235,528 272,521
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTABEE 247,734 288,620
Non-current liability (¥RBER
Lease liabilities HERE 5,961 9,135
Net assets EEFE 241,773 279,485
Capital and reserves BEXK G
Share capital A& 28(c) 14,998 14,998
Reserves & 28(a) 226,775 264,487
Total equity ERAH 241,773 279,485

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 27 March 2024

Jiao Shuge £ #f B
Director & %

LR R R R T &

Tang Nanjun EE E
Director & &

R-_ZE-_WE=A_-_++tEEESE
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year.

(a) Transaction with key management personnel
The Company’s directors are key management
personnel of the Group whose remunerations are
disclosed in Note 8.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

(b) Balances and transactions with related parties

Name of related party

BAH S B

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

32. FBAXRS
BEaMBRREMBOABENRS
Mg REBERANFEEEIBES
ETTHNERRS

R

(a) BFEEBABETZRE
ARBEETAAEENETEEIE A
g

L EHM M SR E -

ARBEZZHFHNBEFWNEZE S
EBRAXRBEMGBEEET -

b) BEMIFHRREEABRITETZIRS

Relationship
RES

Future Strategy GP Limited

A company whose ultimate controlling shareholder
is Mr. Jiao Shuge, the executive director and
chairman of the Company

—HARARABTESRIFEHEEEEE
REERKRES R A

2023 2022
—E-= = = —
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Transaction: X5
Management fee income* EEEWRA 195 774

Balance: e

Receivables for management fee J& Ut & 12 B Uk A X IB

income

= 774
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BE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Name of related party

AL A8

32. MBAXRR(E)
b) BAMES R REBHATETZIRS
(&)
Relationship
RS

Capital Ally Holdings Limited

A company whose major shareholder is Mr. Jiao
Shuge, the executive director and chairman of
the Company

—HAHARRRTEETRIFEGBEELEE
FEREH QA

2023 2022
—EZ-= —Z=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Transaction: X5
Income from termination of REKRIEFBRERE A
memorandum of understanding*
— Interest income from refundable —R B AR E KX & 2 F B A
deposits 3,286 5,489
— Break-fee income —®IEBRA - 897

* The above transactions were conducted on mutually

agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.

* ERZZTIR—REBERDRHK
[ 5 € 2 R SR AT o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“2021 MOU") with Capital Ally Holdings Limited (the
“Seller” or “Capital Ally"”) for a proposed acquisition
of 51% of the issued share capital of Rising Phoenix
Investments Limited (the “Target Company”)
which is a subsidiary of Capital Ally (the “Proposed
Transaction”). During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group extended the 2021 MOU (being
the “2022 MOU ") and further extended the 2022
MOU | (being the “2022 MOU I1"”) as additional time
is required to perform due diligence investigations
in connection with the Proposed Transaction. The
consideration for the Proposed Transaction under
2021 MOU was proposed to be US$330,000,000 and
was revised to US$204,000,000 and US$280,000,000
under 2022 MOU | and 2022 MOU I, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group extended the 2022 MOU II (being the “2023
MOU 1”) as additional time is required to perform
due diligence investigations in connection with the
Proposed Transaction. The consideration for the
Proposed Transaction was US$280,000,000 under
2023 MOU .

Mr. Jiao Shuge is a director and major shareholder
of Capital Ally and acts as the Seller’s guarantor
(the “Seller Guarantor”) that shall unconditionally
and irrecoverably agree and undertake to procure
the due and punctual performance by the Seller
of all of its obligations under and in the definitive
transaction documents.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

32. AR (E)

(b)

BHMAESRRERBE T ETZIRS
(#%&)

RBE_Z_—+_HA=+—H
IE 4 [E - 7K & B B Capital Ally Holdings
Limited ([ 2 75 | =k [Capital Ally]) 3t 2
& UWx B# Capital Ally 2 B B 2 &]Rising
Phoenix Investments Limited ([ B & 2
ANDERTRANSI%([BERZ))
A —HhmBEERER( = =—F
REESE]) RBE-_T__F+
A=+ BLEFE BHRFTER
IEEHEBZRHIETERASLS
AEBEERE T - —FH@BEL
BRI FHBES&E] -
YE—"FPER ST -__FHREES
BRI ZBZ—FHmBEEEN]) -
T FRMESBET RS
R 5 2 KB #E E /330,000,000 7T
DHBAR-E__FRMETHK
IR _FRMESHKIETZ
204,000,000 € 7T K 280,000,000 3 JT °

BE-_T-_="F+-A=+—81
FE BRFTEFIFHERERER
SZETEBAET A5 BEERZ
T _FRBESEINIZ®Z
SERBESEI  —FT = = FiR
METHRIETCEZEX22RKE
/280,000,000 7t °

£ 1 M L & JhCapital Ally 2 & = 3
FTERF TETEFINERATE
FERAD BEKHERTTHE
WERERAERTEEFZERER
BITEREERZIXHET KA
ZHBEMF-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

N — = —
:I:—?—

=E+-A=t+—BiIH5E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

The Seller, the Group and the Target Company are
collectively referred to as the Parties.

2021 MOU, 2022 MOU 1, 2022 MOU Il and 2023
MOU | merely serve to record the intention of the
Parties as at the date of these memorandums of
understanding.

As stipulated in 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU 1, 2022
MOU Il and 2023 MOU I, the Group will pay
Us$11,500,000, US$11,500,000, US$14,000,000
and US$14,000,000, respectively as refundable
deposits (together, the “Deposits”) to the Seller
on or before 9 July 2021, 19 January 2022, 19
July 2022 and 9 January 2023, respectively, for
the purposes of costs and expenses incurred by
the Seller in entering into these memorandums of
understanding with the Company and co-operating
with the Company in respect of due diligence
investigations in connection with the Proposed
Transaction.

Upon termination of 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU |,
2022 MOU Il and 2023 MOQOU |, the Seller and the
Seller Guarantor shall jointly and severally return
to the Group the Deposits together with interest
(6.5% per annum) of the Deposits within 5 days
following the termination of 2021 MQOU, 2022
MOU 1, 2022 MOU Il and 2023 MOU I. A break-
fee in the amount of 1% of the Deposits was only
applicable to 2021 MOU and 2022 MOU I.

32. Fd
(b)

2023 Annual Report

HHX% (&)

B ERRERBLIETZRS
(%)

EN AEERERRAGERS

F oo

R FHRBERE T
Eﬁ%ﬁmﬁl_7__ B

/u\ﬁ”& Q::¢E§ﬁ¢1ﬁ/u\ﬁ”§
RERZEREETERPLHES
7B e

BUW T —FREESH
T ERBmEERHR - ZF
FRESBRIE T - =ZF5
=EERIFTETRR - $$I%ﬁﬂ
—Etﬂha
+AhHB-= ——itﬂ+h5&
:2::¢fﬂh532wmﬁﬁ
S'Z £¥11,500,0003 7T * 11,500,000 3
7T~ 14,000,000 3 7T & 14,000,000 3
EWETL@&%umﬁﬂﬁﬁnv
REBEREARNQRRGILZERBEH
EHREREZERIZERASTEAR
NElBEMEEXNRARER -

@ﬂ“
|ﬁHH
D

—

i E%%ﬁmf —ZF=
~F RS AR R
EEHIR T Z=FREE I
It BEAREAERAEARZ
T FRBERE T F
FEREBESE - R _FRRE
SERIE T ZFREET IR
IE#&S KA £ E K@ R @ A & E
REREBERES2OMBE(F R X
6.5%) 1% IEEEEAR
I FRMERERER =T ==
FoRR B =8k o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Proposed Transaction under 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOU Il were terminated in accordance with the
expiry date as stipulated in 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOQU I, respectively (the Proposed Transaction
under 2021 MOU were terminated during the year
ended 31 December 2021). Deposits paid by the
Group were refunded from the Seller and interest
and break-fee were paid by the Seller upon the
refund of the Deposits.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Proposed Transaction under 2023 MOU | was
terminated in accordance with the expiry date as
stipulated in 2023 MOU |. Deposit of US$14,000,000
paid by the Company was refunded from the
Seller and interest of approximately HK$3,286,000
(2022: interest and break-fee of approximately
HK$5,489,000 and HK$897,000 respectively) were
paid by the Seller upon the refund of the Deposit.

32.
(b)

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BT -_=F+-_A=+—HLEE

FBAXS(E)

BT ERNEEBRTETZRS
(&)
REBEE-_TE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H

HFEE S _FRBETHIR
TECEFERBEESBRIATZZ

FERIEREBE_ZE-__FRBET
BIN T _FRBESEIME
AeEmBEBEmMKRE(ZTEZ —F
RBMETHETNTZEZRIERE
E_ZE-_—F+-A=+—BItHF
EHRIE) BERFEREXAERXZN
ke BERFEREEKEEX
RMERKILE -

REBEE-_ET-_=Z4+_-A=+—H
FTFE —ZT=F7RESKIE
TZRBERFIERBE-_ZTZ=ZFFR
BESSIMEIAZERA MK
- BEAEREARARAIMNNEZS
14,000,000kt BEEHF E RN R IE
B g AT B 4%3,286,0008 (=
T F:MBERKRIEED D
5,489,000/% 7T % 897,000/8 JT) °
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33.

34.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group sold the collateral of SP note, 131,000,000 shares
of C.banner International Holdings Limited (“C.banner
Shares”), amounting to HK$20,960,000 in January 2024.
On 20 December 2023, there is a voluntary conditional
cash offer (the “Offer”) made by First Shanghai Securities
Limited, for and on behalf of Orchid Valley Holdings
Limited (the “Offeror”) in respect of the charged C.banner
shares at the offer price of HK$0.16 per share. The Group
accepted the Offer and transferred C.banner Shares to the
Offeror in January 2024.

After the end of the reporting period, the original term
of the unlisted investment fund, OCI Equities Fund SP,
was ended on 4 March 2024, and had been extended
for further three years on 24 March 2024. Details of the
extension was set out in the Company announcement
date 24 March 2024.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2023 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation 1 January 2024
of financial statements:

Classification of liabilities as

current or non-current (“2020

amendments”)

33.

34.

2023 Annual Report

WEHHESA
RBEHRE XEER_T_WF —
RAHEESPEE & HE # m - 131,000,000 A&
TEEHEEREZERERAAKROTFEE
B 3])) - £ % 420,960,000/ 7L R=F
=+ ZA=Zt+R B—-—LBEFE
X &) X % Orchid Valley Holdings Limited
(BERADNDHAETTEEROELEEE
751'%f¢fﬁ/i\§?’](f§£’li) T EHNEARSB
RO16EBIL - AEER_ZT_MFE—H
EHK%I%%?EEhh%E%A

R EBR KRR FLETREE 20C
Equities Fund SPBI R E IR E R =T =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023 (continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation 1 January 2024
of financial statements: Noncurrent
liabilities with covenants (“2022
amendments”)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: 1 January 2024
Lease liability in a sale and
leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of 1 January 2024
cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects 1 January 2025
of changes in foreign exchange
rates: Lack of exchangeability

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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B 15 i 2
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E- = B ZEBE-ZTF —E-HEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FHET FTET
RESULTS E
Revenue I 2= 89,548 30,645 73,232 126,834 101,521
Loss before tax T A & 18 (13,248) (78,211)  (117,281) (18,366) (93,024)
Income tax credit (expense) PR #E & (X ) 10 - (5,341) (1,233) (4,404)
Loss for the year KEFER (13,238) (78,211)  (122,622) (19,599) (97,428)
Attributable to: FE 14 :
Equity holders of KRB ER
the Company HAEA (13,118) (75,708)  (122,622) (19,556) (96,897)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR B 2 (120) (2,503) = (43) (531)

(13,238) (78,211) (122,622) (19,599) (97,428)

As at 31 December

R+t=—B=+-—-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —TE--fF ZE-—F —E-TE —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET FAET FTET TAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets EEBE 323,578 417,562 544,669 956,622 923,412
Total liabilities aEBE (43,595)  (123,922) (171,876) (461,618)  (694,259)

279,983 293,640 372,793 495,004 229,153

Equity attributable to equity AR BERFHFH A

holders of the Company FE 1 #E & 287,236 300,661 372,793 495,004 229,863
Non-controlling interests IE 12 MR HE 5 (7,253) (7,021) - - (710)

279,983 293,640 372,793 495,004 229,153
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